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THAIRE LIFE
MILESTONES

ann:ITsunofvIdu

usen InesUs:=NuBdn 1R
1G9duUn 5 UNs1AU 2543
THREL was established

in January 5, 2000.

2521
1978

o SET

aan:1I0sulunaInranndweiruus:inFlng

founuIAN:ITYU 600 &1uunn la:iuaAritNs SISUNSWrUNSSARIUUIBISNINEN1SSOU
Fovrwunsniudun 9 naAy 2556 Wauwannurinaunisusnugvnaw
Listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand AUUSBNUs:NUEIMN

with paid-up capital Baht 600 Million
and began its first trading day on
October 9, 2013.

2552
2009

Start non-conventional strategy to
tailor-made developing health insurance
products with new partners.

®

2557
2014

2543
2000

|sum|uussnoqus AUNYHD
FUBINBITUIWEIRUoBI KT
TuusBéninesSuUs:=nunyso

Start operating life reinsurance
business (unit of Thai Reinsurance
Company).

2556
2013

USBNWAUIADIWSIUToNWssAvTuNTS
m|auauamnmnmuao[nsnnuna-
Foduwuw InurinnisvigwulnsAwri

Collaborate.with partners to develop
Direct Marketing selutions offering
various new products on off-line
media (TV and Prints), selling though
telemarketing channel.

2558
2015

THREL Iﬂsumsom\nnau SET 100 Index
Ilaﬂ\ﬂhIHUﬂ\]ﬂ’]SUOVﬂ&JOU"I\]UHﬂﬂWﬂaO\I
na= UL‘JJE]F\'IWIUS']F]'WIE]']QHE‘-]\]

THREL Securities was included in the
SET 100 Indices representing a highly
liquidity trading with high Market
Capitalization.

»SET100



ANNIVERSARY
THAIRE LIFE ASSURANCE PCL

IsuFnItussNaUs:NUBINtUUS:INFano s . ) >
Tnelfiasnuluusen fiAle Us:Augan 91in usunsisunagnsnisnalnlivuniaon
' NigaurloN1an1ussNIA0UNISESSHI
wusimslrlina:n1sveessne
TUdunannsngds:in

TesusoumsiduilduaudnlnsunIsiuosoy
Upumvasniaensulnglunissoniunasm

Start expanding business to Laos PDR by

. L . o The company initiate alternative
investing in TKI Life Insurance Company Limited.

marketing strategy to explore business
The Company Certified of Thailand’s Private Sector opportunity with non insurance partners
Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption. and expand marketing to oversea.

SA$

2559 2561 2563
2016 2018 2020

2560 2562
2017 2019

®

USBNIASUNSIASUAUADWITIINSIATUNSITU uSBnlsisuNsUs=DUTAITUUSENAG USBNWALNADWSOUToN SS9
Tus=hu Best's Financial Rating : A-(Excellent), n1snnuIanaNIsha lngauiau TumunIswruuwannuriUs:NuUBImn
maalummnnunmuuumm Inganiou duiasuaniunssunisusEning fnuusenUs:nunesalunaus:ineA
FABUAUADIULNIGOND AM Best lus:=au “AIan”

The company start business
collaborationwith reinsurers in

The Company obtained financial strength rating In the Corporate Governance Report

of Best's Financial Rating : A-(Excellent), of Thai Listed Companies in 2017 term of product development.
awarded on the International Credit Rating published by the Thai Institute of

by The AM Best Directors (I0D).

Cooesr



5deunrAu wusne na:idnuislunisanitiussine
Corporate Vision & Mission

FoNFU
W VISIEN

G InesUs:Nugdnyaiduwusionsiunisirusnassuds:Aune
ADNIUBINWSOUWRIUI dSwassAWanNuriazusnis
AasAruAMAAUaNAT IAsugivla:dvAuosNasdu

Being unique life reinsurance solutions provider. '2) '2)

G ISTIIUWRUUN a8NESSAWARIUT
Ia:USN1SSUUSNUNYRDAIUTIMN
F08AIUIBUIBIYAIULINSTIUAING
We aim to create and develop
insurance products and services with
our international standard approach.

L —
w u s n Q 1IS78NW¥IS:AUADITUAINWNISHU

wouadwanouInuagWdIEu

INgHioAu
b We continue to maintain our financial

strength and create sustainable
return to our shareholders.

IsTI0UWRIUNANenIwunansiiwsou
ronsiasunUadsinusingg voussne
We aim to optimize our resources

and platforms to cope with business

environment changes. 9 9
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voyadrAryn1N1SiU / Financial Highlights

(huo®: Aquunn)
(unit : THB Million)

wauds:znaunns dmsnsilasunlag (Sova:)
Operating Result Change (Percent)

2561 2562 2563 2562/2561 2563/2562

2018 2019 2020 2019/2018 2020/2019
1UuUs=nunNysosu 2,400 2,340 2,339 (2.5) (0.0)
Gross Written Premiums

i0eUs=AuNusfosUaNs 2,381 2,324 2,319 (2.4) 0.2)

Net Written Premiums

fnlsnouniBRula 310 232 143 (25.2) (38.4)

Profit Before Tax

finlsans 253 194 121 (23.3) (37.6)

Net Profit

nnlsanssioru (Un) 0.42 0.32 0.20 (23.8) (37.5)

Earnings Per Share

|ﬁuUs:ﬁuﬁwia§uqn§ (&wuunn) fnlsgns (@uunn)
Net Written Premium (THB Million) Net profit (THB Million)
2,381 436
2,324 2,319
1950 2137
322
283 194
121

2559 2560 2561 2562 2563 2559 2560 2561 2562 2563
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

(KUog: druu1n)
(unit : THB Million)

FUN1SRU fu SuFul amsnsilasundag Sova:)
Financial Position at the End of Year Change (Percent)
2561 2562 2563 2562/2561 2563/2562
2018 2019 2020 2019/2018 2020/2019
FunSweisou 2,358 2,426 2,700 2.9 11.3
Total Assets
KUAUSOU 919 968 1,276 5.3 31.8
Total Liabilities
nuisen¥1s:189 600 600 600 - -
Paid-Up Capital
NunaJdnurdadouvadLfioRu 1,439 1,459 1,424 1.4 -2.4
Capital Funds (Shareholders’ Equity)
YaAIRuMIUUNYE (UINHBAU) 2.40 2.43 2.37 1.3 -2.5
Book Value per Share (Baht)
Ruduwa (UNsvAL) 0.35 0.26 0.14 (25.7) (46.2)
Dividend per Share (Baht)
AunSweisou (Aruunn) douveugfiioru (Euuin)
Total Assets (THB Million) Shareholders’ Equity (THB Million)
2 496 2,700 1,543
2,397 2,358 ’ 1,459
2,053 1,439 1,424
1,313
2559 2560 2561 2562 2563 2559 2560 2561 2562 2563
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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A29AIIUS=annV
Inremembrance of

ns.onNsSnY Inwsuuna
Dr.Apirak Thaipattanakul

nssunNs usun Inesus:Nuddn 911n (Un1su) U 2542 — 2563
Director of Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited, 1999 - 2020

G o 1 g

ACU=NSSUNIS WUSKIS llazwunJiu
usEn TnesUs:=NuBdn 91N (UKBU)
The Board of Directors, Management and staff
Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
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dnsennssunisia:gausenasing / Letter to Shareholders

ISeu WhoAu

Tud w.A. 2563 Us:INnATNYIWBYAUNISIIWSS:UNAVON
[sAlndn 19 namdlfifudntivwans:nuvauiAsugRvGousionu
nolan AuliusgunavedlneFauuAulEuInsNISAOUALUNISIWS
s:unavaulsalAdn 19 NulusunisARNsadgARiZolazanNSAR
iGolru $uduwans:nulirsugielnsogiunno:s:a0fd sUNANS
nrvds:inAlnglaus:urcunasiaulniAsygnalul 2563 HEMGY
fivSova: 6.6 anwunisniiAsugnaNIsAa:ulouIENISITURA
nAnos MlksgunalunsiwdrynuAourinme IngnaonUitinu
UIMASFIFoaNUINSNNSNISASUALMSIWSS:UTNaEIsBIto
18:09NUINSNSITUOUIFR N WIUNISTNANIUAIRUINUS:3BU
Wons:FuIAsugA9 soufiunisandnsinenidoulsunounogn
$owa: 0.5 Buidus:AumaniuUs:=3ansai

A1ussnaUs:NUBINA IR Suwans:nuAINaI01IEUNU
TudRWIULINISVENEAIVEISSAREIAIUSAUNN2:NANDY
10eUs:NUSUSOU Anausowa: 1.7 BuiduiboUs=Aunususouny
du 600,013 duuin Jwurwndedenriinie Kaanknanesiu
Tuge=dugusinaiirasdeanas anno-dmnsineniumi na:
nss:aefovednisUdouduidoiiuiiiuvedsuinis Biluwa
ns:nurednsINsIAUIncaITUsALEINSTHL SnNusshiv
HIASUWaNS:NUAINNISIDUAUNSUSSS N1SVY1g10a181s:
10uUs=AUZIn IIa:n1sVIAroaNeNsUsssSUVaIUSINARTASU
wans:nuNIWSs:=uAvadlsAlAdnA 19 dowalidoUs:AuEan
UsioongiaulmindiAeenuUitinuun uenentisshedusioasu
fovNnsiUdgundadsinungineurisingg Adnasus:naAlEaNn
NIASTINAY

puwanisAItussnasuUs:nunesoveusan fud 2563
USBNLITURY:8NUdNSINSIAUTAVOIUSBNogWIRUA NeTs
anunisninasiwss:uavadlsalndn 19 uSBNHIDoUS:AUY
asuIIUU 2,339 druunindiAsiutnou Tnendaduibe
Us=AungrasuannsUs:nungsondiau $9uouU 1,206 d1u
u1n anavenUnoausasa: 4.4 1a:1uusouWsIUA 9IUdU 1,132
duuin wWuvuSewa: 5.0 TneddndouiDuus:AuiusosuIuy
AUIALIA=IVUSOUWIUNOER 52:48 IRBuUAndouUnouaEn
54:46 nnUaJluyuVaIaNUNU:vaIWanNuriUs:NUZIn uSEN
DideUs=Aunerodoulrnjunannauus=nuavniwia:zus=iu
naudiuou 1,129 dwuuin honsiSova: 48.3 TonsuAuln
nUnountinoua: 7.3 EudonndodiuAUADINISHATA
AUUNADEWANATUrIUS:INNUs:NURusieadryRsosa: 22.2
iduibaUs=AuiFoduoU 520 1UUIN WanAnuriUs:INNUS:AU
aurdoiionagonfulionsndoundoua: 21.8 1DuduUs:AuNY
Mov1uoU 510 duunn a:wannmurils:innaURinngaouunna
iduiduds:Aunesiodauou 180 duunndnsidousoua: 7.7

Dear Shareholders,

In 2020, Thailand faced the breakout of the COVID-19.
It clearly shows the impact of a global connected economy.
As a result, the Thai government has implemented
measures to control the breakout of the COVID-19 in
term of screening of infected people and reducing new
infections. Therefore, The Bank of Thailand projected
the declined in economic in 2020 growth about to 6.6
percent. The economic downturn, trade and monetary
policy recession are the factors that challenge for the
government. Throughout the past year, the government
has continuously released epidemic control measures
and announced economic stimulus packages including an
interest rate cut to 0.5 percent, which is lowest.

The life insurance business was affected as well. In the past
year, the expansion of the business continued to experience
a recession. The total written premium is expected to be
negative growth at 1.7 percent, amount to THB 600,013
million. This because of various challenging factors e.g.
consumers have lower purchasing power, the low market
interest rate trend, the slower lending growth from bank
sector, as such, these effected on new business premium
growth rate. Meanwhile renewal premium growth rate was
affected by surrender or lapse the insurance policy and
extended the premium payment among insureds owing to
the COVID-19 situation as well as the amendment practices
to applicable to newly announcement regulations by
government sector.

From our 2020 results, under the COVID-19 epidemic, the
Company is committed to maintaining its growth reinsurance
premium rate ,gross written premiums (GWP) amounted to
THB 2,339 million, which close to the previous year. This
could be broken down into the GWP from conventional
reinsurance business of THB 1,206 million, decreasing
year-on-year by 4.4 percent, and from non-conventional
reinsurance business of THB 1,132 million, up by 5.0 percent.
The ratio of premiums from conventional reinsurance versus
non-conventional reinsurance stood at 52:48, compared with
54:46 from the previous year. Classified by type of products,
the Company’s premiums were mainly contributed by the
health insurance product either in individual insurance and
group insurance, which was in line with the market trend
could generate GWP of THB 1,129 million, soaring by 48.3
percent, up by 7.3 percent. Followed by the ordinary life
insurance at 22.2 percent of portfolio with GWP of THB
520 million, and commercial and housing credit insurance
shared 21.8 percent with GWP of THB 510 million. Lastly
personal accident insurance generated GWP of THB 180
million shared 7.7 percent.

Annual Report 2020 « ThaiRe Life Assurance PLC



ans9nnssunasia:gorusenasinni
Letter to Shareholders

TuURWULA USBNIAANITUNWUSSARRLMITUNISWAIUN
wannrurina:Ikusnissuls:AunyrafUBINIonoUaUDY
AoURDINISVaYanNAIdunan 1a:usenudnaouriloniaia:
goanwnsiaulalnle 1loasnisiAulnvadssieogueuEiu
AOUNISWRUWANNTU7 USNTS ManTkl soufiun1sUSussne
nan TRanusnnousurionisiVdsunlasiinavuna:asnins
iAulnoguRnons:InAWIUNISaSWWUSTNSHNY 1WoSoU
AUARAUWMIUNWANANUZ THIWY souTUfiunaswrun Digital
Platform noulangnausadnisveugusinalugn New Normal
WoaslonansiaulnAtunvduEiusioitiodlus=-810 Tusiu
nisiaaInIsrelnNniIsainuvavusenid:lnsuwans:nu
MNNSIWSS:UNRoEWKANIABIIUTH Auluikivedyaraunswe
AUSUADanad snsneniGuRmagIsoltiol USENGIAdIZDIM
Tomalniiq Tunisavnulidensunuaniunisnifivasunlay
agwsomISoludagUu Aounasverenisadnululustads:ins
na:n1savnuluaunswelnlg WelWuwanauINUYINNNSaNU
Tus:zg:=610

97nulsureveosustEniunisiknouaIATYnUNISATIGUNIU
Wolklwarlsogududu adwnouaunalusuiAsugne SiAu
na=aunondou wiausousssununa auwalkIull usenlfsu
nsuUs:idunuNIsinuRIanenas (Corporate Governance)
As:AU 5 maraitieuidutiay tuAe 10uusBnAinIsrAU
AnafanN1saglus:AUAIAA 9INd1UNVIUANUNSSUNISAINU
nannsSwela:nananannswe (N.a.,.) lazauinuauiasuaniou
nssuNIsusEning (I0D)

MMsAUSENGgU:NNNsRURUITaNa:dn1siAulnnaon
s=gz19a1nWIULY 1IJuwau19INNIsadUaLUSUAINGHoRU
WusTnsnIssN9 ARUNSSUNISUSEN laznsiuinURUAKUNA
VouwlingUNNS:=AU Wvananaveunrusannhinunsouidugou
KUIVOIAIRSIYNoKLNVaIUSENIa:Us:aunouaSesious
ulnenaen U ru Tomati

Last year, the Company remained steadfast in responding
to customer needs through both development of prod-
ucts, services and seeking of business opportunities to
build the exponential sustainability growth by developing
products, services, new markets and adjusting the core
businesses to respond to the changes in the business
environment, as well as an exponential growth through
various partners for development product and digital
platform to response consumer needs in the New Normal
era. In terms of the Company’s investments income which
has inevitably affected by COVID-19 situation, the value of
assets and market interest rates have declined.
The Company seeking of investment opportunities in line
with the rapidly changing situation by expanding its
investment overseas and new asset investment to build the
long-term investment yield.

Moreover, the Company gave priority to achieving
sustainable profits and, at the same time, creating a balance
between economy, society and environment while upholding
the good governance practices. In 2020, therefore, the
Company achieved the CG scores of “Five Stars” or
“Excellent” for the third consecutive year from the Office of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Thai
Institute of Directors Association (I0D).

With the support of shareholders, directors, business
partners, and hard-working employees at all levels, the
Company will continue to grow and maintain a strong market
position resulting in sustainable prosperity. | sincerely
thank you everyone for being a part of this special and
accomplishment operation. On behalf of everyone at Thaire
Life, we are excited for the future of the Company and all of
the possibilities it may hold.

e

(U1dnS sINSIESSA)
nssunasia:gauoenisinng
(Mr.Sutti Rajitrangson)
Director and President

Annual Report 2020 « ThaiRe Life Assurance PLC



AMIZNSSUNISUSEN
Board of Directors

ANI=NSSUNISUSYN / BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. UN9FIUA NIINA (010 847)
Mr. Suchin Wanglee (age 84)

Us:=s1unssun1s ||a:nssumsa\1qu
Chairman and Director of Investment Committee

URTESUNTSIEgAuIdUNSSUNTS: §.A. 2542
dndounnsiioru: Sova: 0.72
AYAIZIFANNSANYN:
JAaNssUManSUnUAR (DAINSSUTWWA)
Northrop Institute of Technology a@n§goIusn

nasousu/duuuilagauinuduasuanilu
nssunasusunine (10D):

¢ Chairman 2000/2544

¢ Role of the Chairman Program (RCP)/2544
» Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2545
» Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2556

N1SOUSU/dUUUIBUN

« &uuun Board Forum 2019 9alngddngiu aun.

. hangmsdnganisUs=Aunes:Augd (oUd.) sun 2 Inlng
dunuu AUN.

* NANGNSKUSHISS:AUFIA 1WUNISUSKHISITUWRIUNITOV
“ununs” Tngan1uuwrIUNIzoY

* MANGMSLUSHISS:AUGIATUNISANIA:NISWITUBEY
[noan10udngnisAn

* KaNgMSWUSKHISS:AUFIAN1TUdINYINISRAIANU (3MN.)
sun 9 InganUudNgINISMAANU

Us:aunasninasniau:
uUsBnaAN:ITaU

Date of Appointment: December 1999
Shareholding: 0.72 percent

Education:

B.E. (Electrical),
Northrop Institute of Technology, U.S.A.

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (I0D):

e Chairman 2000/2001

¢ Role of the Chairman Program (RCP)/2001
 Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2002

» Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2013

Others Training Courses:

e Board Forum 2019, by OIC.

¢ Advanced Insurance Science, Class 2, by OIC.

¢ Executive Management “Urban development”, Urban
Green Development Institute.

e Top Executive Program in Commerce and Trade by
University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce

 Certificate of Top Executive Program, Capital Market
Academy

Experience:
Listed Company

Us:zsunssunis
uu?.InusUs:NuBImN
nssunN1sadnu
uu9.Ing8Us:NuBIN

8.A.2542 — J9qUu

W.A.2559 — J90u

Dec 1999 — present Chairman,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

May 2016 — present Director of the Investment Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Annual Report 2020  ThaiRe Life Assurance PLC



ANIZNSSUNISUSEN
Board of Directors

W.A.2562 — J990U  NSSUN1sd&s:

2544 — J990u

2550 — J9guu

2561 — Jaguu
2553 — 2561
2552 — 2561
2554 — J930u
2553 — Jaguu
2555 — Jaguu

2556 — Uauu
2553 — Jaguu

2537 — 2562

uu9.IngdUs:=NuBIn
Js:s1unssuns
uuU9.uoNaUsNUNY
AUSNUIANUNSSUNSUSHNS
r‘iU§nmnm:nssumsaunu
uuU9.uoNaUsNUNY
Js:zs1unssuns
uu9.9nd@mnssuiilan:Iny
souUs:sunssuUNIsS
uuv.9nannssuulan:ing
Js:saunssunisninuaAInouiinu
llazassn uu9.onannssuiulan:ing

SOUUS:8UNSSUNIS UUD.1aSugV
NSSUNNSOES: UU.IASUEVY
Us:81UAMUNSSUNISWAISTUAN
MOUIINU UUR.185UaV
NSSUNSASIVEOU UUD.IESUEV
NSSUNSdds: NSSUNISMNSIVEOU
NSSUNISassHIlla:zNMKUAAINBUIINU
uu9.0fIea n§U Toanud

NSSUNISa&s: uu9.olsunsni

0.8.2521 — N.W.2559 Us:81UNSSUNTS NSSUNNSDES:

usGnlulpaAn:ITau

nssuN1sadnu
uu9.Ingsuds:=nunuso

May 2019 - present Independent Director,

2001 — present

2007 — present

2018 - present
2010-2018
2009 - 2018
2011 — present
2010 — present

2012 — present

2013 — present
2010 — present

1994 - 2019

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Chairman,

Navakij Insurance PCL.

Advisor of the Executive Board,
Advisor of the Investment Committee,
Navakij Insurance PCL.

Chairman,

Thai Metal Drum MFG. PCL.

Vice Chairman,

Thai Metal Drum MFG. PCL.
Chairman of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee,

Thai Metal Drum MFG. PCL.

Vice Chairman, Sermsuk PCL.
Independent Director, Sermsuk PCL.
Chairman of the Compensation
Committee, Sermsuk PCL.

Director of the Audit Committee,
Sermsuk PCL.

Independent Director, Director of the
Audit Committee and Director of the
Nominating and Remuneration
Committee, BTS Group Holdings PCL.
Independent Director,

Varopakorn PCL.

Jun 1978 — Feb 2016Chairman, Independent Director,

Director of the Investment Committee,
Thai Reinsurance PCL.

Non-Listed Company

2560 — J990u
2560 — UaUu
2560 — Uaguu

2557 — UJag0u

2525 —J990u
2534 — Ja30u
2548 — Jauu

2511 —J930u
2531 —Jag0u
2549 — J990u
2550 — Ja30u
2550 — 2562

NSSUNIS U9. WWrJugu
Jszsnunssuns U9. 8.9.104
nssuNTs / AUSNuUS:sUNSSUNIS
u9. wawa

Js:sunssuns

uU9. Woanauus:=Nnung
Uszs1unssUNAS U9. a1s8ssi
NSSUNNSo4s: U9. Sudnwandn
NSSUNIS

uu9. IsulsussAns

NSSUNAS U9. HIIKE

NSSUNS UD. IND:IWN
NSSUNIS UR. KOJHAWSIUN
NSSUNIS UR. 91A91 dUWTN
Js:zsaunssunas uq. n.lo.lo.
(@nn0uUs:nunelng)

Annual Report 2020 « ThaiRe Life Assurance PLC

2017 - present
2017 - present
2017 - present

2014 — present

2007 — present
1982 — present
1991 — present

2005 — present
1968 — present
1988 — present
2006 — present

2007 — present
2007 —2019

Director, Pipatanasin Co., Ltd.
Chairman, C.E.S. Co., Ltd.
Director / Advisor of Chairman,
Poonphol Co., Ltd.

Management Advisor,

Falcon Insurance PCL.

Chairman, Falcon Insurance PCL.
Chairman, Sathorn Thani Co., Ltd.
Independent Director,

Rangsit Plaza Co., Ltd.

Director, Rajadamri Hotel PCL.
Director, Wanglee Co., Ltd.
Director, The Pet Co., Ltd.
Director, Wanglee Development Co.,
Ltd.

Aqua Infinite Co., Ltd.

Chairman, T.1.l Co., Ltd.



ANIZNSSUNISUSEN
Board of Directors

2. U19dNs SINSVASSA (019 727)
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson (age 72)

NSSUNIS NSSUNISAINU NSSUNISUSHASADWIADY lazge1usensinn
Director, Director of Investment Committee, Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee, and President

URTEsunsisvauidunssuns: a.n. 2555
dndounnsiioru: Sova: 0.00
AIYAIGIFANNISANYN:
WATUBYANENSULUTIA (a0/) INSSATUU
QWIAINSNINMIINYAY
nasousu/duuuilngauiauduiasuaniiu
nssunasusEning (10D):

» Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2555

N1SOUSU/duUuidue

 Fellow (FLMI) 22nan10unisdnnisaunisus:=:Nnusdnvod
ansgoiusni (LOMA'’s Life Management Institute)

* KaNGMNSWUSKHISS:AUFIANIUUdINYINISRAIANU (OMN.)
s;uﬁ' 6 Invaniuudngnismainnu

Us:daunasninasnaau:
uSBnamAn:Iduu

Date of Appointment: August 2012
Shareholding: 0.00 percent
Education:

B.S. Honor (Statistics),
Chulalongkorn University

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors

Association (I0D):
» Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2012

Others Training Courses:

e Fellow (FLMI) (LOMA'’s Life Management Institute), U.S.A.
e Certificate of Top Executive Program, Capital Market
Academy

Experience:

Listed Company

NSSUNMSUSHNSADWIAEY
NssuNAs azgoussnisinn
uu9.InesUs:=NuBInN
nssuN1sadnu uu9.Inesus:Nusddn

U.n.2561 — J99Uu
d.n.2555 — Joguu

N.w.2557 — Jaguu

usunlylnean:iGau

Jan 2018 - present Director of Enterprise Risk Management
Committee Director and President
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Aug 2012 — present Director of the Investment Committee,

Feb 2014 — present Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Non-Listed Company

2556 — J990u nssuns uv.InesSisosdarsa

2539 — Jaguu NSsUNS
aunAuUs:NuBdning

2555 — J990u NSSUNISUSKIS
aunAuUs:nNuBgdning

2553 — 2555 ungnauiAY
aunAuUsNUBIR

2544 — J930u nssunis ue.n.lo.lo

(an10uds:=nunelng)

2013 — present Director, Thaire Services Co., Ltd.

1996 — present Director,

the Thai Life Assurance Association
2012 — present Executive Director,

the Thai Life Assurance Association
2010-2012 President,

the Thai Life Assurance Association

2001 — present Director, T.1.I. Co., Ltd.
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3. As.noUs NNAYINSI (019 827)
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana (age 82)

NSsUN1Sd4ds: Us:s1UNSsSUN1SASIdou Us=s1UNSsSUNIsassrHalia=-n1munAIMauiinu
Independent Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and Chairman of the Nominating and Remuneration

Committee

URTESUNMSIsuaIdunssuNS: s.n. 2542
dndounnsiioru: Sova: 0.00
AYAIZIFANNSANYN:
wWandnunUru7in Harvard University
Us:InAarSgoIusnI

n1seusw/duuurlnegdaurnuaduasuaniu
nssunasusyning (10D):

e Board Forum 2562, by OIC.

¢ Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2544
e Excellent Board Decision/2547

¢ Audit Committee Program (ACP)/2548

¢ DCP Refresher Course (RE DCP)/2548

N1SOUSU/duuidue

o AUUUNANUINSSUNISMSOREOUVaIUSBNUS:NAUNY
“IT Governance” [ngd1Uunuiu AUN./2558

Us:aunasninasnavau:
usSBnaAN:IToU

Date of Appointment: December 1999
Shareholding: 0.00 percent

Education:

Ph.D. (Physics),
Harvard University, U.S.A.

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (I0D):

e Board Forum 2019, by OIC.

¢ Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2001
Excellent Board Decision/2004

e Audit Committee Program (ACP)/2005

¢ DCP Refresher Course (RE DCP)/2005

Others Training Courses:
e “IT Governance” by OIC /2015

Experience:

Listed Company

NSsUN1sdas:

uu?.Inusus:NuBImN
Us=81UNsSsuNISnsov&aou
Us:s1unssuNIsassuiliaznInunAl
mdUINU UUA.TnosUsS:NUEIMN

8.n.2542 - JogUu

W.8.2559 - J9gUu

W.A.2557 - W.8.2559NSSUNISMSI980U
uu?.Tnusus:NuBImN

N.W.2558 - W.8.2559NSSUNISASSHIllazNHUARINDUIINU
uu9. Ing8Us:AUBIM

usBnlulpAn:zITuu

AUZNYI dNUWisUUNINENFANERNS
nazinAluladnrsism

2543 — J9gUu

Dec 1999 - present Independent Director,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Nov 2016 - present Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Chairman of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee Thaire Life
Assurance PCL.

May 2014 - Nov 2016Director of the Audit Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Feb 2015 - Nov 2016Director of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Non-Listed Company

Advisor to the National Science and
Technology Development Agency

2000 - present
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4. ps.ansSnu Inwaiuna w779
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul (age77)

NSSUN1SAAS: NSSUNISASIVFOU 11a:NSSUNISASSHIIAzNIKUAAIMDUIINU
Independent Director, Director of Audit Committee and Director of the Nominating and Remuneration Committee

URTESUNSIBNANIDUNSSUNAS: §.A. 2542
dndounnsiioru: - Tl —
AYAIZIFANNSANYN:
USsry1nuRUnAnnnAuANR
an10UUNUNINWAJUUSHISFANENS
nasausw/duuuilneauiAvdnasvaniiu
nssunasusyning (10D):

» Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2555

Us:aunasninasnavau:
uUsSBnaAN:IToU

Date of Appointment: December 1999
Shareholding: - None -

Education:

Ph.D. (Hon), National Institute of Development
Administration (NIDA)

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (I0D):

 Director Accreditation Program (DAP)/2012

Experience:

Listed Company

8.A.2542 - 1.A.2563 NSSUN1Sdds: Uu9.IneSUs:NUBIRN

7.A.2555 - ;.A.2563 NSSUNISASI&0U
uu9.InesUs:NuBInN

N.W.2558 - 11.A.2563 NSSUNISASSHIlIazNHUARINDUIINU
uu?.Tnusus:NuBImN

usunlulaeAn:zITuu

Dec1999 - Oct 2020 Independent Director,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Oct 2012 - Oct 2020 Director of the Audit Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Feb 2015 - Oct 2020 Director of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Non-Listed Company

2547 — 2564 NSSUNAS lla:Us:suidntiniusmns
uua.Inous:nusdn

2533 — 2564 Js:=srunssunis uu9.Ineus:nugvnaw

2531 — 2563 nssunas ue.n.lo.lo.

2526 — 2563 NSSUNAS 1A:NSSUNISUSKHAS dunAu

Us:=nuganlneg

2004 — 2021 Director and Chief Executive Officer,
Thai Life Insurance PCL.

1990 — 2021 Chairman, Thai Health Insurance PCL.

1988 — 2020 Director, T.1.I. Co., Ltd.

1983 — 2020 Director and Executive Director,

The Thai Life Assurance Association
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pe——

5. UNAUAY §ASIUUN (01g697)
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon (age 69)

nNssUN1sdas: Us:s1UNSSUNISUSHISADIUIASY NSSUNISASIEOU

na:nssuN1sasshala:NnImuAAIMdUIINU

Independent Director, Chairman of Enterprise Risk Management Committee, Director of the Audit Committee,

Director of the Nominating and Remuneration Committee

URTESUNIsIsvaudunssunis: n.A. 2559
dndounnsiioru: - Ui -
AIYAIZIFANNISANYN:
WRAJUINISIASUINIUAIUNUTR
an0UUUAINWAJUUSHISANERNS
nasousu/duuuilngauinuduiasuaniiu
nssunasusunine (10D):

» Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2546

nIsousH/duuudug

« nangmnsdngnisUs:nunes:augu (oUd.) Inedidnuiu
AUN. /2554

+ KANGMSWUSKISS:AUZIANITUINYINISHAANU (9MN.)
[nganidudngnismainnu /2550

« nangnsnisUonusisanrundnsninsgsouionsu (Uso.)
Inodnundelodnusisonrunins/2546

*  KaNgNSNISWAJUNUNUSKHISS:AUEN (UUA.)
Ingan1uwrmuninsisniswaiou

Date of Appointment: July 2016
Shareholding: - None -

Education:

Master of Development Economics

National Institute of Development Administration
Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (I0OD):

 Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2003

Others Training Courses:

¢ OIC Advance Insurance Program, Class of 1/2011 by
oIC

 Certificate of Executive Program, Class of 7, by Capital
Market Academy

e Top Executive Program, Class of 34, Civil Service
Development Institute

e Certificate of National Defense Course, National
Defense College, Class of 17/2003

Annual Report 2020  ThaiRe Life Assurance PLC
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Us:aunasninasnivau:

uUsBnaAN:ITaU

Experience:
Listed Company

u.n.2561 - JagUu

N.A.2559 - JagUu

W.8.2559 - J9gUu

0.n.2562 - JogUuu
w.n.2561 - J99Uu
W.8.2556 - JagUu

10.9.2557 - JogUu

Us:s1UNSSUNISUSHASADUIALY
uu9. IngsUs:NnuBdm

NSSUNNSo&s:

uu9. InesUs:Nusddn
NSSUNSASIVFOU NSSUNISESSHNIIA:
AHUARIRDUINU

uu9. InesUs:Nusddn

NSSUNSdas:
UUR.NSUINWUS:NUBIM
Us:81UANU=NSSUNISUSKHIS
UU9.NSIINWUS:NUBIM
Uszsunssumsrnugiianonsii
UUR.NSIINWUSAUEIRM
NSSUNMSUSHISADWIAENY
UN.NSUINWUS:NUBIM

1U.9.2556 - U.9.2559 NSSUN1SMSIv&0U

UU9.NSIINWUS:NUBIM

Jan 2018 - present

Jul 2016 — present

Nov 2016 — present

Mar 2019 — present
May 2018 — present

Nov 2013 — present

Apr 2014 — present

Chairman of Enterprise Risk
Management Committee,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Independent Director,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Director of the Audit Committee,
Director of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Independent Director,

Bangkok Life Assurance PCL.
Chairman of Executive Director,
Bangkok Life Assurance PCL.
Chairman of the Good Corporate
Governance Committee, Bangkok
Life Assurance PCL.

Member of the Risk Management
Committee, Bangkok Life Assurance
PCL.

Apr 2013 — Jun 2016 Director of the Audit Committee,

Annual Report 2020 « ThaiRe Life Assurance PLC
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6. S48 Iunv=19d (019 457)
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa (age 45)

NSSUN1Sdds: NSSUNISUSKISADVIADY la:NsSsUNIsadnu

Independent Director, Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee, Director of Investment Committee

UATASUNsIsgAaIdunssuNTs: W.e. 2559
dndounsiionu: -Iuid-
AYAIZIFANNSANYN:

PhD. Applied Mathematical Finance Imperial
College, London Us:INAdunnu

n1sousu/duuuilneauiAvddiasuaniou
nssunasusenine (10D):
» Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2559

N1soUSL/AUUUIBUY

« KANGASEUSHSS=AUZIHUNISAMANISWITUBESUR 11
(TEPCoT)

» nangms Leadership Communication Certificate Program

. hangnsdnginisUs:Aunus:augy (oUa.) sun 2
Ingddnenu AUN./ 2555

« HaNEMSANEINMSMRAIANU (OMN.) SUA 24 Inwan1oudNeINs
namnu / 2560

Us:daunasninasnivau:
uUsBnaAN:ITuU

Date of Appointment: November 2016
Shareholding: - None -

Education:

PhD. Applied Mathematical Finance Imperial
College, London, UK

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (I0OD):

 Directors Certification Program (DCP)/2016

Others Training Courses:

e Top Executive Program in Commerce and Trade
(TEPCoT)/2018

¢ Leadership Communication Certificate Program /2018

e Advance Insurance Program, Class of 2 by OIC/2012

e Capital Market Academy Program, Class of 24 by Capital
Market Academy/2017

Experience:
Listed Company

NSSUNSdds:
uuR.IngsUs:NuBIM
NSSUNISUSHSAOUIFEY
uuR.IngsUs:NUBIMN
nssunN1sadnu
uu9.InesUs:NuUBIN
NSSUNISUSHISAOUIAEY
AUSNUINSSUMSLIIANNS
uue.IbavlngUs:=nuny

W.8.2559 — J9gUu
u.n.2561 — JagUu
w.n.2562 — JagUu

N.n.2552 — Jauu

Nov 2016 — present Independent Director,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Director of Enterprise Risk Management
Committee, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
May 2019 - Present Director of Investment Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Member of the Risk Management
Committee, Advisor of Managing
Director, Muang Thai Insurance PCL.

Jan 2018 — Present

Jul 2009 — present
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2552 —J990u

u.n.2563 — JagUu

usunlulaAn:ITuu

NSSUNISUSMNSADWIZEY
NSSUNISUSHISNISAINU
AUSNUINSSUNMSEIANTS
NSSUNSEIUOUNISUSHNS
nssuNsTUAUzNSSUNISUSHISIA:ALU:
auNssUNIsWasUNTAIBINSWEaU
UU9.ANSAEBY

NSSUNSIES: / NSSUNISMSIEOU
UU9.1n3d dianlnsund

2009 — present

Jan 2020 — present

Member of the Risk Management
Committee, Member of the Investment
Management Committee, Advisor of
Managing Director,Executive Director,
Member of Executive Committee and
leasing assets. Phatra Leasing PCL.
Independent Director /

Audit Committee, KCE Electronics PCL.

Non-Listed Company

2562 — Jaguu
2560 — U9g0u

2558 — Uaguu

2559 — Jaguu

2552 — Jaguu

2549 — Ja30u

nssuNIsusEn ue.laidu
NSSUNISUSEN / NSSUNISUSKISAU
n1sadnu ue. Wige 1ouivasinuna
S9INSSUNISYINNNSOMDlE
1aVIUNISANU=IUIUNISUSHIS
NSSUNISUSKHISAOUIAEY
NSSUNISUSHISANUNISaINU
uu9.IdadlngUs:NuBsdn

NSsSUNIS

USEn 1pdan-1dodlngUs:=nune 911
a1s1sruSgus:=s18UIng Uszs1suand
souUs:sUANUzOUNSSUNISUSHIS
JANISADIAELN FUNSANYT dunAU
Js=nuganlng
AUSNWIAOUIBNENURATANIaEIU
anTwnaoy
Aruzivaulasaunsweiduntiau
ANUNIU Mortgage Insurance
ANUzAWU ALM System Implementation
SUTINNSOIAISANIASIA

2019 — present
2017- present

2015 — present

2016 — present

2009 — present

2006 — present

Annual Report 2020 « ThaiRe Life Assurance PLC

Director, I-Gen Co., Ltd.

Director / Director of Investment ,
Fuchsia Venture Capital Co., Ltd.
Senior Executive Vice President
Secretary of Management Committee
Director of Risk Management

Director of Investment,

Muang Thai Life Assurance PCL.
Director, ST- Muang Thai Insurance Co.,
Ltd. (Lao PDR)

Vice President of Risk Management
Committee, Education, The Thai Life
Assurance Association

Advisor to the Market Risk and Liquidity
Risk/ Mortgage Insurance Committee/
ALM System Implementation
Committee, Government Housing Bank



ANIZNSSUNISUSEN
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7. ungs:isA [Uvguun g s60)
Mr.Tarate Poshyananda (Age 56)

NSSUNISAdS: NSSUNISASIVEOU NSSUNISUSHISAIUIAEN a:nssunisavnu
Independent Director, Director of Audit Committee, Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee and Director of
Investment Committee

URTESUNSIBANIDUNSSUNAS: 1.8, 2562
dndounnsiionu: - Tl -
ANQFAIENIANNISANYA:

Master in Marketing, Webster University,
St. Louis, Missouri, USA
nasousu/duuuilneauiauduiasuaniiu
nssunasusEning (10D):

Director Certificate Program (DAP74)/ 2551

Director Certificate Program (DCP183)/ 2556

Anti — Corruption for Executive Program (ACEP)/ 2556
Advance Audit Committee Program (AACP33) / 2562
Board Nomination and Compensation Program
(BNCP7) / 2562

nN1sousU/duuuidug

“5ngnsUs=Aunes:AUa (oU4.) SUR 57 drandnunru:
nssunN1snInUIa:aviasunisus:naussiads:nune (OIC)
“gunfusunAndnsussieluounam - EVP”, un1dnenagdd
dusty (ABAC)

“QdﬂﬁlhﬁOSSSUﬂ'}” (The Extraordinary Leaders), USGN
dagson n3U 911

“s:uumsﬁﬂmsuuutﬁU‘u” (Japanese Management
System), @n10UUNUAINUSKISSSNYVARUNSIKVIWIAINSIU
Un1dngnay

“an10unouidugiundrsuandn” (Crossville Program)”,
18y, Waddud, General Electric (GE)

Date of Appointment: April 2019
Shareholding: - None -

Education:

Master in Marketing, Webster University,

St. Louis, Missouri, USA

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (I0D):

Director Certificate Program (DAP74)/ 2008

Director Certificate Program (DCP183)/ 2013

Anti — Corruption for Executive Program (ACEP)/ 2013
Advance Audit Committee Program (AACP33) / 2019
Board Nomination and Compensation Program
(BNCP7) /2019

Others Training Courses:

Thailand Insurance Leadership Program (Class 5) by OIC
Future leaders for future business — EVP, Assumption
University (ABAC)

The Extraordinary Leader, Slingshot Group Co., Ltd.
Japanese Management System, Sasin Graduate Institute
of Business Administration of Chulalongkorn University
Crossville Program, Cebu, Philippines, General Electric
(GE)
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Us:zdunasninasnwau:

usBnaAN:ITaU

Experience:

Listed Company

8.A. 2563 — JagUu
2562 — Jaguu

2558 — J9guu
2558 — Jaguu

2559 — 2563
2558 — 2563
2551 — 2563
2551 — 2563

2554 - 2557

usunlulaean:zITuu

NSSUNISMNSIEDU /

NSSUNISd4s: / NSSUNISUSKHISADY
1389 / nssunnsadnu
uu?.InusUs:NuBIM
Us:s1uAUzNSSUNISASIvEDU
NSsSUN1Sdds:
NSSUNISasSHIlIazNHUARINOUIINU
UU9. a.f98u 1duinas Twsd
Us:s1UNSSUNISUSHISAOUIASY
NSSUNISASSHIIIAzWASTUIAIRBUINU
NSSUNISNSIEU

NSsSuUN1Sdds:

U9, 13UWF posUaIsEu
WyounssuNswInNIsinn
UU9.8UNASNSUASOYSE

Dec 2020 - Present Director of Audit Committee /

2019 — present

2015 — present

2016 —2020
2015 -2020
2008 — 2020

2008 —2020
2011 - 2014

Independent Director /

Director of Enterprise Risk Management
Committee/ Director of Investment
Committee, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Chairman of Audit Committee /
Independent Director /

Director of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee, S. Kijchai
Enterprise PCL.

Chairman of Risk Management
Committee /

Director of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee /

Director of Audit Committee /
Independent Director,MPG PCL.
Executive Vice President - Corporate
Banking Group, Bank of Ayudhaya PCL.

Non-Listed Company

2563 — Uaguu
2563 — J9guu
2563 — Ua0u
2553 — Jaguu
2548 — J930u
2561 — 2563

2557 — 2561

NSSUNIS UR.Insalus

NSSUNIS UR.W 3 18U

NSsUN1s u2.AsoU Iw1190S

NSSUNIS U9.1wasIwWA nsad
NSSUNTS UR.068U BArsa

nssuMs / Us=suiinktiniushnsnau
uR.IlUIwWA Toany
Us:sUuIdntinAusKns ua.unss Wo
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2020 — Present
2020 — Present
2020 — Present
2010 — Present
2005 — Present
2018 - 2020

2014 -2018

Director, Cash Sprite Co., Ltd.
Director, P3N Co., Ltd.

Director, Crop Power Co., Ltd.
Director, Perfect Grill Co., Ltd.
Director, Mission Success Co., Ltd.
Director / Group CEO, Ampak Holding
Co., Lid.

Chief Executive Officer, Marsh PB Co.,
Ltd.



ANIZNSSUNISUSEN
Board of Directors

8. unglows oUFdSWIBUY (0510

Mr.Oran Vongsuraphichet (age 51)

nssuUN1s

Director

URTESUNNSIEgAIdUNSSUNIS: 1.8, 2562
dndounnsiioru: - Tl -
AIYAIZIFANNSANYN:

Usryrynion usKsssNonunUunn
anuuinalulagnkuioge (AIT)
n1sousu/duuuilaeauinudnasuanilu
nssunasusEnine (10D):

¢ Directors Certification Program (DCP)/ 2559

msausu/él'uumé’uq

« 3ngNSIKNU Asian Institute of Technology KoV
International Training Course on Advance Insurance Policy
Management and Practices / U 2562

« nangnsdnuMsUs:AUNYS:AUZISUR3 (oUa 3)

« MANgNSEUSHISS:AUGY an10UINYINISMAIANU SUR 22
(OmAN.22)

Us:aunasninasnavau:
usSBnaAN:IToU

Date of Appointment: April 2019

Shareholding: - None -

Education:

Ph.D. (International Business)

Asian Institute of Technology (AIT)

Training Courses by the Thai Institute of Directors
Association (I0D):

¢ Director Certificate Program (DCP)/ 2016

Others Training Courses:

e Speaker for the Asian Institute of Technology, Topic
“International Training Course on Advance Insurance
Policy Management and Practices” / 2019

e Thailand Insurance Leadership Program (class 3) by OIC

e Capital Market Academy Programs Class of 22 (CMA 22)
by Capital Market Academy

Experience:
Listed Company

2562 — Jaguu NssuN1s uu.InesUs:NuBdIn

2560 — U9guu nssun1sainu

2559 — J99Uu nssunTsiia:Us:sudMinAuSS
uue.Inesuds:nunuso

2560 — 2562 NSsUN1Sdas:Ia:NSSUNISadNu

Uu9.9ANISIIA:WAJUINSWEINSUINTA
n=dudon

2019 — present
2017 — present
2016 — present

Director, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Director of Investment Committee
Director and Chief Executive Officer
Thai Reinsurance PCL.

Independent Director/ Director of
Investment Committee, Eastern Water
Resources Development and
Management PCL.

2017 —-2019
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usGnlulnaAn:ITau

Non-Listed Company

2563 — J9guu
2562 — Jaguu
2560 — Uauu
2556 — Jaguu
2560 — Uauu
2556 — Jaguu
2555 — Jaguu

2555 — Jaguu
2553 — J9guu

nsSsSUNIS
9. Isuiduniisoloy
Uszsnuidntiniusmns

ua.Ings Buluiodu

sSov1IavISNIS
aunAuUs:AudunAng

nssunis ue.Inesisosddrsd
Us:snuidnntinAusmnis

NSSUNIS
ue.IngSlonBoiBuanauBamy
nNsSsUN1s U9.81I8ugioalng
NSSUNIS UU9.Woanauus:Nuny
NSSUNIS U.novlnenisno

Annual Report 2020 « ThaiRe Life Assurance PLC

2020 — present
2019 — present
2017 — present
2013 — present
2017 — present
2013 — present
2012 — present

2012 — present
2010 — present

Director, Cho Heng Rice Vermicelli
Factory Co., Ltd.

Chief Executive Officer,

Thaire Innovation Co., Ltd.

Deputy Secretary General, Thai General
Insurance Association

Director, Thaire Services Co., Ltd.
Chief Executive Officer /

Director,

Thaire Actuarial Consulting Co., Ltd.
Director, EMCS Thai Co., Ltd.
Director, Falcon Insurance PLC.
Director, Thong Thai Textile Co., Ltd.



ANIZNSSUNISUSEN
Board of Directors

9. UNE191UA ISOUSAUIUS (01 450)
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee (age 45)

nssunisiia:ggostignusenisinn nssunsusShasnoWIdSY

Director and Senior Vice President, Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee

URTESUNTsIsgauIdunssunas: n.A. 2559
dndounnsiioru: - Tl -
AIYAIZIFANNSANYN:
USH1S8SNIUKIUIUTIA UM1dNg1audaausny
n1SoUS/dUUUBUY

» Director Certificate Program (DCP)/ 2560

msausula‘l‘uum'é:uq

» nangms TLCA Executive Development Program (EDP)
SuR 15 TawaunALUSENeAN:ITeUlny (TLCA) / 2560

« KANGMSUNUSMSS=AUGY “sSSUAAnSIio&AL” (UUS.)
Inoyalsan10usNuINNSSSSUANENSITOFuAL / 2559

 nangms Senior Executive Program (SEP) lngan1gulnunin
USH1S8SNYARUNSIIKIgWIAINSULKIONENAY / 2556

Us:aunasninasnavau:
usSBnaAN:IToU

Date of Appointment: July 2016
Shareholding: - None -

Education:
M.B.A., Assumption University of Thailand

Others Training Courses:
 Director Certificate Program (DCP)/ 2017

Others Training Courses:

e TLCA Executive Development Program (EDP), Class of 15
by Thai Listed Company Association (TLCA) / 2017

e Executive Management “Thammasat for Social”
by Thammasat Science Institute Foundation / 2016

e Senior Executive Program (SEP)
by Sasin Graduate Institute of Business Administration
of Chulalongkorn University / 2013

Experience:
Listed Company

NSSUNISUSHISAOUIAEY
uu9. IngsUs:AuBdIn

NSSUNIS UUR. IneSUs:NUBIM
WyosggusunIsinny

uu9. IngsUs:AuBdn

u.n.2561 — JagUu

N.A.2559 — JagUu
2556 — Uaguu

usSGnlulpaAn:ITau

Jan 2018 - present Director of Enterprise Risk Management
Committee, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Director, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
Senior Vice President,

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

Jul 2016 — present
2013 — present

Non-Listed Company

- i -

- None -
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10. UNUNYBNS FISSTUANAY (01 46T)
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit (age 46)

NssuUNs lIa:ggosgsrusenisinn nssun1susSnasnoWIASY
Director and Senior Vice President , Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee

URTESUNTsIsgAndunssunis: n.A. 2559 Date of Appointment: July 2016
dndounnsiioru: - Tuid - Shareholding: - None -
AIYAIZIFANNSANYN: Education:
N1SYANISUKIULUTIA dIVINISYANISSSNY M.M., (International Program), College of
(MANIEIDINNY) INBIGUNISIANISUKIDNYNaaUARna Management Mahidol University (CMMU)
nIsousH/duuudue Others Training Courses:
» Director Certificate Program (DCP)/ 2560  Director Certificate Program (DCP)/ 2017
n1seusU/dunudu Others Training Courses:
» nangms TLCA Executive Development Program (EDP) e TLCA Executive Development Program by Experience
s;uﬁ' 10 IngaurAuusenann:Idoulne (TLCA) /2555 Association: Thailand/2012
* KaNgNSWmUUNUSKHIS (EDP) Suﬁ 11 InoyalSan1uudve  « Executive Development Program (EDP) by Fiscal Policy
ulsungiAsSEININISAAY /2558 Research Institute Foundation / 2015
+ Hangms Senior Executive Program (SEP) Suﬁ 24Ingan10u  « Senior Executive Program (SEP) by Sasin Graduate
UrufinuSHISsSNvARUNSIIKIWIAINSNINKIINeNas / 2553 Institute of Business Administration of Chulalongkorn
» nangms Academy of Business Creativity (ABC) Suﬁ 1 University / 2013
[ﬂﬂumﬁnméﬂﬂﬁlnu ¢ Academy of Business Creativity program (ABC) Class of
« rangnswiuurAnenwauiduiioondwansugushis 1 by Sripatum University
(Work Like A Pro: W-LAP) o Executive Education Program — WORK LIKE A PRO:
[nedNuNauNISIANTS UKIINEdaUrna W-LAP by College of Management Mahidol University
(CMMU)
Us:zaunasninisnavau: Experience:
UsBnaaN:Idau Listed Company
u.n.2561 — JagUu NSSUNISUSHSAOUIFEY Jan 2018 - present Director of Enterprise Risk Management
uu9. Ingsus:NuBIM Committee, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
N.A.2559 —J990u  NSSUN1S UW9. IngSUs:=NuBdIn Jul 2016 — present  Director, Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
2556 — J990u WyosyououNsinny 2013 — present Senior Vice President,
Uu9. IngsUs:NuBIm Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
usunlulnvAn:z1IGeu Non-Listed Company
-Tud - - None -
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1. UNE19d5UNS sssuUNSNI (o1 43 1)

Ms. Sirin Dhumma-upakorn (Age 43)
1avauN1susSEn na:ggoegsrusenisinnyiredrydna:nasiiu
Secretary and Vice President - Accounting and Finance
dndounsiioru: -Tud-

Shareholding: - None -

AMUYAIGIFANINSANUYN:

Education:

Master of Science in Finance
ANUWIUBYFANENSIIa:NISUNY3 IW1adNsSniun1dnenas
M.Sc., Finance, Chulalongkorn University
Us:zaunasninasnuau:

Experience:

usEnaAN=ItYU

Listed Company

2561 — J9Uu
2018 — present

Wyouweuounsinny

Senior Vice President

« Wednydna:n1siu

¢ Accounting and Finance,

« thenouAuNeluna:guus:uru
* Operation Control & Budgeting,
« WrgusKasdtnuu

e Administration

« WgUsSHISAOWIFDY

« Enterprise Risk Management
uu.InesUs:AUBIN

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
wousunsue

Vice President

« Wednydna:n1su
Accounting and Finance,

« thenouAuNeluna:guus=uru
Operation Control & Budgeting,
« WrgusKasdtnuu
Administration
uu9.IngsUs:AuBIMN

Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2560 — 2561
2017 -2018

usenlulavan:ziGou
Non-Listed Company

NSSUNSUSEN U9.10d01$ llonlosod
Director, SR Advisory Co., Ltd.

2558 — J99U0u
2015 — Present

2. UNE19AIIUNI mtyouo\wiqﬁﬁ (018 47 U)
Ms. Duangnapa Kanchanawongwut (Age 47)

wousenastleainu
Vice President - Investment

dndounnsiioru: Sova: 0.00
Shareholding: 0.00 percent
AMUYAIZNEANNNISANYA:
Education:

USK1SSSNIUKIUNTIA d1vINISIiU
an10UUUNNWAJUUSHISANERNS
M.B.A. (Finance), National Institute of
Development Administration (NIDA)

Us:zaunasninasnvau:
Experience:
usBnamN:zIdau
Listed Company
2555 — JaUu
2012 — present

wousunsueainu
uu9.IngsUs:nuBin

Vice President — Investment, Thaire Life
Assurance PCL.

nssuN1sadnu uu9.Inesus=Nuzdn
Director of Investment Committee,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

2560 - 2562
2017 - 2019

usenlulavnn:1IGau
Non-Listed Company
-Tud-

-None -
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3. UNE194dMryryn i’i\llo§t’gsm (01850 U)
Ms. Sukanya Yingcharoenthana (Age 50)

wousenastheinalulagansauina
Vice President - Information Technology

dndounsiioru: Sova: —uid-
Shareholding: - None -
AMUYAIGIFANINSANUYN:
Education:

Ustyrynln AruzUSKHISSSNY @vIN1sivu
UK1INE1AUSIIANINT

M.B.A.Finance and Banking
Ramkhamhaeng University

Us:zaunasninasnavau:
Experience:
usBnaaNn:Idou

Listed Company

4. UNADYAUI 9SSNIDNYISIAU (01g 42T)
Ms. Chutima Atthawethworawuth (Age 42)

worusenstewsmuassne 2

Vice president - Business Development 2
dndounnsiioru: Sowa: 0.00

Shareholding: 0.00 percent
AMUYAIZNEANNNISANYA:

Education:

JStyrynln IASUFANEnSsSN9 ANUzIASUTANERNS
WIaINSNUUKIdNYNEe

Master of Economics,

Chulalongkorn University

Us:zaunasninasnvau:
Experience:
usBnamNn:Idau

Listed Company

2561 —J990u
2018 — present

wouosnsuheinAluladansauine
uu.IngdUs:NuUBIRN

Vice President — Information Technology,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

usunlulaean:ITau
Non-Listed Company

2562 —n.n. 2563
2019 — Jul 2020

wououn1surewmussiv 2
uu9.IngsUs:nuBin

Vice President - Business Development 2,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

usBnldlAvANz1ITeu
Non-Listed Company

vu9.I0adui Us=nune
LMG Insurance PCL.

2538 - 2560
1995 - 2017

2552 - 2558 NSSUNS
2009 - 2015 u2.Ings Taw neadasuslusninos
Director,

Thaire Life Assurance Broker Co., Ltd
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5. uUE1IWUA1 SURRDSTY (01g 50 U)
Ms. Panida Vimootti-aran (Age 50)

wouosnisthewmuwanmmurinazidigonnwunagns

Vice president — Product Development and Strategic Planning
dndounnsiioru: Sova: —IUil-

Shareholding: - None -

AIYAIGIFANINSANUYN:

Education:

Ustyrynln AfuzuSKHISSSNY du1onnisnan
UK1INYIAYINURSANENS

Master of Business Administration (Marketing),
Kasetsart University

Us:zaunasninisnavau:
Experience:
usBnaaNn:IGau

Listed Company

6. UNE193a13dl urydan (eng 44 7)
Ms. Wilasinee Bunploog (Age 44)

worusunsthewsmulssne 2
Vice president — Business Development 2

andounnsiioru: Sova: —Iuid-

Shareholding: -None-

ANIYAIZNGANNISANUA:

Education:

Usryryaln n1sdnnasnal
dNYIFYHANGNSUIUNBIR UKIdNeauurna
Master of General Management,

International College, Mahidol University (CMMU)

Us:zaunasninasnvau:
Experience:
usSBnamN:Idau

Listed Company

2562 — 2563 wousuNsWhewsmuwanniurina:the
2019 - 2020 JIWuUNagns
uu9.InusUs:NUBIR
Vice President — Product Development
and Strategic Planning,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.
2556 — 2557 Wyosnssun1sInNsinnyureonviwu
2013 - 2014 nagnsia:voya

uu9.Idadlneus:nuny

Senior Vice President - Corporate
Strategy,

Muang Thai Insurance PCL.

usenlylavan:iGou
Non-Listed Company

2557 — 2561
2014 - 2018

wyounssun1svANsinnjoola
Whgonwunagnsia:voya
uuR.Ingwrtsgus:NuBIn

Senior Vice President - Corporate
Strategy,

SCB Life Assurance PCL.

2563 — JaqUu
2020 - present

Wduoun1surewmusshiv 2
uu9.Ing8Us:NuBIN

Vice President - Business Development 2,
Thaire Life Assurance PCL.

usenlulnann:ITou
Non-Listed Company
-Tuio-

-None-
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ulsurgnaznawsounasus:naussne /
Policy and Overview of Business Operation

uSEn TnedUs:AUgan 911A (UKBU) (“USEN”) THTRAIIU
TuU 2543 Imusu[aussnomssuds nunumomumuds AUBIMN
AINSWEAUIIA-HTFURINEOTOIAUNVHUA NIFIRUANTURINS
Tne USEN TnesSuus:Auiusio 1A (UKIBU) (“THRE”) Wolk
10ulUmnuws:s1sUryngAUsS=AUBInNa:ws:s1sUryngaUs:Au
5unAfy W.A. 2535 Arrunlisioddnisionnisus:noussie
Us=NuBdnia:ssnous=NUALNANE0aNINAU AW INUUSSA9
dnsifulnegusaition seunludui 9 nanAu 2556 USENIG
aan:z10oulunatnrnannswenrkuds:inAlng Tnoussen Tnesu
Us=nunesio 910 (UKsu) IAtnAuadryudoulauavienu
unaanunoIU |WaEIS'wn0'1UUumTumsvmussnoTuomﬂm
uu|Uumoa'lnryonmonuovoumsmsrwmuImamwuuu

10hnuelunisAnidussne

usENdIUMUEA9:ITuuINNINYTKUSNsSUUs:AUNY
FOIUUANIAUINJoE IR FJlGIR:WiuNeIAns TRausn
TAusn1sanA1usBnUs:NUBInlAAsSUoIRS wSaulrusN1sSu
Us=NuBdnmo [nun1Si1SouWmUISSA9 9 IWUNISAAIA
WAUNWanNIU7ia=NMAUAIUONNNISW1StUISUUS AU naon
uliAUSnuIuoNNWMsUNaUlnuNAINU

dnSunwudnusmunissuds:Aungsio IKUVEIENISSUIIU
Tunsia:wansrurionaniinseunquUUINTU Ia:5NNdRSINNS
iAulnegsoItiod IngldulvungdannisAuNUVaINISVENEIU
munanmsmsal\]una\lnuq lia: Atvfivwanouinusonsisd
NUNaINUAUS: mum'\mawnﬂum wruunssnelhdonndag
nums|LJasJu||Uaovo\lssnods-nuuom||a-ﬂ:)'1uma\1msvo\1
gjuslna Anuiudnnssulku Weuntdlunisonnwunsnann
WrUNWANANUA TR IKUN:auiug oun1INIsVIginaInkane
AsaUAaUNNNEUaNAT

Thaire Life Assurance PCL. (“the Company” or “THREL”)
was established in 2000 by getting transferred the entire
life reinsurance business and related assets and liabilities
from Thai Reinsurance PCL. (“THRE”) to comply with the
Life Insurance Act and the Non-Life Insurance Act B.E. 2535
which requires the separation of life and non-life insurance
business. The Company has since maintained continuous
growth. On October 9, 2013, it was listed in the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, whereby THRE allocated a portion
of ordinary shares held in the Company for sales to public
investors to strengthen the Company’s stability for future
business expansion. This represents another major milestone
on a path towards sustainable growth.

Business Goals

The aspiration of being more than just a conventional reinsur-
ance provider, the Company deems to commit in developing
the organization to provide customers with a comprehensive
range of insurance services by collaborating in business
development, marketing planning, product development,
formulation of underwriting and claim guidelines.

The Company’s reinsurance plan will be focusing on coverage
expansion of each product range as well as maintaining its
consistent growth. The guideline for this is to effectively
manage the incremental cost from business expansion
based on the principles of Risk Based Capital and return
on the use of capital at an acceptable level of risk. Business
development will be aligned with changes in life insurance
business and consumer needs. Innovations will be explored
for further planning on marketing and product development
to fit with the diverse sales channels that could reach all
customer segments.
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uan9NG USBNGIVENBNMSTRUSNISNISSUUS:AUBIMGD
TRAMU:Uwannturithdg na:nuanienassuls:AuIwuIRy
wSowdAnumusllivwnAnssugusInAa:an19:nainogdsno
idouiewsunsshaus:iNndilFnoulangnoudiounshiifiosy
vouyjusinanazatunsnideniddeliognainunzay sounuiuu
nsUs:AUBIMENY AUSENUs:AUEIRaASnUNIEUDVIgLIU
anUUMSIU 18U IVUUs=AUAUASaVEUIGo IuUUs:ALZSAIA:
aURAInA uuUszAugvniw 19usiu FolutRuuulAsouVEe
ssneludulnuustnUs=Augdnnaneiriniduwusinsniy
ssivnusunmssulhludszinAlng 1a:sisunisadnuluds:ine
ﬁaaj"[uds:mﬂu|ﬁsugﬁom|ﬁuu (AEC) USBNISUOWILUNNS
a§19nNIwanunivedusEnIa:IfANTUNISAIWULIATIG
U 2558

dnsunwugnuiunisaduayunasAiugu usenin
avnus=uuinAlulagAvsinuls:AUusala:s:uUNSUSNISHU
3U q 13U s:uUUNYBIa:MsITu s:uuadnu 1IDUAU ITeBouIWL
Js:ansnwia:Us:answalunisnignu n1sdnlAsiniswsmun
ynansifielAiduaurAnsifinag Innovation Ineimsuuynains
TRns:nlinna:wsousuiionunisivasunlashsoni§ovossne
Us:usie na:sulionuannninonav:innvulilusunnm n1sassmn
ynansAdUs:aunisniaziuoAntkg ursouTumsusulsinis
U la=WaUNRLUTRGAUNW leIdnunelumsaguns
IAUlnVoJsSAvaEIENEU

NIWsoUNIsUs:NaUsSSNY

usends:naussnaus:Nungmnoan1uNIsUs:=NUBZIN
nnUs:=inn Tneieus=nunssudountive:onAaulsiduiiudisos
Us=Augan IazAntunsusmsiiudsedUs:Nugandouting
uhlJasnuiieasniuanauinulknsounaunis:Av:IAinTu
fadu ueneNMsUs:NUBIMIED Nsadnudutioldussnssuni
AWEIATYUINFADNISANTUSSAFVOIUSEN

usgnusnisiiuavnulnuns:219nIsasnulunanniwe
Uszinnsinug Avs:e=dunazs:o:91 Nuns1ansmiiia:nsiansnu
Al NMsadnuveuusBn dnsUfUAMUTerUARUUS:NA
ArUENSsSUNSAAUIIAzAIasUNsUs=noussiaUs:AuNY 180y
msaunuus:noussivduveIusEnUs:AuEan

The Company has expanded its reinsurance service and
provided recommendations on new products and additional
underwriting guidelines. In addition, the Company has
continuously studied the trend of consumer behaviors and
market conditions in order to develop products that respond
to customers’ real needs as well as select appropriate
media, including products that serve sales through
Bancassurance such as credit life insurance, ordinary life
insurance and personal accident insurance, and health
insurance. For the past previous year, the Company has
cooperated with several life insurance companies, the
business partners of leading banks in Thailand, in
expanding these types of business and launched
investments in ASEAN Economic Community (AEC)
countries. The Company has also devised a plan and
implemented the formation a corporate image since 2015.

For operation support plan, the Company has invested in
technological systems, i.e. reinsurance and other services
such as accounting and finance system and investment
system, to help increased working efficiency and
effectiveness. Besides, the Company has organized a people
development program to enable the organization to enter
into innovative organization by preparing the employees to
be conscious of and ready for a rapid change on insurance
business and be able to cope with future crisis. As such, the
Company has also recruited candidates with experiences
and innovations to join the Company in improving the
business process and developing a quality team in order to
attain the goal of sustainable business growth.

Business Overview

Apart from the core business in providing all types of
life reinsurance, the Company sets aside part of the
written premiums as reserves and invests such amount to
generate returns to cover its contingent liabilities.
Therefore, investment also plays a crucial part in the
Company’s core activity.

The Company diversifies its investment in a variety of
short-term and long-term securities, both debt and equity
instruments, and complies with regulations under the OIC’s
Notification Re: Investment in Other Businesses of Life
Insurance Companies.
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Insvasaunasiionuvounduusen

useniilasvasnasiioAudaiou TudnisiioRunuulvd
nSanuuUs1unlunduusen flunalAiNandUTAIGINIWA
Us:Teu (Conflict of Interest) UoN9INT NSTURDSIENSS:HIW
fiu uSEn TndpunmuulsulenisigoulMiduna:AouvaNGIN
waus:losu na:unsnisndoiunauniseudAnisrinsIonis

S:KHONNU

J990uuSBNUSENSou 1 uSEN IANn TKI Life Insurance
Company Limited noaviuidouanst 2559 Tuasisrusy
ds:1sUlneus:s15ua10 J9uuidnuann:ideuna:1Isengis:
1§92 16,000 &1Ufiu nSoUs:unru 70 dUUINn BuANITUSSA9
fuds:=AuBannnUs:inn InsusBniioRusoua: 32.5 vounun
1Sun¥1s:1a0

voyanasiioRulnsuAnaduveIusSENSoU

TKI Life Insurance Company Limited n8o (“TKI”)
dyfioAudu uanintioaNusBN A USEN udNAUS:NUNY 911A
(unBu) fioAuagSoaua: 32.5 la: TK Group Sole Company
Limited Sowa: 35.0 InonduynioAuduvoIusBnsoununin
nanounlu TudaowauwusiduynnanineoledunuusEnie
odNln
AYWduWuUSHundussiovevtionulhng

USENUNTISSUUSNISAIUNSWYINSUAAAIIAzUSNISAIU
InAlulagansauinAvn usen Tnos 1sosialsa 91 NIl

Woidun1sushsdnnisideudunuliifiaUs:ansnwavaniu
nauusen

Shareholding Structure of the Group of Companies

The Company has a clear shareholding structure and
there is no cross-shareholding or pyramid structure in its
group of companies, thus creating no conflict of interest.
Entering into related party transactions, the Company has
complied with the policy on interest and conflict of interest and
the measures or procedures for approval of related party
transactions.

Currentty, the Company has one associated company,
TKI Life Insurance Company Limited, established in Lao PDR
in late 2016 to perform all types of life insurance business.
Its total paid-up registered capitals are LAK 16,000 million or
approximately THB 70 million of which the Company holds
32.5 per cent shares.

Shareholding in the Associated Company by
Other Parties

Apart from the Company, other shareholders of TKI Life
Insurance Company Limited include Navakij Insurance
Public Company Limited., holding 32.5 percent and TK
Group Sole Company Limited., holding 35.0 percent. None
of those other shareholders of the associated company are
THREL'’s related parties.

Relationship with Major Shareholder’s Business Group

The Company uses human resource services and IT system
services provided by Thaire Services Co., Ltd. to ensure the
most cost efficient between Group of Companies.
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anunu:n1sUs:noussie / BUSINESS STRUCTURE

usgnus:naussnaliusnissuus:nunysmonuUs:Au
Fanifioatiuayussiaus:AuBINUINGT 20 U Foonssu
nsnnelounouIFuviuvedusBnUs:AuEIn ANS:919AIW
idgudinunuUs:AURSUUS=ALEIRIIMUEY Y Us:AUBINAUL
101Us:AUTIN WANAUANRUSENSUUS:AUAEMA09INUSENUS:AU
39, TN Us=nuBdmseandny Us=nusdnnau Js:Auganiwo
Aunsevauido Us:nugURIinndouunna lla=aryry IwuiAu
AvgURIKAIa:US:AUAVNIW BIUSENUS=UBIN9:ARIZENUSEN
Suus:=NungmolANISWIISTUIIN

Folduy anU=NWNISITU IIAzduAuADULNIGatiolU (Credit

Rating) s:A1U A VulU

. Volfilduuanideulvnissuls:nugdnse Tngauisnnou
duovnounadniIsnIuuleu1gveIusInUs:NUBIMIA 15U
nN1swstuSuus:=Nune sullvudryryds:nunesio SnSTY
Js=nunesio soufivAuinGe (Commission) 10UU

. U9dusnuusnissing Aatduayulunisddudnu 1su 1K
AUSNuUWaRNAITUr AMuNIsSWo1stunSuUs:nue 1I0UfU

«  AUWIWeIRIIAzA0UE:AINSONISORTFSUINNSTKUSNAS

nasUs:AUBIRN
Life Insurance

/ﬂ 1DoUs:fusio
Premiun
nsp
WionUs:=Auny
(Insured)

*

wsuds:=nune ria
USBNUs:NUBIA (Insurer)

The Company’s core business is to provide reinsurance
service to support life insurance business for more than
20 years in aspect of risks transferred from life insurance
companies who share its associated risk by reinsuring
the sum assured that stated in the life insurance contract.
The products that could be reinsured varied from ordinary
life insurance, group insurance, credit and mortgage
term insurance, personal accident, health and accidental
riders etc. However; the life insurance company will select
a reinsurance service provider from the following condition;

¢ Reputation, financial strength and credit rating of “A” or
higher.

e Reinsurance terms and conditions advantages that
meet the life insurance companies’ requirements such
as underwriting guideline, reinsurance agreement,
reinsurance pricing and commission etc.

e Variety of services that support the business operations
such as product development and underwriting
consultation.

« Deliver high standard and timely services that respond to
their satisfaction.

N1sUs:NUBINGD
Life Reinsurance

10gUs=NunNesko
Reinsurance Premiun

nnsp

wsuds:nunusio nso
usBnUs:=Nuneso (Reinsurer)
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anunu:uannurina:nisikusnasvouusBnausniiuy
oonl@du 2 Uszinnmuulounenunisnana et
1. msus:AuBsnsoUszINnAvIAL

10unnssuUs:NUARo9INUSENUsS:AUEIN TnuRuSEN
Us:AUBInIAN1SNNOg A 0uA0IoN AUIGWAIUNWARITTUT
ANIsSMaA lazuniduavIgwan Uy USBNUS:NUBINY:NS:918
AUIABIAIUNUUS=AUTRAVLSBNUS:AURBRanTulazFing
Us:inArane sne IngRustnus:nunesionsa:sialiisioaalui
dousoufunisasuna:weuuwannnuzinuusends:nugdn nso
AI8undn Passive Reinsurance

USENWIUNSSAINSSUUS:AUBINFOUS:INNAVIAL N1a:
SnudnNsIN1sIFSYIRULA AduNsTRUSNsSIaSUAIUENgY TANN
UsNIsIiuzUWwannurAus:Au3IMIa:souIUONIWWIISIUN
NSSUUS=AUBINIWIAL USNISWNSTUNSUUS=AUNY 13:USN1S
duiasunougnaINAARTIY RiNeoTouUssiaUs:ALEIM

2. n1sUs:NuBdInsoaUs:INNSIUNUWIUN
nansuus:Aunesaiunainidanusinsuds:Aunosio
MnFUs:InAaUsnIiualfnaon uSBNFaiwuunuaIniunis
AtUsSNY AdENIsAssNuUIFIIKnIloNIaNINISNAIA
ThU (Active Reinsurer) Inunasiinlddousoulunne fanssu
SouAUUSEBNUS:AUTEIRN ARNISWUNIia:UIduawansinur
Thuq RIdunoIUGBINISVOINAIA FANIILUNISAATA IAzHN
gounn1snatn nlrusEnauasnitnuasUiuunsusssy
na:dns10oUs:NUNRInUAzaN GanisUs:AuBInsoUs:INNSoU
AuWsmIUND UsENna:Idsudounuinissuds:nunesedudndou
(Quota Share) TuémS']a'ouﬁaundﬁmswioums%ds:ﬁuﬁﬂ
oUs:INNAVIAL
us¥nidlAsINISWRUNWaNNTU7ISOUNUUSENUS:NUBIM
ogwraItiov InguItUARAU WIUNWARATUA I1a:d0an9nns
vigineuduausionisilasunlasveswniinssugionUs:=u
neilduran onIsu Tnsuniswiuuwannouridiksugigeong
TAsumsWrunwanAtursuavnwlnen1sIrnwanurinG
MIAUIANFANAUlUIAa:NdUEvONYIDWSAUNY

Characteristics of Reinsurance Business are divided into 2
types following Marketing Policy.

1. Conventional Reinsurance

Conventional reinsurance is the reinsurance service that all
arrangements are made by life insurance companies, ranging
from product development, marketing and sales of products.
Risks associated with the sum insured are transferred to
several reinsurers at home and overseas.

The Company has developed the conventional reinsurance
business and maintained its growth by rendering services
in product advice, joint set up additional underwriting
guidelines, and the provision of underwriting services as
well as any other technical knowledge in relation with life
insurance business.

2. Non-Conventional Reinsurance

Since domestic reinsurance market is an open market where
international reinsurers can enter at any time; the Company
therefore has proactively served as an active reinsurer by
participating in all activities with life insurance companies,
ranging from new product development and launches to
respond the market demand, set up marketing activities as
well as explore new distribution channels. By doing so, the
Company can design appropriate policies and determine
suitable pricing as well as achieving a higher underwriting
quota sharing ratios than conventional reinsurance.

The Company has continuously implemented several
joint development projects by focusing on offering and
developing products through various channels that respond
to the end-user needs such as developing products for
senior age, health products that suits for each different
customer age.
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Insvasausaeln
Revenue Structure

) 2563 2562
s1gln 2020 2019

Revenues 41uuin Sova: d1uuin Sova: 47uuin Sova:
Baht Million Percent Baht Million Percent Baht Million Percent

108Us:AUnesontiadusiels
Net earned premium

o nIsUs:AUBIAUSINNAVIAL 1,202.8 51.6 1,261.5 52.8 1,306.8 53.9
Conventional Reinsurance

o NAsUsS:NUBINUSINNSOUWRIUA 1,088.4 46.7 1,020.0 42.7 1,040.7 42.9
Non-conventional Reinsurance

s1elnNn1sasnuans 31.4 1.4 100.1 4.2 74.1 3.0
Net investment income

snelaAdnazAuunkie 2.4 0.1 1.7 0.1 2.9 0.1
Commission and brokerage income

snelgidu 5.5 0.2 5.6 0.2 1.8 0.1
Other income

sou 2.331.0 100.0  2,388.9 100.0  2,426.3 100.0
Total
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N12:IASYTND

Tul 2563 N19:1ASVENVINYNARMDDEISUNSIIBUIRYD
nuIAsugnelanniiunatdaniunisniniss:uinvadlsalndn 19
TnunaonUnutuuiniAsglfoanuInsNIsNIsAOUAUNISIWS
s:=unegraltion Nun1sluinsnis donAnoud aznsidu
S:U:RNNNAIAL Buduwalkfionssun1uIFAsugNe llazoUadd
neluds:inAnAAdaag N Inglawn:nnANTsHadiReo Ila:
nANsdvoaniseudatnugUaiAvesUs:inAfftRdouno
na=ANTuUINAITAN TuvrusiFgonunsusinafdiuoltivs:=ao
f2aJoEWSUIST MUSASINISINUAITUEWU [nesunAns
inads:inAlnelads:uarrunasiaulniAsugnolul 2563 HAAD
gutivdoua: 6.6 GumaonURuuLINIASTINooNUINSNISMNS
AOUAUMSIWSS:UNRBENJFOItoV la=00NUNnSMSIBLAN
WUN1sIRdAITARUINUS 3 sUIoNSAUIASYINY UDN9IN
dusunAisikaUs:inAlngldioanunsnisEosindoanninle
Suwans:nu ATUINSNISANNIS:NNSENS:HT I1a:=N1SEOBInED
Us=nounstitunsdnassaurio Soft Loan soufiunisan
snsmaniboulounefi 3 AT naghsoua: 0.5 Baidus=Ausmn
anfuds=9mn1sni

Economic Condition

In 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak have significantly
deteriorated developing Thailand economy and global
recession. The government has continuously released
epidemic control measures which are lock-down measures
and social distancing. The long period of control measure
significantly resulted to decrease in demand significantly
and cause the impact to overall commercial and business
activities. The tourism sector and the export sector face
the impact of lock-down of international travelling and
transportation and the appreciation of the baht. The
unemployment rate also increase from the downsizing and
lay-off policy of companies who are impacted from
COVID-19 situation. The Bank of Thailand projected the
declined in economic growth about 6.6 percent. There are
several economic stimulus campaigns. The Bank of Thailand
has issued measures to help the affected debtors which are
the measures to reduce the debt repayment burden, granting
soft loans to support the business, and change the interest
rate to 0.5 percent which is lowest.
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aniunasnissnads:nuddnna:zssnaus:nunioso
A1uUs:NusdIn U 2563

ssfioUs=ALTRA Tul 2563 fiegdusnUntvArnnenoy
anusnlunisAnitiussnana:nasiaulnvesusends:nuny Tu
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9INANISIWSS:UA ddwans:nusansiEBdInvasgAuna:znin
fonssuNWIASuINIVaIUs:INARNY Aolankgns-InwSounU
Budwans:nurionAsshNazissURINeaItios Nudryrmidu
nsdunaseliiniansoidounanad Us:nouluntingo
iBounioglus:Augy duwarinlirasdoveutjusinnanadoenu
suisy ns=nulAiAsygNalngoglun1o:y:a0Md soufun1sidu
S:8:HINWEIAU (Social Distance) MMlfgodnuaaINuaItu
gaynnisvignaniuaiuisndudauavaginuuiiawugusinn
foumuiodlsl (Face to Face) ulwasiodansinisiaulmnvedide
Us=Aufe 3nNussiofodiuBryiun1o:AaUNAAUINIEDY
UINSFIUSITIUNWUOLYBIa:NISHU IFRS 17 ws:s1sUnyryn
AuAsadvayadouynna (PDPA) 1a:N1SIWBYNUSINSIAIY
IFuriganAuNaNiiaz:nisdoaads:nune (Fraud & Abuse)

IsoglsAa JoduRduiasunisiaulnveubossnofi
BUU 9INNIsatuauuveddiniiu AUn. AUs:NANSVIeY
Us:nulawn:N9 Digital Face to Face nSon1siduavignsusssy
WIUS:UUAIMOA IasusBndUE:AoNTRINGUSINATUNSEe
Us:znugdnlnedtunaadnona:Uaonnelugodaniunisnilsa
Tn3A 19 BadeUudunuiu AUN. aulATATEISMsvretidu
0619N9s SNAUNTSIFSUNMSATUAUUINNIASTIEIUINSMNS
nwnBhTKansanngouMBiIulfdouynnavnANIdoUs:iu
avnweniau 15,000 uaniwuidu 25,000 un uenaNTiunTA
8s59199USBNFANY AUSUIVAsULToUNEMSVETHEonAdoINU
anumsnideguunoudnuMswuuwannuritazwulomalu
gounwmsvaglk 9 wiounuininalulagiinuawsuuiusnis
na:usudsuns:uounisnuliaonndounu Digital economy
|onmsaunaunnnaU|U'mmU rlKwasuideus: AugdnSU
souveussiivagh 600,013 &UUN naMoSewa: 1.7 oIy
AuIDeUs:AUTINSUSoUVaudAWIuLIReATIUOUNSUSSSU
F3nndwadvAuly ru dud 2563 T9ruouUs:unru 28.6 d1u
nsusssu duidunsusssiius:Augansnglnuiaw:Ud 91uou 4.1
dunsusssu la:ioWaMstundnsieus: nuansmowamnmn
uoasouvaIUs:inA (GDP) 2:wusiids-AuRIWuTUaERSoua:
3.82 uanunsnasununolfon Aulneddnsidounisingity
Us:AuBaniwen 3.82% vedsnelsinidu duilennalunasiauln
anuanidoifeuniuds:INARTKAIIWEIATYAUNISUS:AUEIR
Aisnsndouuniiv 10% vousnals

Life Insurance and Reinsurance Market Situation
in 2020

In 2020, it was a tremendously challenging year for life
insurance business while facing the COVID-19 outbreak. The
lock-down measure of government sector in many countries
has impacted to people’s lives and the business activities.
The increase of unemployment rate resulted the declining
household income and increase household debt at the same
time. These results leads to decline in consumer purchasing
power. The social distancing measure effect on sales
activities thru agency channel, agents are unable to make
sale contact as face to face with consumers. Nevertheless
there are several regulations announced by the Office of
Insurance Commission (OIC) such as the IFRS17, Personal
Data Protection Act (PDPA) and Insurance fraud (Fraud
& Abuse)by intermediary party which so on influence the
adaptation of business direction of life insurance companies.
Despite that, OIC announced new regulations for agency
channel about rules for electronic, digital face to face offering
that sellers can offer using their voice or sound and picture
In which it is treated as a customer meeting for agents,
brokers and banks. This method could support the selling
process during social distancing for insurance companies
and reinsurance companies. The government sector’s
stimulus measures for personal income tax deduction
for life and health insurance premiums. At the same time,
companies in the business sector had fine-tuned their selling
policy to fit with the prevailing circumstances, while also
implementing product development, increasing opportunities
through new sales channels, and employing technology for
service development and business process improvement
to align with the digital economy and reach all target
groups. As a result, total life insurance premiums written at
approximately THB 600,013 million which deceasing by 1.7
percent, and the number of in-force life insurance policies
at the end of 2020 forecasted about 28.6 million policies, of
which 4.1 million were expected to be new policies taken
out during the year. The ratio of life insurance spending to
GDP slightly higher at 3.82 percent, suggesting that Thai
people spent only 3.82 percent of their revenues on insurance
premium and that there is still room for life insurance growth
in Thailand when compared with 10 percent spent by people
in other countries that are more educated in life insurance.
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109Us:=NUNYSU la:9mnsN1sinuln

Gross Written Premiums

Life insurance business statistics data for 2016 — 2020F

1DuUs:AufBsUsoWARNTUrioasoU
Gross Written Premium per GDP in Thailand

HUoY: Sova:

5.8% 5.7%
4.5%
KUoY: d1uun
Unit : Milion
640,000 -1.7%
627,606 -2.7%
620,000 610,558
600,013

600,000 600,303
580,000 568,002
560,000
540,000
520,000 ,

2559 2560 2561 2562 2563F

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020F

iJoUsufiesu
GWP

%IAuTA
%Growth

nsusssius:NuganntwadAu ru Ful
Number of policies in force in Thailand

HUOY: d1UNsUsss
Unit : Milion Policies

28.6
26.6
26.3
26.2
24.6
2559 2560 2561 2562 2563F
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020F

ANS1FoUBOINWNISVIYUSNUTBIN

Direct Premiums, Distribution Channels

2559
2016

folnu
Agent

2560 2561
2017 2018

suns
Bancassurance

2562
2019

Inséwri
Tele Marketing

Buq
Others

Unit : Percent
3.90
3.88 3.85
3.82
3.62
2559 2560 2561 2562 2563F
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020F
nsusssius:=:NugInNsarL
Number of new policies in Thailand
nuoe: drunsusssuy
Unit : Milion Policies
41
4.1
3.9
3.7
3.6
2559 2560 2561 2562 2563F
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020F
wamls (viAnu) 9INNISANTUIIU
Profit (Loss) from Operation in Thailand
huoy: Sova:
Unit : Percent
9.2%
8.0%
78% 6.9%
60% —*
2559 2560 2561 2562 2563F
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020F

Au1: drdngruAnu=nssuNIsituiazauiasunisus:naussnaus:Nune/auiAuUsAugIning a:n1sus:unnun1svagusen
Source: Office of Insurance Commission/The Thai Life Assurance Association and the Company’s forecasts
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iDoUs:Auesio U 2559 - 2563F
Reinsurance Ceded Premium in Thailand 2016 - 2020F

AUo®: &ruun
Unit : THB Milion

17,510
14,810
12,933
11,063
9,479
2559 2560 2561 2562 2563F
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020F

ALN: dlinuuAnuzNssuNTsritAua:auIasuNsUs:NoussiaUs:AUNE/aUIALUS:AUZ3AINY IIa:nsUSUNUNSVoIUSEN
Source: Office of Insurance Commission/The Thai Life Assurance Association and the Company’s forecasts

AussieUs:Auneme Tuddus:urrunissruouibe
loWs:AuNesoans 17,510 awuuin AnildudnsiiaulnSosa:
18.2 BuiAulnaounnuiboUs:AuneveIssivntonsIAnau
IRganItandouvesnisioUs:AunusalndiAsiulUAtuL
TnoifuibuieUs:=nuneraunenaudlunguavnwidunan i
IidndounisionUs=Aunesotio=aglus:AuATugunnlatn ijo
IRsuAuUs:=aumsnilusinads:inA isitiosennsionUs=Aune
sioidunagnshanArydnsuusEnUs:AUBARIUNNSUSMSIANS
AoWIEsTUFNuNMsSUUS:AUNY AU osshaUs:ALEIATILD
TluRulaimuiu sshieus:=AunesafA:=dILDIIUIRUTAITLTU
nwlUgios Inelugod 3 U aunst) 2561-2563F 1010Us:AuY
roldnsimsiaulnimuiulngioduralaufiusona: 16.4

Net premiums for reinsurance in 2020 is forecasted at THB
17,510 million at an annual growth rate of 18.2 percent, which
was in adversely with the insurance premium growth although
the ratio of reinsurance remained close to the preceding year.
Most of the reinsurance premiums stemmed from the health
insurance product group. Despite the marginal reinsurance
ratio compared with the overseas experience, reinsurance
is a key strategy adopted by life insurers in their insurance
risk management and, as such, reinsurance premium growth
usually mirrors growth in the direct insurance sector. Over
the past 3 years (2018-2020F), reinsurance premiums have
grown at an average annual rate of 16.4 percent.

nseUs:nuneseluds:InAlnos:ng1l 2561-2563F
Reinsurance premiums during 2018 — 2020F

2563F 2562 2561
2020F 2019 2018

aauun Inuln (Sowaz)
Amount Growth (percent)

aiuuin Inuln (Sova:)
Amount Growth (percent)

109Us:AUABSU
Gross written premiums

iDuIoUs=Aunorossho
Reinsurance ceded premiums

iDuUs=AuUnErovaIUSEN
THREL’s gross written premium

dounuunisnainveadusen (Seuas)
THREL’s market share from
reinsurance ceded premium
(percent)

600,013

17,510

2,339

13.4F

-1.7

18.2

0.0

a1uuin Inuln (Sova:)
Amount Growth (percent)
4.5

610,558 -2.7 627,606
14,810 14.5 12,933 16.9
2,340 -2.5 2,400 11.3
15.8 18.6

Aun: ddnvuAcuznssumsritnuia:aiasunsUs:naussiaUs:Aue/auiAuUsNUTIAING a:n1sUs:uIrunsvaIusen

Source: Office of Insurance Commission/The Thai Life Assurance Association and the Company’s forecasts
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Thaire Life Assurance Company’s competition in
2020

In 2020, THREL's reinsurance gross written premiums (GWP)
totaled THB 2,339 million which close to last year, which
was in line with growth in the industry’s life insurance that
remains no growth, and a market share of 13.4 percent. The
Company’s GWP were mainly contributed by the health
insurance product either in individual insurance and group
insurance, which was in line with the market trend could
generate premiums of THB 1,129 million, soaring by 48.3
percent, up by 7.3 percent. Followed by the ordinary life
insurance at 22.2 percent of portfolio with premiums of THB
520 million, and commercial and housing credit insurance
shared 21.8 percent with premiums of THB 510 million. Lastly
personal accident insurance generated premiums of THB
180 million shared 7.7 percent.

Spurred by positive market response to the government’s
policy on tax allowance for health insurance premiums and
the public’s greater health consciousness, the Company still
focused its marketing policy on development of products
and value-added services and creation of business
partnership with all insurers to conduct business together.
As its distribution channel, the Company transacted
business directly with all 22 domestic life insurance
companies in Thailand so as to develop and launch products
through all types of media such as television, radio, on-line
media, telemarketing, agents, and financial institutions.
Successful products include Insurance Products for Seniors
and Accident & Health Insurance plans aimed at specific
target markets. The Company’s reinsurance contracts signed
with insurance companies allow for an active role to be taken
to jointly manage underwriting and monitor claims to strive
for good underwriting results. The Company also supports
the technical considerations that accompany the acceptance
and payment of claims.
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Compliance with all the regulatory requirements and high
standards of corporate governance have built up a level
of trust with customers that strengthens its ability to be a
leading player in the life insurance market. The Company’s
CAR at the pre audit CAR at the end of 2020 was approximate
407 percent, considerable, exceeding 300 percent. The credit
risk that life insurers carry in their CAR calculations is at the
lowest possible level when reinsuring to THREL, equivalent to
a AAArating for a foreign reinsurer and in 2020, the Company
obtained a financial strength rating of A- (Excellent) Stable,
from AM Best.

Life Insurance Business Trend in 2021

Life insurance business will likely continue to stable from the
previous year based on the following factors:

1. The global trend of aging society and the health
impact from the epidemic of COVID-19 will increase the
opportunity of life insurance products that cover
financial planning and health protection/medical
expenses.

2. The volatility of investment yield which currently equal
to 0.5 percent and trends to new low yield. Consumer
tremendously seeks for higher yield like the past while
life insurance companies are facing the challenge of
mismatching of financial instruments and guarantee
return of insurance product.

3. The disruption of technology leads to the change
of selling and marketing approach to digital/ online
marketing which company will adapt to match with
lifestyle in the digital era and provide quick and easy
services through all distribution channels for life
insurance.
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In 2021, new wave of COVID-19 and tough competition in
health insurance are still the challenge for insurance industry
which is exposed to potential increase of loss. Moreover, the
change of International Financial Report Standards (IFRS17)
and the entrance into the digital world will induce reduction
of competitiveness of each players, greater number of
competitors to switch away from other businesses to the
insurance industry, and a timely adjustment to modern
technology.

In view of the challenges discussed above, the company
seek for new business opportunities by explore more in
product innovation, services fulfillment, new markets and
new partners in order to build exponential growth and
sustainable growth in the long term.

1. Company initiate/develop new products and services
to response customer needs among digital environment
and aging society which the product concepts include
both financial planning and health protection/medical
expenses and offering through new channelsi.e. Online
channel. Nevertheless, the company also support the
underwriting and claim consultant along with portfolio
management by monitoring loss ratio and premium
adequacy.

2. Company aim to expand to new market to Southeast
Asia which in 2016, Company has joint venture in TKI
Life Insurance Company Limited, established in Lao
PDR to perform all types of life insurance business
and company could earn income in 2020. Company
continues to seek opportunities in Vietnam and
Cambodia which our implementation still in progress
and we expect to create premium income from these
markets in 2021.

3. Company explore potential strategic business
partnerships to create life insurance business
solutions as well as gain new idea and technical
know-how for product development and service.
At present, the company have initiative several
deals with partnerships for example International
reinsurance Company, International brokers and
Start-up companies to total solution of new products,
digital platform, and channel solutions. Those projects
are continuing and expected the premium result in
2021.
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AowaIsniun1sAsaiiunadnu

usBnMruaUlguIgNISAISINUNDINUIKSNS 1douNIU
WegwavedidunaunuliimndiSosa: 300 IWeINuUALIHIUSEU
TunsINuTURINANAUIABIAIUIASAN9INNSUS:AUAYD
TunuugraediUNEINUAUS:AUAIIABIVOIETNITU AUN.
ArruATRUSBNRIoUS:AUAEFRoaNUNSNANSITUNINUENSU
AOUIFBIAUIASAN9INNNSUS:AUNYROTANAYIA0UIFSIM
Randowa: 1.6 TunsriflonUs:Aunesenugsuls:Aunusolu
UszInARddnsdounouiiggwavadiunadnuliisiniiouas
300 BuiRsuINAUGSUUs:NUABFBluANIUSINARGSUAUAI
AoWLINIGotio (Credit rating) VouRdnyryn AAA

N —

Tne ru SUR 31 SUdNAU 2562 USBNTIRIUNYNUAEUISN
U TETAAIAUA (Total Capital Available : TCA) 1,249.7
d1uunnna:iiiunednuifodrnsdnuruA (Total Capital
Required : TCR) 306.8 d1uuin Anidudnsidounoiu
IWeuwovedriunadnu (CAR Ratio) Rowa: 407 nla: ru Huh
31 Sud1AU 2563 USBNIIONSIEOUADIWEIWDVDIIIUNDINU
AMUNSOUNISAISIIIUNDINUATUS:AUADWIAEIT US:B:
A 2 (RBC2) gundndosa: 350 Byogs:ndnN1snsoadouIn
Waoulrys

N1SANSIINUNSINUATUS:AUADMIIABIS 8N 2

N1SA1SIITUNDINUATUUSINNIAVUIAADIUIAEY
(Risk-Based Capital) 10uinSovijontilunisrinuaiassie
Us=Aunevevditiniru adn. TnelsnnUs:aidifiolkusen
Us:=Aueino1udunIN1In1siuNa:in1susnIsn1sInnNIs
AWIABIAINAYUIINNISUS:NOUSSAMIUANUIUE VUNA lia:
AWBUFOURIRNANAUVOTIFHA:USEN

fu dul 2562 dranvau AUN. TRSuUsaineurinishnnu
QIANSANSIITUNSINUAS=AUADIAEIS=0:A 2 TKauisn
a-flounouideaUs:iNNEg ARATULINNISUs:NoUS SN
ANUNU: YUIA 18:A0UBUFOURINNANAUVOdIFA:USENTAR
ovu Inerirundnsidounduieawavadiiunadnu (Capital
Adequacy Ratio : CAR) 28]

Capital policy

The company has policy to maintain Capital Adequacy Ratio
(CAR) not lower than 300% to keep competitive advantage
from reinsurance credit risk charge. OIC’ RBC framework
has defined the lowest 1.6% reinsurance credit risk charge
for domestic reinsurer who maintains Capital Adequacy
Ratio: CAR not lower than 300%, which equal to AAA-rated
off-shore reinsurer.

As of 31 December 2019, the company has 1,249.7 MB of
Total Capital Available: TCA and 306.8 MB of Total Capital
Required: TCR which resulting in 407 % of Capital Adequacy
Ratio: CAR. As of 31 December 2020, the company still
maintain Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) under Risk Based
Capital phase 2 (RBC2) higher than 350%, under auditing
from external auditor.

Risk Based Capital phase 2: RBC2

The Office of Insurance Commission (OIC) has implemented
Risk Based Capital (RBC) regulations to ensure that the
insurance company has sufficient capital to cover risks
arising from the business which varied by character, size
and complexity of the company.

At the end of 2019, The Office of Insurance Commission
(OIC) developed the capital regulation to Risk Based Capital
phase 2 (RBC2). In order to better reflect risks of insurance
company which vary between companies. The adequacy of
capital measured by the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of
Risk Based Capital 2 (RBC2), calculated as below;
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dMNSIFOUAIWEIWDVOIIUNDINU _
Capital Adequacy Ratio : CAR

RunaunuAzuIsnUUIETRRTAUA
Total Capital Available : TCA

IUNBINUAUS=AUAIWIABINUSBNFBIASIIS
Total Capital Required : TCR

« RunadnuAzUSNUWNEETENIKUA (Total Capital Available
: TCA) runeiiy yaAveugfioRunusuUsulAiluyarngRsssy
mIUKaNINEurivesdingiu AUN.

o |ﬁuneunuﬁﬁeaﬁﬁsdﬁ\]huo1 (Total Capital Required : TCR)
KUNeTy 91UoUITUNDINUAUSENADSY:ASITSIosousU
ADWIFBIRIAATULINNSUS:NOUSSAY AUONUINEUNSWE
lazriauvaIusBnLUIuUFIa0IVeInoIELY 6 Us:inn
nan lann

. AWIFBIEIUUSAUNY

—

. ANUIAYIFUNATN

. AUIALIFUIASAR

. ADWIABIFUNISNS:INED

. ADUIALIFAIUNISIOUAUNSUSSSL

o A~ W DN

. Ao WIABEUUGUANNS

dunuiu AdN. AMKUATRUSENUS:AUBINADIAISIONST
dounouIeawaveuiiunainuliindn$osa: 120 AIFSUR
31 8UoNAU 2562 fiu 31 SUOMAU 2564 NazTunndnSosa: 140
AUIRAUR 1 UnsTAU 2565 IDUFUIU FausEndesnunulouny
msssdRunaINulidnsdoundWIWEIWavauiiunodnullsn
nar$osa: 300 I3muIAITaIwuAUIFIUSEUTUNSINGTU9N
AMRUIABIAUIASANYINNSUS:AUAYRD AfMHUATKUSEN
AloUs:AungfoaIuIsNANSIRUNINUEIMSUAIUIABIFU
InsAnINNsUs:NUAEFolinAAoIEBIANgnSosa: 1.6
TunstiiflonUs:=Aufemanuysuls:Aunusoluds:inARD
snsdounouIWeIwovediiunanulinindi§osa: 300
guiRguIninusuls:AunesolustaUs:INARTSUAUAIL
unidofio (Credit rating) VouAdryry1 AAA

e Total Capital Available (TCA) represents the fair value
adjusted of shareholders’ equity corresponding to the
OIC’s requirements.

e Total Capital Required (TCR) represents the amount
of capital required in order to cover risks arising from
business activities, consisting of 6 key risks;

—

. Insurance risk

. Market risk

. Credit risk

. Concentration risk

. Surrender risk

o O~ WODN

. Operational risk

The OIC required the insurance company to maintain CAR not
lower than and 140%. The Company has policy to maintain
CAR above 300% to keep competitive advantage from
reinsurance credit risk charge as RBC model required the
insurance company to hold the capital to cover reinsurance
credit risk. Considering to this requirement, if the insurance
company make outward reinsurance to domestic reinsurer
who has CAR not lower than 300%, the insurance company
will be allowed to hold the capital at the lowest level of risk
charge 1.6%, equal to making outward reinsurance with the
AAA-rated off-shore reinsurer.
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INfUAAIAIIUIFSIATIUIASANIINNISUS=AUNYMAD
Reinsurance Credit Risk Charge

usSenUs:nunemo
Counter party

fUszInF (Credit Rating)
Tuds=inA (CAR) Off-Shore (Credit Ratmg

Domestic (% CAR

AnoWIFe (Sowa:)
Risk Charge %

S:AUADIFEN

Risk Grade

1 > 300 AAA 1.6
> 200 AA+ Aa1 AA+ A+
2 and AA Aa2 AA 2.8
< 300 AA- Aa3 AA-
> 150 A+ Al A+ A
S and A A2 A A- 4
<200 A- A3 A-
BBB+ Baal BBB+ B++
4 <150 BBB Baa2 BBB B+ 8
BBB- Baa3 BBB-
BB+ Bal BB+ B
5 BB Ba2 BB B- 15
BB- Ba3 BB-
B+ B1 B+ C++
6 B B2 B C+ 25
B- B3 B-
.goc+ Caat  CCC+ G
HSerINd1 KSo HSoMINI 1S HSoMINI" 1S rSomINd 1S
7 Tudnis mdunu  Tudnas mdunau  Tudnas andunau  TUdNs IRduAU 48.5

AOULNIGOND
CCC+ or Below

ADULNIBOND
Caal or Below

AN : d1dnviuAnuzNssuNIstAUIa:N1savIasuN1sUs:NoussAivUs=UAY

AOULNIBOND
CCC+ or Below

ADULNIBOND
C or Below

Source : Office of Insurance Commission

J2dunouidsn

TunﬂsﬁﬂIGU§SﬁOﬁUU§GnﬁOJth_ifyﬁUﬂ']SIUé:UUIIUa\]
nudedenieluna:Jedonieuenaddnsionvdiwans:nusionis
AI0USSAY FAOBIKAGUSENFITAWAUINSOUNISUSHISADW
iduvuIiorosliusinatunsnussafiuddunnAl Wushie na:
iU MUNENuIUS:9:unas:o:019 SOUTNEVAIUISNSNYIAOIU
JUAINNNASIIU Boldey nawanund Ao WIFIUSsunuNis
INITU 13:A0WENEIU NSOUNISUSHISAOUIZEIVEIUSENAON
WiuunVuNUIRSgIUNSMNUANassiaUs:AUA (Insurance
Core Principles: ICP) vovauiaugninuaiassiods:nune
uuBIA (International Association of Insurance Supervisors:
IAIS) lla:a0AAGOIAULINSTIUTUAMTUNISUSKHNSAWIFSIVOY
dUnunu AUn.

Risk factors

In conducting business, the company has to face changes
of both internal and external factors that may affect its
business. Hence, the Company develops risk management
frameworkto helpaccomplishits vision, mission, long-termand
short-term goals as well as maintain its financial stability,
reputation, image, competitive advantage and sustainability.
This framework is developed from Insurance Core Principles
(ICP) of the International Association of Insurance Supervisors
(IAIS) and corresponds to risk management standards of
OIC’s.
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USENIFRKHURS:AUAIUIFsIRBOUSUTE (Risk Appetite)
WoldUs:nounsnruanagns ulourgnisAnitudu a:zidu
nuoNWIuNISUSHISADUIFEINDNIDIANS NVKUA 3 Vo Taln

1. Sns1doUIUIWEIWOVDIITUNDINU=FaIliAINI"
Sowa: 300
2. TomanusBnvinnuanse=fautiosnsndoinanu 1 Tu
20U 1a:
3. AOWIABVEMUURUANSY:FodluIRUS:AUNaN-,1
NS:USUNISUSKISASIUIAEIVEIUSENLUILUNISS:Y
AoWIFBIKANNY:Wans:NUFoIRUNEINU ADIULUAINIINTS
Iu na:dordeavedustin Tn1sUs:1I0UAWIAENIANSIIASTA
AWIGoulBIVounoUIFSY AHUAABTESAAIUIFSIIAINCUT
AlnUN=aU AIHUALIASNISUSKHISADIAENIWOAIUALADTL
ideananikeglus:Aufvousuld na:Us:10uls:answavey
umsnisinantiogseltion USENUIILUTKIAANSIBEUSIN
InnNsninWENYIEURINATUIA:USUUSILINSNISUSHISAI W
iduva:astiEannouIFeIlAiAoUIKUN:auIa:donAdodnAU
anmumsniniasundadlu IngusBninsinauaianduiFey
nanegalaueia:9nlin1ssEULANSUSHASAOWIFE
FHOANIENSSUNISUSHISADWIFBYIA:ANUzNSSUNISUSENITU
Js=9nnlnsuna

S8gvU
Report

The Company determines Risk Appetite and applies in the
formulation of strategy and operational policy as well as the
establishment of enterprise risk management guidelines.
The company risk appetites are;

1. The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) must not lower
than 300%

2. The chance of loss must lower than or equal 1 in
20 years

3. Operational risk level not lower than Middle-Low level

In the process of risk management, key risks that may affect
capital fund, financial stability and reputation of the Company
are identified, assessed and analyzed their interrelation.
In addition, the Company also sets key risk indicators,
appropriate thresholds and risk measures to manage
these risks to be within acceptance level; and continuously
monitor the effectiveness of these measures. The Company
also focus on learning from actual loss experience and then
revises both risk measures and key risk indicators to cope
with changing environment. Moreover, the company regularly
monitors key risks and reports the results of risk management
to both Enterprise Risk Management Committee and Board
of Directors every quarter.

A}
A Y
|
1
1
1
1
1
I
1
1
1

nouduoy
Response

NS:UIUNISUSHISADUIAEN
Risk Management Process
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AJIUIFEIKAN

usBnlFriNMsUs:I0UAdWIABIADNREIWANS:NURENTS
Fidununagnsiia:nsURUANUUS:913U IoritnuAUINSNS
Tumsusmsdnnisifieanloniane:INinAoUIEUMY nioan
wans:nuReIiavulusuAnluaglus:AUAIIFLIASUTH
h8onouAUTH Inelull 2563 USBNTNSWINISTUNADWIABIKAEN
10u 4 funanAo

1. AWIFEIAIUNAYNS

10unoWIdEIRINAINANagNsvaIusBnavludonndoy
AUAIUFIDINISVOINAR lla-/nEonoUIFEIAUSEBNgYIduA
awnsnlunisiniuliu UeN9INRYINANMARAIURDINISVOY
anfRIVasunladluennaruAnissivIAUAUSENIAGTD andn
fnuARANIwUssA9TUTUIUONIAUSGNIUaWNSNnaUEUDY
AUAoINTSTA soufiunoUIABIRaNAT9:BNIANAYYIKIN
usBnonUsuanduAUAULNIGoio

WoUSHISIANISAdUIFBIANRIAATUINE1D USENTH
JAruInsNIsuUsHIsAIFslnen1sIAnalAsINTs ceding
company analysis lla: market segmentation & product
strategy |\T\iori"mmun7ﬂonaqné, JIAS1:KAIIADINISVOY
anANIRA:USEN Na=AKUAIWUSSARITONOUAUDIADUABINNS
vovanMInogNInUIzaU Us:Nounun1susSHIsInNISAUAI Y
JuAviiunaJnuIa:d0a1sAU rating agency TuIBusniWolA
WolkJule31USEN2:a1UNSNAISNYN international credit rating
As:AU A- 11a:5n$1doUAIUITEIWOVaIITUNSINUAINGUT
voudntininu AUN. As:AuLNNS1 300% Nia:

2. AWIABIATUSSNY

1JunouiFsvRinnvINANagnsvedusEnesliidonndoy
AuAoWFBINSVaINAA lla:/MEonoUIAEIAUSBNgrYIEUA9
aw1snlun1sINITU SUeNRIRNYINANARAIFDINISVOY
gnAnAIldsunladluennAruAInssnaIAURLSENIAYD anén
fruARANaIWUssA9TUTUNUONWAUSBNIUaUsNREUAUSY
AWAoINTSTA SoufiunoUIABIRaNAT9:8NIANAYYIKIN
usBnonUSUanduAUAULNEaTio

Top Risk

The company has identified and assessed risks that may
affect its strategic plans and operations and determined risk
management measures to reduce impact and likelihood of
risks. In the year 2020, the company has categorized risks
into 4 groups as follows:

1. Strategic Risks

The risk that the Company’s strategy inconsistence with
the market demand or the risk that the company loses its
competitiveness which arising from change in customer
demands, so, the company cannot serve the demand.
The strategic risks also including the risk the company is
downgraded.

In order to manage strategic risks the Company has initiated
ceding company analysis and market segmentation &
product strategy to get insight of customer needs. The
company has also managed financial stability to maintain
international credit rating at A- level and OIC. Capital
adequacy ratio higher than 300%.

2. Business Risk

The risk that the Company’s strategy inconsistence with
the market demand or the risk that the company loses its
competitiveness which arising from change in customer
demands, so, the company cannot serve the demand.
The strategic risks also including the risk the company is
downgraded.
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2.1 AowIdsvandadunuiAsugnaildsundadluann
auungaulunisniwussne 15U dnsanasinuln
GDP dns1idunilo ulsunenAsgRbuasonIsAnREU
TalunisBowanfirurius:Augdn Sarnindadesiue
funanaiinisilasundad usengdusiouiunmsnis
TunisusuAdIioanwans:NURDIIAATUROAIW
amuasnlunasiauln 18u TugosU 2563 INRINNMIA
-19 Buduwans:nuagusulisdrionaUaISHIUNTS
FonsusssuUs:iNnUs:=Augan Tunanauiuftinou
fiouN1SAUWANNTUAUSAUAVNIWINUOE WEAIRU
fulduUSENFITUInsnIsUSUARdouNTsWAR AT
Us=Augvnwuiniu

2.2 AgTUIFsIINAIUGaINIsTuwanANUrTHgIARTU
aguINauniveyanwana na:/nious:aunisni
TumsrirunsATLIleIwe Biovawalriuanissu
Us=Auluidulumuieauuagiusuinawavianuan
NSV AIUUUSBNIIDUINSMSUSIMsAoUIEEIIng
MsINMIInEITOYadWBIWUIAL SOUTRKUAINGU7
TASANULNTU IRdgaguveuvmRaUSDINITUTE

2.3 ADWIFBIINAAIARUNAAANANUALIULOUSUD=
wans:nuras1glAINNISaINUIAzINUNDINUVDY
ustn IngusBnidnisAnnUTaya IWelKaiusn
AJUAUNIA:USHNSIANISWANS:NURDAINATU SIU
AITNTSIANN stress test dmSuaniunisnifion?
GRowduWoUSUNSIIWOTAILTIZY N1sdANLUNIS
aunu (Portfolio allocation) 10ulUaginvikunzauna:
unavnuAdey duINeIWonIUS:AUAIIUIAYIN
gousuln

3. AgawIdevarunisUnUmvIu

10unowidsnludouveuns:usUNISHNUKAN AIIG
n1syan1dryryads=numo naswasruasSuds:=nuney n1s
woisturdnnisAndulnunanisnswads:losuinunsusssuy
MAOAIUAIZBIVOIS:UUINUATUAUU 9AIEU ASUIFEY
gnus:uuinAlulagansauinAne:gnlouAsINNsuan KioINA
InMaNIAUAMTRs:ULINUKEAB=IN SOUTINISUSKHISUARANS
TKOUs=ansnw TRuleswiinnunnAuiuoN1INISHgU
donnaavnunagnsveaJgusen na:onwadovnunisgryide
uanansiusKuvdIAtyIUdIWans:NUAONISANTUIIUVOY
usan

2.1 The risk that change of economic factors, such
as GDP, inflation rate, insurance market premium
growth rate, Government policy, affect insurance
products purchase power. The companies have
planned strategic adaptability in response to any
the potential changes. In the year 2020, COVID-19
crisis had a revere impact on life insurance demand.
On the other hand, the demand for health insurance
increased sharply. Therefore, the company has
shift portfolio mix into health insurance products.

2.2 Therisk of insufficient statistical data and product
experience for new product pricing which may
cause calculated premium are not enough to
incur claims and resulting in a loss. Therefore,
the company manages the risk by providing
additional sources of reference data and setting
up conservative pricing criteria while maintaining
competitiveness.

2.3 The risk from fluctuation of money market and
capital markets that will affect the investment
income and capital of the company. The company
has followed up the news and economic situation in
order to control and manage the potential impact.
In addition, a stress test has been conducted in the
scenario of severe fluctuations to ensure that asset
allocation is appropriate and the available capital is
adequate to meet the acceptable risk level.

3. Operational Risk

The risks of core work processes, including product
development, underwriting and claims management,
and support systems, such as information technology
systems, being interrupted. Including effective personnel
management to ensure that all employees work in line with
the company’s strategy.
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IWoUSHASIANTISADIVIFBIS:UUIIUNIHUA USEND
NS:UOUNSS=UAIUIFBINANANAINATU llazWans:=NURoN9
innvundlusinulonnane:IAAVU (Likelihood) la:wans:nuione
gryide (Impact) |L‘io|ﬁm|mmsnj Ia:NMHUAUINSNISUSKHAS
danisliwans:nuagius:=AunoIFsIRLoUSUTH

4. n:nu@l:aaﬁ'\umsdﬁﬁﬁmunghmuua:msﬁ'\ﬁugua
fianas
10unouIFsuinnrule KéaIuoNNISANAUANEIN
KUDBUAAUY IVFsunladuerniauauduwasionuonay
msANIdussAvRFiosUsuIlAsUTAIUN:aU soufunoUIFsIR
usBNluUQURMIUNQKUEY URNTEUSBNONANIUUNTSadiNuNY
nKuIe KSolFudoldy

usanlanirnunlAsyas1INISAIAUAIANISUSKHISADI
1Hed (Risk Governance) NIKU:aUTUNISUSHISADUIAEN NS
S189UADIIFYIIA:N1SAOUNIUNISUSHASADIAEIAIL
nan 3 Lines of Defense Model ulnunaon Inelul 2563 i
norunelKURUSENTEdArnTAsINsIWoInSsuwWSoun1SURUR
MIUNNHUIYIIANISAINUANIANINIS Ad NHINEALASOVTaYA
douunna (PDPA) uuenannisindounsiiolissiositu
msldimunnrurendodu adnseusuwdingunnAUTEzAIW
NrlaunuINVaINUNMETANNHUILAINEIDA0Y SOUTIUINSTU
N1SS1IUNNISIHUS:MIUsS:INA AUUR 17 1800 drynyn
Us:Aufe (IFRS17) AUSENIFs19wRUdnunisnsoaUs:inu
IWOHIADIANGINY (Gap Analysis) la:AMItUNISINBOS:UU
UryglazAtunA1ansus:nuneiao

The Company has risk management processes to identify
and assesses the risks and potential impacts, in term of
likelihood and impact of risk events, and then set up risk
mitigation measures to control the risk level in acceptable
level.

4. Legal and compliance Risk

The risk of changes in law or regulatory from regulatory
authorities affecting business practices. Including the risk
that the company does not comply with the law causing the
company to be subject to legal sanctions or lose reputation.

The Company has set risk governance structure according
to the 3 lines of defense model to manage the risks. In
the year 2020, the Company has established the Personal
Information Protection Act (PDPA) project to prepare
business operation for the new PDPA law. Including the
International Financial Reporting Standard No. 17 (IFRS17) —
insurance, which the company has hired an audit consultant
for gap analysis and purchased the new accounting and
actuarial systems.
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snuBounoAus18inn

S']UUOﬂﬂU[JﬂOHUH\]ﬁﬂ 10 swlsn tu ouUmaumn 1Tsu
nsuhauam U oun 30 SuoAU 2563

sneorifioru FruouKuRtio
Shareholder’s Name No. of Shares

1. uSENn InesuUs:Nunesd I1NA (UKIBU)
Thai Reinsurance Public Company Limited

2. nadnuiUnUonaduRus:8:819
Bualuang Long-Term Equity Fund

3. uSEn Tneidudaons 911n
Thai NVDR Company Limited

4. N.C.B.TRUST LIMITED-NORGES BANK 1
N.C.B.TRUST LIMITED-NORGES BANK 1

5. ungaUus s:diavgse
Mr. Anan Raveesangsoon

6. U.d. JuAUN NIYAUNTITA
Ms. Jintana Kanjanakumnurd

7. naunuiun UoKaduAus:8:819 75/25
Bualuang Long-Term Mutual Funds (LTF) 75/25

8. U1wlU ISYSIS
Mr. Min Tieanworn

9. u.w. nsni audnsni
Dr.Korn Limpakorn

10. UNYIBS: NYIUISTWS
Mr. Wachira Thayanaraporn

SouU
Total

11. giierudu
Other shareholders

SoU
Total

TusneBonautifiorusunanoinasiubiusen Tneidusions
J1in Budugoeonnsiansidudnonsniolunaniansiuwa
Us: Iﬂuunlnmmnhannswao'ma\ﬂna (NVDR) fioAuveuussn
ru Sulnayan:iiounsananijodun 30 Sus1AU 2563 $IUDU
16,931,237 Au AniJudndousova: 2.8 Bukudoutiineunsio:
TulganseonideulumsUs:suiifioriu AVt anuausnnsoe
doudusuruaNaAveIUSENAtialneusEn TneISusHons $1n
Tnonidulssivounatnnannsweikus:inAlng www.set.or.th

Shareholders

The top ten major shareholders as at the latest registration
book closing date of December 30, 2020 are as follows:

dndou (Sova:)
Percentage

60,597,430 10.10
30,481,600 5.1
16,931,237 2.8
14,475,000 2.4
13,800,000 2.3
12,700,000 2.1
12,240,400 2.0
9,550,000 1.6
9,069,000 1.5
9,000,100 1.5
188,844,767 31.4
411,155,233 68.6
600,000,000 100.0

Among the shareholders listed above, Thai NVDR Co., Ltd.,
which is an issuer of non-voting depository receipts (NVDR),
held 16,931,237 shares or 2.8 percent in the Company as of
the latest closing date of the shareholders registration book
on December 30, 2020. Normally, the voting rights on these
shares are not exercised at the shareholders’ meeting. For
the latest update on number of shares held by Thai NVDR
Co., Ltd., please visit website of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand at www.set.or.th.

Annual Report 2020 « ThaiRe Life Assurance PLC



Insvastnisiioiuna:n1sdnnas
Structure of Shareholders and Management

javnuanuisnpieyatjfioRuguan 10 shousn Mdu
JegUuulsanidulssivasusen (www.thairelife.co.th) lazi3ulss
vounatnnannSwelkaus:INAINg (www.set.or.th) NMEKAINIS
Unayan:iGouinmslourulunnady

giioAusnelnnynlnewnAnisnilisnswarionsritrnun
ulgurenisinnisndonisAtiudiuvavusenagwidladinny

-luo-
Vomnavs:ningnoAusielnn

-lui-
n1soonnannsweau

usunludnN1sPoNAUUSUENS nsashinSonannswe
IJavanawnonens:nurednsvavyiioRunsiotnin

ulourenisdreuduwa

usBndulsunedngRuduwalRgioRuludnsiliitioondn
Sowa: 40 vourinlsgns91NIuNISIUIIWI-NINISNYRAVANNG
RulfRuARaNazraIRnd1sads1g NnnUsINNAUANOKUNY
fruAnazmURRKUATSTUToUIAUVEIUSEN ogNIsAn L NS
SerRuduwaiinaooneiimsivasunladévusgiunomudiu
la:AOIKUN=AUBUY AMMUARNUNSSUNISUSENIKUEUADS NaU
n1s91euduwavesusen fodlAsundIKUBoUINETNIIU
AnUNSsSUNIsSNINUIazadiasunisus:noussnaus:nuny nu
UINST 32 VOUWS:SBUNJAUSAUTIN W.A. 2535 (SOUNJA
TATNISIATVIWUIAL)

For the latest update on the top ten major shareholders,
please visit website of the Company at www.thairelife.co.th
and the Stock Exchange of Thailand at www.set.or.th after
the closing of the shareholders registration book.

The major shareholder who, by actions, has a significant
influence over the determination of policy or the management
or control of operations of the Company.

- None -
Shareholders’ Agreement
- None -
Issue of Other Securities

The Company has not issued any preferred shares, debt
securities or convertible securities that may affect rights of
the shareholders.

Dividend Payment Policy

We have a policy to pay dividends at not less than 40
percent of net profit from the separate financial statement
after corporate income tax and all types of reserves as
required by law and as specified in the Company’s Articles
of Association. However, the dividend payment is subject to
change as deemed necessary and appropriate by the Board
of Directors. The Company’s dividend payment must be
approved by OIC pursuant to Section 32 of the Life Insurance
Act B.E. 2535 (and the subsequent amendments).
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nasfiouvoINssUNISIazEushnis
Shareholding of Director and Management

$uouRuRtie ruduR | FauouRuRtio ruduR | FruouRuRIlABUIlay |dndounistieRuluusEn
31 Suo1AU 2563' 31 SuoiAy 2562" IWUVU (anav) (Sovaz)
No. of Shares No. of Shares ful 2563 Percentage
as of Dec 31, 2020’ as of Dec 31, 2019' Change Increase
(Decrease)
in 2020
vouauled | fausa/ | vednuioy | Aausa/ | vednuiod | Adusa/ | veumuley | Adusa/
Held unshéa Held unsnau Held unsnéu Held unsngu
Personally | Tuussa | Personally | Tdussg | Personally [ Tuussa | Personally | Tuussa
UmN19: Uumnnno: UmN19= UnNI9:
Held by Held by Held by Held by
Spouse/ Spouse/ Spouse/ Spouse/
Minor Child Minor Child Minor Child Minor Child
ANIZNSSUNIS
Director
1. u1gdIun nouna 1,341,471 3,000,000 1,341,471 3,000,000 - - 0.72 0.72
Mr. Suchin Wanglee
2. U19dns sInSudssA 3,360 - 3,360 - - - 0.00 -
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson
3. ms.nous nnneafismu 8,018 672 8,018 672 = = 0.00 0.00
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana
4. ms.onNsnd Inwmuna® - - - - - - - -
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul®
5. UuwAUAY §HS'1UUﬁ - - - - - - - -
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon
6. ms.gs lunv=10d - - - - - - - -
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa
7. UNEMDMUOR ISOUSAUIS - - - - - - - -
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee
8. uNUNBNS gossruanne - - - - - - - -
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit
9. ungs:sA [Jusuun - - - - - - - -
Mr.Tarate Poshyananda
10. unglowns ouAdsWIBug - - - - - - - -
Mr.Oran Vongsuraphichet
Wusnas
Management
11. ua2asuns sssuaunsni - - - - - - - -
Ms. Sirin Dhumma-upakorn
12, UNE9AIUNT NIYIUIIAQA] 1,500 - 1,500 - - - 0.00 -
Ms. Duangnapa Kanchanawongwut
13. u&avantyy BUI9Srysun - - - - - - - -
Ms. Sukanya Yingcharoenthana
14. UWEDBRAUT 9SSNIONYISIFU 1,500 - 1,500 - - - 0.00 -
Ms.Chutima Atthawcthworawuth
15. u&a1WUN1 dUNRDSTY = = = = = = = =
Ms.Panida Vimootti-aran
16. uN&E19dandU urydan - - - - - - - -

Ms.Wilasinee Bunploog

KUNBInR :  S1usuRUANIrYRoeNIa:g1s:IE0 600,000,000 AU
Z pssunsiawuansiikue Iavananean IJadun 5 nanAu 2563

Remark : ' Number of common stock issued and paid-up 600,000,000 shares

2 The director has resigned from the position on October 5, 2020
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Iasvdasaun1s9Anas

IASya$1IN1SYIANISVOIUSENUS:NOUADUANUZNSSUNIS
USBN lIa:ATUNSSUNISEAEDY SOU 4 Afu: [AIN ArU=NSSUNS
MSOEDU AMUINSSUNISASSHIlla:NTHUAAIMNDUIINU ALU:
nssuN1sadnu I8:ANUNSSUNISUSHISADUIAEN

ANI=NSSUNISUSBN

J990unfuzNSSUNISUSENUS:NOUAJENSSUNISIUDU
9 ru Us=naugiosnssunsiluidugjusisduou 6 fu Nla:
nssun1sAIdugusMsIuoU 3 riu TnssunsRUAEALUR
10unssuNSdas=AUTEIUVOIUSENGIdoNAdINUKANINDUTI
AN N.a.0. MAUATUFIUOU 5 MU 91S:N1SASIAIMLIIVOY
nssunN1IsMIUVaUVAUVaIUSENMnunldAsoa: 3 U Inulul
MSAMUATILOUNS=AR=ANSIAIKLIIUNURGAVOINSSUNIS
nssuNMsdas: la:nssun1ssngosld 1tiovenudtn $1u
fioulinssunsaountiuniduginoU§AUIBIBINYFIUNTS
UszAunendogduousnm

Management Structure

The Company’s management structure is composed of
the Board of Directors and four subcommittees, namely,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration and Nominating
Committee, Investment Committee, the Risk Management
Committee.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is composed of hine members
of whom six are non-executive directors and three are
executive directors. Five of them are qualified as
independent directors, as defined by the Company based
on the SEC’s guideline. Each term of directorship is three
years, as stipulated in the Company’s Articles of Association.
However, there is no limitation on the number of terms of
office of the directors, independent directors and members
of subcommittees because the Company needs to especially
retain some board members who are knowledgeable and
specialized in insurance business and are scarce.

s1g¥oAUNSSUNISUSEN fu SuR 31 SudnAu 2563 lsvsolut
As of December 31, 2020, the Board of Director are listed below:

o ANMKUY
Director Position

1. Uneddus nduna

Mr. Suchin Wanglee

ungdns sINSuassA
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

ns.nauds NnneInsu
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana

uNALAMY sasauun
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

ns.&8 Tunv=1oa
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa

UWEINUOR 1ISouSHUILS
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

unansns gossruanmg
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit

unglowns ouFdswWisuy
Mr.Oran Vongsuraphichet

ungs:isA [Juenuun
Mr.Tarate Poshyananda

Us=s1unssuNIs NSSUN1Sdas: lla:NssuNIsadnu
Chairman, Independent Director and Investment Committee

nssUNS ganussnisinny NSsUNNSauNU Ia=NSSUNSUSHISAOUIZEY
Director, President, Director of the Investment Committee and Director of Enterprise Risk
Management Committee

NSSUN1Sdas: Us:s1UunssUNISASI9&8oU llazUs:s1unssuNIsassmilia:ninunAImauinu
Independent Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Chairman of the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee

nssungséas: NSSUNISASIEOU NSSUNISASSHIIIA:NIKUAARINDUIINU 1a:US:S1UNSSUNISUSKHNS
AOUIFE

Independent Director, Director of the Audit Committee, Director of the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee, Chairman of Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNSBAS: NSSUNISUSHISADIFEY lla=NssunIsavnu
Independent Director, Director of the Investment Committee and Director of Enterprise Risk
Management Committee

nssuNsiia:EoBisuosMslnny IIa:NssUNISUSHASADWIFEY
Director and Senior Vice President and Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee

nssuMsiia:iEoBgsuosmslnny Ia:nssUNISUSHISADWIFEY
Director and Senior Vice President and Director of Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNIS
Director

NSSUNTSAES: NSSUNISASIEOU NSSUNSUSHISADUIALY lla:nssunisadnu
Independent Director, Director of the Audit Committee, Director of Enterprise Risk Management
Committee and Director of the Investment Committee

KUNBIKR - Us:dmvaunssunisiisiazniunansagluiovo AninssunIsia:(usnisvouusen
Note - Profile of each Director is listed on the board and company management.
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nssuNsgsunvasuuAe UNegdus nigna unegans
SINSUASSA UNEDMUIRA ISOUSAUILS 1a:UWUNBNS FOSSTu
anng asvludnulavaneiioBosoununa:us:AunsidiAny
VoJuUSEN gnIdu ua19rudA 1599SAUILS a:ulnsns
gossruanng Fuasanuiiodesounu Inebiavaiunisusén Ao
uNE10dSuNns sssuaunsni

291S:N1SAISYANINUIVOINSSUNISUSEN

TunisUs:gutjfioRuadnyUs:910nnASITKNssuNIs
oanvnAmkLINTudns1uoUKTuluaIy frgrusunssuNIS
Av:nuvoenlknsaiduanudoululifiiKeanlnugruoulnaian
Audnsiiuluany nssunisAe=fiosoonvinsinusiulisnia:
URaeunmenasonn:iGouuseniuliduaaniusnyine=eon
doullnauq srelUlinssunisauRoglusikuuuRgadudu
(joaN9INFANKLIY NSSUNMSTIUINFANKLIINRIFSUIAONA
Thdla

VOUIVASIU19KUNNVaIANUzNSSUNISUSEN

VOUIVASIUNIKLINAVOUANUNSSUNISUSEN AMKUATSAIT

1. fiAugnausenikdnisunoantnmdulmungrune
nQInfuriRineovou nnUs:aud VoUJAUVoIuSENURA
ARUENSSUNNSUSBNIA:URARUS:3ULHoRU fioonousUEn
sou Hodndgesn AUS:UAS:AY Snuwaus:luslguan
vayusun

2. WorsrumaziknouiRusauluidosndiAryineonunis
ANIUUIIUVEVUSEN 18U ddunAU Wusine ulsune nagns
NFANW 1UMHUNY IUNISANTUNAU Iaz3uUSUNUVaIUSEN
mURUheIANIsTAfa:uNauasonnu:nssunis Tnali
dONAADIAUNISNSOUNISUSHISADIFsdNa:ulounenis
USKISADUIAEY la=fAUQIANISUSHASINUIIE:WaNIS
Jpumvuveastheannis nSaunnalng FulfiSuuoUnUNY
THrinrtinAmunano welkdulunuuloungRnnu:NSSUNAS
usBNnIKUA

3. MnugIanIsAItussNaNIUUNRAVIUSEN Ia:-ARnIUWA
msufUaKtinAvauthedansegusiaition IalHIidulUunu
5dunAd wusne ulsute nagns 1UKMUNY TwuNIsAITU
Juna:guds:unruveoausen

The authorized directors on behalf of the Company are
Mr. Suchin Wanglee, Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson, Miss Navadee
Ruangrattanametee and Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit
whereby any two of them shall co-sign with the Company’s
seal affixed, except Miss Navadee Ruangrattanametee and
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit are unable to co-sign. Miss
Sirin Dhumma-upakorn acts as the Company Secretary.

Term of Office

At every annual general meeting of shareholders, one-third
of the total number of directors shall vacate office. If the
number of directors is not divisible into a multiple of three,
the number of directors nearest to one-third shall retire
from office. The directors to retire from office in the first and
second years following the registration of the Company
shall be drawn by lots. In subsequent years, the directors
who have remained in office for the longest time shall vacate
office. A vacating director may be eligible for re-election.

Term of Office

The Scope of Duties, Authorities and Responsibilities of the
Board of Directors.

1. Supervise the Company for duty performance in
accordance with laws, relevant rules, and the Company’s
objectives and Articles of Association, the resolution
of the Board of Directors, and the resolution of the
Shareholders’ Meeting, with responsibilities, honesty
and carefulness on, and maintenance of the Company’s
maximum interests.

2. Consider and give consent on the important matters
relating to the Company’s operation, such as its vision,
mission, policy, strategy, direction, target, operating
plan, and budget as prepared and proposed by the
Management to the Board of Directors consistency with
a risk management framework and a risk management
policy; and supervise the management and performance
of the Management or any persons entrusted to perform
such duties following the policy formulated by the Board
of Directors.

3. Continuously supervise the normal business operation
of the Company and monitor the duty performance of the
Management following the Company’s vision, mission,
policy, strategy, target, operating plan, and budget.
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10.

11.

12.

fnugnalidinisidaiuevoyasunisiAualanensha
S199IUNWNISHU lazvoyadIATYAINe 98 NQNADY IWe
Wa AUIDa F9d181SNU:IIa:HUSLNUNINUAUNNKIUIIA:
UINSTIURIREOTOY

dgauniuiazoylmns:usunsiia:ulounslunisusnisnoy
1594 Na:nnnIuwan1sUnUAIIUNISUSKHISADUIFUIVOY
usunlreaglus=aAunouIdusngausSuln

Wo1stunaUUsIla:/KEoWStUNEAWIAU NsN1s1eNs
iReolodiu nisrnsnensldiuna:sarungluvesaunswe
llazn1sAtunisine GI']Uﬁnf_]HU’]UIIa:thOU\]']uﬁ']ﬁUQIIa
fnuaIfaloununisrinsienisionainouTAIginwa
Us:lgyus:ndwuidoulnidoveosussn

Tﬁnoqmﬁuuounsoumsﬁflﬁu@uaﬁvmsﬁ'ﬁ||a:un0mngﬁ
INYIAUISSYIUSSIUNIAz9SUSSSUNNSSNY SOUNVIADNNS
nunounsaunsailanaNsnAIduUs:91egwtiosUa: 1 ASY

THRowiRuBoulAsyasevAnsTkTNsIUaIoNKNATUNNS
ANAURAIANAa:NISUSKHISIANTSOEWBAIRUIWSIKN1ISANAU
Allan1susHisInNsidulUaguikiun:zay

nnugia na:anlAdns:uounasia:nalnlunispouny
AAMIU I1Az0SI980U S:UUNISUSHISAIUIDY S:UUNTS
AaUAUNTEIU na:n1sUUARIUNNS:108U souivlridnoY
Jundeunainsiinawibudas:TunisufuanLih rin
rUARTUN1SMSORERUNISUZUAMUTAEU IloTHFIUTRINT
Js=ansnawiweawae liazonoulusla

IAIAIARNSSUNNSYAgaslATADIKUN:AUIA:IWEIWe
IWoatuauun1sUfUAntNAVeIAfU:NSSUNISUSEN SoU
fuWorstuimsivasuilasesAus:neula:=nmsidagunlad
AU ArYFoNSURURIILVOIANU:NSSUNISEALE AU
AOUINUN=EU

IFIAIAVIUNNSUSEN Iogualinru:nssunsuSEN URURA
rninNMUNNKUIBIIA:S:1IT8UTOUIAUMIY NINoTOY

VONUIKUNNIBIBWAINOIANSNI8UON KINiA2II0U
I[WoUs:=nounisaingulaninuizauy

10.

11.

12.

Control and oversee the disclosure of the correct,
adequate, and timely information in good corporate
governance, financial report, and key information to
public and regulatory agencies following the relevant
laws and standards.

Verify and approve the risk management process and
policy, and monitor the performance of the Company’s
risk management in the acceptable risk level.

Consider for approval and/or consider for consent on
the entry into the related parties transaction, entry into
the asset acquisition and disposal transaction, and any
executions as prescribed by laws and the regulatory
agencies to prevent the entry into the transactions that
may have a conflict of interests between the Company’s
stakeholders.

Give consent on the good corporate governance
framework and the provisions relating to the code of
business conduct, and business ethics, and regularly
review the good corporate governance framework once
ayear.

Give consent on an organizational structure for clear
segregation of the duty in an appropriate managerial
supervision.

Control, oversee, and establish a process and
mechanism for controlling, monitoring, and auditing a
risk management system, an internal control system,
and a compliance with rules, ensure an independence
in duty performance of the work units or personnel, and
perform auditing duty on the aforesaid work performance
to ensure the adequate efficiency and transparency.

Appoint the Sub-Committees to be appropriate and
adequate in order to support the duty performance of the
Board of Directors and consider a composition change
and a significant change in the work performance of the
Sub-Committees as appropriate.

Appoint the Company Secretary to supervise the
duty performance of the Board of Directors and the
Company in accordance with the relevant laws, and
rules and regulations.

Ask for professional comment from the external
organizations if necessary as support of the
appropriate decision making.
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13. Prepare Annual Report and take responsibility for
preparing and disclosing the financial statements that
show the financial position and overall operation in
the previous year and proposing to the Shareholders’
Meeting.

14. Regularly supervise an assessment of the Board of
Directors’ and Sub-Committees’ performance on a
yearly basis.

15. Approve the criteria and payment of the special
remuneration from an annual performance to the staff.

The delegation of power, duties and responsibilities of
the Board of Directors excludes the authorization or sub-
authorization of the directors or their appointees in the
approval of transactions in which they or persons with
potential conflict of interest (as defined in notification of
the Securities and Exchange Commission or notification of
the Capital Market Supervisory Board) may have a vested
interest or may obtain benefits in any form or may have any
other conflict of interest with the Company or its subsidiary,
unless it is the approval of transactions that are in line with the
policy and guideline approved by the shareholders’ meeting
or the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Scope of Duties, Authorities and Responsibilities
of the Chairman

1. Supervising and follow up the directors to perform their
duty in the scope of authorities and responsibilities
to meet the Company’s objectives and plans and
compliance with the laws and the corporate governance
principles of the Company.

2. The Board Chairman or person designated by the
Board Chairman has a duty to call for a meeting of the
Board of Directors by submitting an invitation letter at
least 7 days before the meeting date allowing directors
adequate time to fully consider board matters to be
raised at the meeting.

3. The Board Chairman determines the meeting agenda
jointly with the President.

4. The Board Chairman chairs meetings ensuring that it is
efficiently run with sufficient time for the presentation
of information and participation of all directors from
the raising of questions and opinions to the controlling
of discussions and the summation of the meeting’s
resolutions.

5. The Board Chairman plays a key role in encouraging
all directors to comply with corporate governance
principles.
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6. HoansloyadArysni o IRANNSSUNISUSBNIASUNSIU 6. The Board Chairman communicates all essential
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information to directors.

7. The Board Chairman encourages directors’ participation
in shareholders’ meetings and acts as chairman of
the meeting to control and ensure that the meeting
is efficient and to respond to all questions raised by
shareholders.

8. The Board Chairman requires the Board of Directors to
perform their duties in compliance with the laws and
the corporate governance principles of the Company.

Board of Directors Structure

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Board of Directors shall be composed of at least five, but
not more than fifteen members.

1. The board members are categorized into two types:

Type 1: classified by management into

e Executive director

¢ Non-executive director
Type 2: classified by independence into

e Independent director

e Non-independent director

2. The directors’ term of office shall be three years at a

time. At every annual general meeting of shareholders,
one-third of the total number of directors shall vacate
office. If the number of directors is not divisible into a
multiple of three, the number of directors nearest to
one-third shall retire from office. The directors to retire
from office in the first and second years following the
transformation of the Company shall be drawn by lots.
In subsequent years, the directors who have remained in
office for the longest time shall vacate office. A vacating
director may be eligible for re-election at a shareholders’
meeting.
Apart from retiring by rotation, a director shall vacate
office upon his

(1) Death;

(2) Resignation;

(3) Disqualification or possession of legally

prohibited characteristics;
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(4) Being retired by resolution of a shareholders’
meeting with votes not less than three-fourths
of total number of shareholders attending the
meeting and having voting rights, provided
that their aggregate shareholding is not less
than half of total number of shares held by the
shareholders attending the meeting and having
voting rights;

(5) Being retired by a court order.
The independent directors shall have the qualifications
as regulated by the SEC, the SET and the OIC.

The Board of Directors shall be composed of
independent directors in the number not less than
one-third of total number of the board members, but
not fewer than three persons.

The directors and executives are allowed to assume the
position of director and executive of affiliated companies
or other companies, which shall comply with regulations
of the SEC, the SET and concerned authorities and shall
be informed to the Board of Directors’ meeting.

The Board of Directors shall designate a Company
secretary, whose duties are to give advice on legal issues
and all rules and regulations necessary for the Board
of Directors, support the board activities, to coordinate
and ensure that the board resolutions are implemented,
and liaise with the shareholders, the SEC, the SET and
all regulatory bodies concerned.

Board of Directors Structure

Board of Directors Meeting

(1) The Board of Directors shall pre-determine dates
of the meeting to be held at least four times a year
(once every three months) and shall clearly specify
regular items on the meeting agenda such as
consideration and approval of reviewed/audited
financial statements, etc. The agenda other than
such regular items shall be jointly determined by the
Board Chairman, Chairman of the Executive Board
and the President as deemed crucial and necessary.
In 2020, the Board of Directors held a total of seven
meeting, in the event that the meeting is not held
monthly, the Company shall prepare and submit a
performance report to the Board of Directors on a
monthly basis to enable the Board of Directors to
continuously monitor, control and supervise the
management’s operation.
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The Board of Directors stipulates that the directors
should attend at least 75% of all board meetings
in a year. Any director who is unable to attend any
of the board meetings must inform his/her reason
for such absence to the Board Chairman at the first
opportunity and before any such meeting.

Other Subcommittees may hold a meeting to
consider the issues under their power and duties
delegated by the Board of Directors, with the
Company secretary to coordinate the meeting.

The Company Secretary has duty to prepare and
submit a letter of meeting invitation together with
meeting documents to the Board of Directors at
least seven days in advance, except for an urgent
meeting. Such documents shall only contain a
summary of the proposed issues, whereas the
confidential issue which is not to be disclosed in
writing shall be presented for discussion only at the
meeting. However, two or more directors request
to the chairman for the Board of directors’ meeting
and fix the date of meeting within fourteen days
since the date of request.

The non-executive directors may, as deemed fit and
necessary, arrange a meeting without presence of
the management, with the Company secretary to
coordinate the meeting, and shall report results of
such meeting to the executive directors.

The directors may additionally request essential
information directly from the President and the
Company secretary, including the executives
assigned to handle such matter.

At least half of the total number of directors shall
attend the Board of Directors’ Meeting to meet a
constituted quorum. In the case where the Chairman
of the Board is absent from the meeting or fails to
perform his/her duty, the director who attends the
meeting shall select one director to preside over
the meeting.

At every meeting, the executives and concerned
parties should be invited to join the meeting in order
to provide information and details as a basis for
making the right and timely decision.
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In case of a resolution by the majority vote, if a
director objects the said resolution, the objection
shall be recorded in the Minutes of Meeting.

(10) The director, with a significant gain and loss in any

mater, is not entitled to vote in the said matter.

(11) A self-evaluation is conducted on a yearly basis and

the evaluation results are proposed for discussion
at the Board of Directors’ meeting.

2. Audit Committee Meeting

In 2020, the Audit committee members held four meetings;
their main duties can be summarized as follows:

(1)

@

©)

4)

Approved quarterly financial statements and
reviewed annual financial statements of the
Company before disclosing to the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Nomination of auditors and their remuneration.
In 2020, EY Office Limited was nominated and
appointed as auditors of the Company for a further
year.

Holding of joint meetings with the external auditors
two sessions. At one meeting without the
attendance of management, a review of guidelines
and the scope of audit performance was
conducted. A review of audit plans, results,
and recommendations has been undertaken to
ensure that all audit processes are done in
a manner consistent with auditing standards.

Directing, supervising and approving internal annual
audit plans based on the Company’s risks in order
of their significance. The inspection reports are
audited to ensure that the investigation has been
completed in accordance with auditing standards.
This includes monitoring of the proposed revisions
to the internal controls system to improve efficiency
and effectiveness.

A review to ensure compliance with laws and
regulations every quarter.

A review of transaction reports relating to the parties
every quarter.
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(7) Reviewed and assessed the enterprise wide risk
management process to ensure that they were
appropriate and effective in accordance with the
global standard, obtained the audit report on the
enterprise wide risk management process from
Internal Audit Department at least annually, and
provided recommendation for the effectiveness of
the risk management process.

(8) Conducting an annual Audit Committee self-
evaluation for review and self-improvement.

(9) Provision of an annual internal control evaluation
and propose evaluation results to the Board of
Directors for approval.

3. Remuneration and Nominating Committee’s Meeting

In 2020, the Nominating and Remuneration Committee
held three meetings to select and nominate qualified
candidates to serve as directors, committee members and
top executives, to consider the remuneration and other
benefits paid to the Committee and Sub-committee, and to
consider the successor plan for the Top management, and
to review the duty and authority of the Recruitment and
Compensation Committee. It also encouraged and ensured
that the Company embraced good corporate governance in
compliance with the rules, regulations and notifications of
the regulatory authorities.

4. Investment Committee’s Meeting

In 2020, there was an Investment Committee’s meeting held
two meeting to consider annual investment plan, investment
quarterly performance, estimated investment, Investment
Policy Framework and Investment Governance Policy.

5. Enterprise Risk Management Committee’s Meeting

In 2020, The Enterprise Risk Management Committee had
four meetings. The committee reported and monitor the risk
status and change of company risk including monitoring the
progress in risk management and provide a suggestion for
improvement in order to comply with the risk management
framework and reported to the Board of Directors on a
quarterly basis.
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The names of the Board of Directors, including their meeting attendance in 2020 are given below.

FruounSuRNUs=3u / S1usunsaAu
No. of meetings attended / No. of meetings held in 2020

AfU= AfU: AfU: ANU:
NSSUN1S| NSSUNIS NSSUNS nNsSsuUN1s NSSUNIS a’lLT[y
r . . USBn | msovdau | dssha: ainu USSR | wihoAU
S1YBONSSUNIS AIIKUY Board of AIrkuA The (RN The
Board of Directors Position Directors i AIMBUIINU  |Investment The Annual
The Committee| Enterprise | General
Remuneration Risk Meeting
and Management
Nominating Committee
Committee
1. UNggIUA HAINA Us:=s1unssuns 7/7 - - 2/2 - 11
Mr. Suchin Wanglee NSSUNNSads:

lla:NssuNIsadnu

Chairman, Independent
Director and Director of the
Investment Committee

2. ms.nous nnnafsmu nssuN1sdas: Us:sau 7/7 4/4 3/3 - = 1/1
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana NSSUNISNSIVOU
11a:US=81UNSSUNISASSHN
lIa:NMMUARIRBUIINU
Independent Director,
Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Chairman of
the Remuneration and
Nominating Committee

3. U194ns sInSuassA NSSUNIS NSsUNIsadnu 77 - - 2/2 4/4 11
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson NSSUNISUSHISADUIFEN

na:wousensiney

Director, Director of the

Investment Committee,

Director of the Enterprise

Risk Management

Committee and President

4. ps.ondny Inwruna NSSUN1Sd&S: NSSUNIS 4/6 2/4 1/2 - - 0/1
Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul NSOV 1a:NSSUNISESSHN
lIla:NMHUARIRBUIINU
Independent Director,
Director of the Audit
Committee, Director of the
Remuneration and
Nominating Committee

5. uwAUAY sasuun NSSUNISO&S: NSSUNIS 7/7 4/4 3/3 - 4/4 11

Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon NSJEOU NSSUNISaSShIlla:
frnuAAIMBUINU lIa:Us:s1u
NSSUNISUSHISADUIFEY
Independent Director,
Director of the Audit
Committee, Director of the
Remuneration and
Nominating Committee and
Chairman of the Enterprise
Risk Management

Committee
6. ns.g8 lunv:1od NSSUN1Sd&s: . 6/7 - - 1/2 2/4 1/1
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa NSSUNISUSHISADUIFEN

lla:NssunNIsavnu
Independent Director,
Director of the Enterprise
Risk Management
Committee and Director of
the Investment Committee

Annual Report 2020 « ThaiRe Life Assurance PLC



Insvastnisiioiuna:n1sdnnas
Structure of Shareholders and Management

Afu: n1sus:su
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B o usen | msovdeou | dsshia: ainu USH1ISA9T | wioAU
$19BINSSUNIS ATNKUY Board of ﬂe'ﬂ’iuﬂ The Iﬁﬂd The

Board of Directors Position Directors i AIMBUINU  |Investment The Annual
The Committee| Enterprise | General
Remuneration i Meeting
and
Nominating Committee
Committee

7. UNEIMUIRA IS9ISAUILS nSsuUN1S : 777 - - - 4/4 1/1
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee 1A=NSSUNISUSHASADIFEN
Director and Director of
the Enterprise Risk
Management Committee

8. uwUNBNS gosstuanne nssuN1s ) 77 - - - 4/4 11
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit 113:NSSUNISUSHISADUIFEN
Director and Director of
the Enterprise Risk
Management Committee

9. uglowns ouAdSWIBUF NSsUN1S 7/7 - - - - 1/1
Mr.Oran Vongsuraphichet Director

10. ungs:isA [Jueguun NSSUN1SdES: NSSUNIS 777 - - 2/2 4/4 1/1
Mr.Tarate Poshyananda USHISAOUIAEN

lla:NssuNIsSadnu
Independent Director,
Director of the Enterprise
Risk Management
Committee and Director of
the Investment Committee

61uoun§dvo\ln'lsds:qun=dhun 7 4 3 2 4 1
The Total Number of the Meetings
Sova:vounisus:gy 95 92 83 88 92 90

The Average Meeting Attendance (percent)

HUNBIAR : - NSSUNSANAUR 4 TiWUINFAIKUaItiosenateen Ile3uf 5 nanAu 2563
Remarks: - The Directors No.4 has resigned from the position on October 5, 2020
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WusSn1s Management
fu SUf 31 §Uo1AU 2563 USHISVOUUSEN TU91UdU  As of December 31, 2020, the management of the Company
8 nu Al are listed below:
o AMALY
Director Position

uNedns sInSudassA
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

UNEIMUIR 1S2ISAUILS
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

uNUNBNS dossruanne
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit

uN&E1E5UNS sssuaunsi
Ms. Sirin Dhumma-upakorn

UNEIIMIUNT NIYFUIIAQA]
Ms. Duangnapa Kanchanawongwut

UNE1ENTYrY1 BUI9SIYsUN
Ms. Sukanya Yingcharoenthana

uNEIWUAT dURRDSTY
Ms. Panida Vimootti-aran

uN&a1dandu urydan
Ms. Wilasinee Bunploog

wouounastnny

President

wyosgousunsinnyuhewnunssne 1

Senior Vice President - Business Development 1
wyosgousumsirnyuhewnussne 2

Senior Vice President - Business Development 2
WyosgdgusunsirnjuheUnyBna:-n1siu, urenouauneluna:-guds:uacu /
whgusnisdinunu laztheusnisndUIFSY

Senior Vice President - Accounting and Finance / Operation Control & Budgeting /
Administration / Enterprise Risk Management

@duounisugasnu
Vice President - Investment

wausunsuheinalulag
Vice President — Information Technology

wduosnisuheonwunagns
Vice President — Strategic Planning

@ouounIsueWmUSSNY 2
Vice President — Business Development 2

HUEING ©

- @ushsdaun 4 ArsvsikuaiugusmsguantednyBia:nisiuna:suiinsounounuRialngg (srea:iden Us:dana:nisausiuusinglu

lonansiiuu 1)

- usmsanaun 7 Tiiuensikuaitiosnnateon 1dodun 31 s.n. 2563

- usMsa1AUR 8 THSUMSIFIAIMUTEGUSKIS 4 S18ISN SURA 29 W.8. 2563

- The management No.4 is the Chief Financial Officer who has primary responsibility for managing the Company'’s finance (details of the

history and training appear in Attachment 1).

- The management No.7 has resigned from the position on December 31, 2020
- The management No.8 was appointed in accordance with the definitions of the first four top-ranking executives on November 29, 2020.
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1. SuliAvou ila USKIS NMSANITUNIUNG:/MSONISUSHISIU
Js=91duveuussn soufivnisninugianissitiudulng
sow IwelkIdulunuuloune nagnsnussie I0runena:
nwuNISANTWINU 1UMMUIENNISIIU 13:9UUS=UNTUVDY
usBN AlASUBUTAINANINSSUNSUSEN as/nio AN
Js=gugnonu

2. 9ANIIWUSSY 1A:AMHUADIUNINISUSHISIIU AGDAIUIA
ruuUs=urnuntsTunisus=noussivia=iuls:unrusnesne
Us=91U iioliniauarionruznssunsussn iiovoauldsiia:
TrtihAs189UAIUAORtNAUILLIUIA=IUUSUNCURTE
SuaUUIRMINANDMDANUNSSUNISUSEN

The Scope of Duties, Authorities and Responsibilities of
President

1.

Be responsible for, supervise and manage the
Company’s day-to-day operation and/or administration,
including overall operational monitoring, to be in line with
the policy, business strategy, operational goal and action
plans, financial targets, and budgets of the Company as
approved by the Board of Directors and/or resolved by
the shareholders’ meeting.

Map out business plans, define the administration
authority and prepare the yearly budgets for business
operation and capital expenditure for the Board of
Directors’ approval, and report the actual performance
against such approved business plans and budgets to
the Board of Directors.
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10.

11.

Set out the organization structure, management
approach, and employee recruitment, training,
employment and termination of employment, and
determine employees’ wage rate, salary rate,
compensation, bonus and fringe benefits under the
framework and budgets approved by the Board
of Directors (except for the remuneration, salary,
compensation, bonus and fringe benefits for the
President and the Senior Executive Vice President which
shall be determined by the Board of Directors).

Follow up on and report the Company’s status and
position and recommend alternatives and strategies
that fit with the policy and market environment.

Supervise and control the Company’s operations in
the areas of, among others, finance, risk management,
internal control, back-office operation, and resources.

Act as representative of the Company and have authority
to contact government agencies and other regulatory
bodies.

Communicate with the public, shareholders, customers
and employees to promote a good reputation and image
of the Company.

Ensure that good corporate governance practices are
in place.

Have power to issue, amend, add and revise rules,
orders and regulations pertaining to the Company’s
operations such as employment, appointment, removal
and discipline of staff and employees, fixing of salary
and other monies including aids and welfare provision.

Consider, negotiate and approve the entering into
agreements and/or any other acts relating to the
Company’s day-to-day operation and/or administration
under the delegation of power framework approved by
the Board of Directors.

Assume any power, duty and responsibility as assigned
or under the policy designated by the Board of Directors.
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12. Have power to sub-authorize and/or assign other person
to perform any particular act on his behalf, whereby
any such sub-authorization and/or assignment shall
be within the scope of authorization specified in the
letter of attorney and/or shall conform to the rules,
regulations or orders set forth by the Board of Directors.
The said delegation of power, duties and responsibilities
of the President excludes the authorization or sub-
authorization of the President or his appointees in the
approval of transactions in which he or persons with
potential conflict of interest (as defined in notification of
the Securities and Exchange Commission or notification
of the Capital Market Supervisory Board) may have a
vested interest or may obtain benefits in any form or may
have any other conflict of interest with the Company or
its subsidiary, unless it is the approval of transactions
that are in line with the policy and guideline approved
by the shareholders’ meeting or the Board of Directors
of the Company.

The Company has documented the delegation of power to
serve as an operational handbook and a reference and to
follow the procedure in a systematic manner. The Company
determines and approve the yearly budgets which consist
of the estimated underwriting income and expenses, capital
expenditure, operating expenses, and purchase of fixed
assets.

Company Secretary

The Board of Directors appointed Ms. Sirin Dhumma-
upakorn as Company secretary from July 26, 2017.

The Company secretary is responsible for all matters relating
to Board registration, meeting letters, Board meeting reports,
annual report, shareholders meeting letters, shareholders
meeting reports, including Profits and Loss reports by the
Board or management and other transactions required by
Capital Market Supervisory Board. According to measure
89/14, the copy of the Profits and Loss report should be
presented to the Presidents of the Board and Auditor within
seven working days of receipt of the report.
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Additional duties and responsibilities include:

1. Provide regular advice to the Board of Directors in
respect of all legal and regulatory issues.

2. Organize shareholders and Board meetings in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

3. Record proceedings of shareholders and Board
meetings and ensure decisions agreed at the meetings
are implemented.

4. Follow legal and regulatory requirements in the control
and disclosure of corporate information.

5. Follow legal and regulatory requirements in respect of
Board decisions.

Remuneration for the Board of Directors
and Executives

The Board of Directors has appropriately considered the
remuneration for the directors, sub-committee and senior
management for the duties, responsibilities and participation
of each director. And can compare with other businesses
in the same industry or similar to the company. The Board
of Directors assigns the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee responsible for establishing and reviewing
criteria, policies, and forms of consideration for compensation
or other benefits to the Board of Directors and all sub-
committees for submission to the Board of Directors for
approval before proposing to the shareholders’ meeting for
approval.

The remuneration for senior executives is in accordance
with the criteria set by the Board of Directors, linked to the
annual operating results of the Company and the annual
performance of the senior executives were appropriately
to the responsibilities and sufficient to motivate to maintain
quality personnel.
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1. AmouNnuRItuAoRu 1. Monetary Remuneration

AIMDUIINUNSSUNIS Directors ‘Remuneration

Ut 2563 AmoulinUNsSUMSMUUARUS:suaJNYGHoRu  The remunerations in 2020 as the resolution of the Annual
ASUN 9 1Uodun 7 nsnN1AU 2563 [noiis1ua:dunminisy  General Meeting of Shareholders No. 9 on July 7, 2020 are

molJl listed below:
AMBUIINUSIBIRBU AYMBUINUSEIFRU
(ponnu) (pionnu)
ACUENSSUNIS Monthly Remunerations Conference fee * AdIKG9 (orinu)
Board of Directors (per person) (per person) Gratuity
Uszsaunssunas | Nssunas | Us=saunssunas | NsSsuns
Chairman Director Chairman Director
ANUNSSUNISUSEN -Tuid- -Tuid- 30,000 20,000 TUifiu 2.00 druuin dnassiFus:zsau
Board of Directors -None- -None- NSSUNISIia:NssUNIsMuUdUua:z 1&8ou

No more than 2.00 million baht
allocated to the Chairman two parts
each and other directors are allocated
one part per person.

ANUzNSSUNISASIVEOU -Tug- -Tug- 30,000 20,000 -Tug-
Audit Committee -None- -None- -None-
AMUNSSUNISASSHIIANIHUAAIRDUIINU -Tui- -Tui- 20,000 20,000 -uo-
The Remuneration and Nominating -None- -None- -None-
Committee

ACU=NSSUNISaINU -Tug- -Tug- 20,000 20,000 -Tug-
Investment Committee -None- -None- -None-
ANUENSSUNISUSHISADUIFEY -Tug- -Tuig- 20,000 20,000 -lug-
Enterprise Risk Management -None- -None- -None-
Committee

KuUEIng *An0eUs:gusRonSIMonIU 2:91elAInnssuNIsRinsouUs:yuInadu
Remark * Meeting allowance per person was paid to only the attendees of the meeting.

Amoulnunssunis’ Idusneynnalud 2563 asUlsal
In 2020, remuneration for the Board of Directors, details of which are shown in the below table:

AdoUs=suNssUNTS (UN)
Remunerations (Baht)

AfU: AfU: AfU: AfU: AfU:
gefonssunis Ao NSSUNIS NSSUN1S NSSUNIS nssums: NsSsUNs
Board of Directors NSSUN1S msovapu aunu assniiia: USH1S
Gratuit Board of Audit Investment NIMUAAI AJJIFYY
Y Directors | Committee | Committee naulinu Enterprise
Remuneration Risk
and Management
Nominating | Committee
Committee

1. u1ggIus WO 380,954 150,000 - 40,000 - - 570,954

Mr. Suchin Wanglee
2. ms.nous nnneafismu 190,476 100,000 120,000 - 60,000 - 470,476

Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana
3.  U19gns sINSuassA 190,476 100,000 - 40,000 - 80,000 410,476

Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson
4. ms.onsny Inwsuna 190,476 40,000 40,000 - 20,000 - 290,476

Dr. Apirak Thaipatanagul
5.  uwWAUAY sasuUn 190,476 100,000 80,000 - 60,000 80,000 510,476

Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon
6. ms.g8 lunv:iod 190,476 80,000 - 20,000 - 40,000 330,476

Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa
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AfU=
NSSUN1S
usen
Board of
Directors

AUIKGD
NSSUMS
Gratuity

s1eBonssunis
Board of Directors

7. UNUQBNS dossruanng 190,476 100,000
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit

8. UN&9rU9A 1S9ISHUIUS 190,476 100,000
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

9. ungs:sA [Wueuun 142,857 100,000
Mr.Tarate Poshyananda

10. unglowns ouFdsWIBUY 142,857 100,000
Mr.Oran Vongsuraphichet
Sou 2,000,000 970,000
Total

KUEInG : AMmaUINUNSSUNIS TisouAmauINUTUgIU:EUSHIS

*BUNSSUNIS (Vlg)]
Remunerations (Baht)

ANU: AU AU AU:
NSsSUN1S NSsSUN1s NSsSUN1s NSsSUN1s
NSIVEdOU aunu dassnnaz UShs
Audit Investment [ MKHuUAAT ADIFEY
Committee | Committee naulinu Enterprise
Remuneration Risk
and Management
Nominating | Committee
Committee
- - - 80,000 370,476
- - - 80,000 370,476
- 40,000 - 80,000 362,857
- - - - 242,857
240,000 140,000 140,000 440,000 3,930,000

Note : The remuneration for committee did not include in the remuneration as the management.

A1MBUIINUGUSHIS

TuU 2563 UsBNIRIIWAMBUINUUS:NBUAMIY NUIRBUIA:
TutalAnugusrisduou 8 sne souNvau 31.48 &ruuin

2. Armoulnudu
AMDUIINUNSSUNTS
- Tui-
ANMOUINUBULUSHNS

Tul 2563 USBNIAFATKTNoINUANSOUIALIBWIKIN
gushns Buidumsdneaununanuaisouiasdwludnsidou
Sowa: 5-10 vouulsiau TNUGUSKISIUoU 8 s1e 10UTUoU
2.23 d1uun

Executives’ Monetary Remuneration

In 2020, the Company paid the remuneration, including
salary and bonus, to the eight executives with a total of 31.48
million baht.

2. Other Remunerations
Directors ‘Remuneration

- None -

Other remunerations for executives

In 2020, the Company provided the provident fund for the
Company’s executives with 5-10 percent contribution on
their salary, to the eight executives with a total contributed
2.23 million baht.
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Fauouwlnuiuvedusen Tnesds:nuddn 910A (WKL)

U SUf 31 SUoTAL 2563 G9UoUNYAU 53 AU NBNITUFIUOU
wanvauluruosgviunan s

Human Resources

The total number of employees as at December 31, 2020
was 53, employees working on each core business line is
listed below:

lwun FauouWUINIIU
Department No. of Employees

Wusn1s - Management

WsJU18SN9 - Business Development
2IlwuNagns - Strategic Planning
WrUNWanAnuri - Product Development
dluayuioya - Data Support
Wa1stunSuls:Nune - Underwriting

UryBna:n1snu - Accounting & Finance

nouAUMeluIia:yuls:untu - Operation Control & Budgeting

USKH1sdUNIIU - Administration

ainu - Investment

USHISAOWIAEY - Enterprise Risk Management
inAlulagiansauinf - Information Technology
USHISIIa=WAUNNUUBE - Human Resource
nsovaoUNEIU - Internal Audit
puan1suquAnIuNNnuIe - Compliance
n1smatANIaan - Alternative Marketing

SOUNVEU - Total

ARNBUIINUWUNIIU

usenidulgurg19AIMBUINUWUNIIUNNS:AUDE Y
IKUNzaunazIidusssy MIUANUYAT ADIUS ADIUAIUSA lla:
Uszaunisnilunasrinau Ine@ensrunnmissnerimouinuniu
s:9:4U lazs:u:619  [ngAmauinulus:o:aulu USBNAKUA
TAON1sWorsturUsuIwuansduifiouUs:910voawlininu
mUNs:uoUN1SAGAIU TUsula na:10usssu 8arann1sInan
MDUIINUIILU Pay for Performance Ineduniuwanisujumuiu
voywunuuidusieuana wiunisUs:10u Key Performance
Indicator (KPI) $uningnaniiuuuuadan [ngisuaIns:AuusEn
AuUISIAUEIENIU W18 Iwun Ia:wUNJMUAIUEIAU 18NS
Us:1u Competency RaonA3oIAUIAIUSSSUNANVaIUSEN
dournmouinulus:g:ze100U USBNIGWANSTUNTYANINIWYY
winuauwaunasUs:I0u Competency AUSENUALNTETUNAS
fruRnURNoKtNTUaNEBWYOIWINIIU UDNAINTUSEN
galdrhnisadsoermmeununuusBndusiunduus=Aunuidus:
gz IWoSNW la:1asuasun0UaIUSnTUNISINGTUSNUUSHAS
nuuuugtAnuusEn

4
6
3

=

N D O W W N W o o O

53

Employees’ Remuneration

The Company has reasonable and fair remuneration policy
for every level of employees, based on their educational
background, knowledge, skill, and work experience and
pays them both short and long term remuneration. For
short term one, the Company has clear and transparent
process to determine yearly salary increase, based on Pay
per Performance principle; which takes each employee’s
performance evaluation, through Key Performance Indicator
(KPI), into consideration. The KPI is transferred from top
to bottom, starting from corporate level down to division,
department, section and employee. In addition, competency
is also assessed in accordance with the Company’s core
culture. For long term remuneration, the Company considers
each employee’s potentiality through competency
assessment, which is used in determining advancement
in career path. Apart from this, the Company periodically
surveys the remuneration of other companies in the
insurance group in order to maintain and strengthen its
competitiveness in managing human capital.
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AMOUINUSOUVaIWUNUUUDNInTOINRUIRDUAIUUNG
1d0 gubadannisduduls:nousios Tuda 1FuaununeInu
drsoviasudwivvaunuludnsiSosa: 5 - 10 Vuogiuone
31U ANSNuIWeIUNa ANGeUs:AUgVNIW ANTeUs:UBIR
AEUs:AUQURAINA RUAUNUNaINUNAINUIA:US:AUAIAU U
aunulasiniswads:losuwuniiu N1sUs=Nuddn auRINAIa:
avnw soufivAalEgeluniswsuununains Tul 2563 usen
TegreAmauInUlAInwinIUFIUOUNIEU 79 &ruuin Tnei
VoyamumswavrolUl

Apart from salaries, the remuneration package includes
bonuses, financial aids, employee provident fund to
which the Company contributes five to ten percent of the
individual employees’ salary depending on years of
service, healthcare, health insurance premiums, life
insurance, accident insurance, contribution to
compensation and social security funds, retirement
benefit, training and development, other employee
expenses and personnel development. In 2020,
The Company paid Baht 79 million for employee
remuneration, details of which are as follows:

ANRMDUIINUVOIWUINIIU aauunn
Employees expenses THB Million

NuIfdUIIazANISY - Salary and wage

NuUs:Nu&uAu - Social security fund

|\‘1uaununhnaur!ua"'\saalﬁaaz?w (fludouveuussn) - Contribution to provident fund

waus:lgsuravoanv1nunu - Defined benefit plans
AMOUIINUAUN - Other benefits

Sou

ulsureniswaiulunans

u§Gnms:nGn||a:Tﬁﬂ0'1ua°'1rTryﬁu|§a\1mstmmqna'ms
iPuagnuun IneliwineulsiwsuuaAnu:RgIdulunsrinau
soufiNIsInsunIUWSauIanoURnoKtinluagedw Iny
usunlwanuiuvanmwuwaundusigunna (Individual
Development Plan) Gawlinuiu WUUAUUNYYBI NUDYITUUSHNS
la:wauInuUUUUE 2:souNuN1sAnuAsUIUY Kangmsnns
Weuun lazUs:z1iduwan1swaundnSuwananuiisia:zAu uonain
U uSBNaVIATNUNNsANuNS:ALUSTYrYInTunangmsaV3s
A910u THInwanuusoy

Tut 2563 wunvulnSUNIStinaUsUIIUIU 52 AU 91UDU
150 nangms dusUMNInuUm 2,141.5 89luy 8oluvousuioas 41
BoluumowlUnuiunInsSunisausurtvAu

68.88
0.36
4.27
2.22
3.34

79.07

Human Resource Development Policy

The Company attaches a high level of importance to human
resource to develop essential skills that are appropriate
to their role and career advancement. The Company
encourages the employees to develop Individual
Development Plan and; with the support of each
employee’s boss together with the human capital
management and development, incorporates it into
a proper type of development. In addition, the Company
also provides scholarship for employees to pursue their
master degree in relevant fields.

In 2020, the Company assigned 52 employees to attend
150 training courses 2,141.5 all training hours, 41 average
training hours per employee on training,
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uenintiovNiuuuluNMsWinuyAaNsmILUNARNEND
fuvuAundo tud 2563 10 usenduduiasunisiSaugnaon
%9 (lifelong learning) lnswdnuiudaiuisnidoniSsunangns
Anulevaulouaniktioonnuuuni neldinwanweosuRusen
fnum IWonIsiasunnu:lny (upskill) N1sIWUANUY:THURA
F20u (reskill) Fadunsvenslaninl duasSuMsISuUs 1R
Anu:Tnq na:guanusionanssu Knowledge Sharing IWolH
WUNVUEWNSNSUWY lanilasunou§Trnuonifouwdnuiu
naz3ngnsmguen TuussenARasuassA NuAdUSAIRYD
AussiaUs:AUBIm, N1sUSU mindset (NsouAdWAR) IJUsU
Wolhwseusunisilasunlay nazidudountiviunisiuindeu
avAnsia=ssNvlAaunsnUsuMoNazausnivavuls

msAsUAUNIETUNa:NISUSHISIANISAIESY
1. asunoIuIRuvesAmINSSUNISUSBNIRBIAUS:UUNIS
AauAuMeluvesusen

TunsUs=yUANIENSSUNNSVOIUSEN ASIA 1/2564 IodUR
19 NUNWUS 2564 HuNSSUNISMSOEOUNY 3 MUINNSOU
Js:gunoe Aruznssunisiaus:idus:uunispouauneiu Ing
nsdnnulieyasntheusms ISIKhA IazruiosauRineavoy
fus:uunisnouAuNIgluvaIusSENlusMUAINY A

n1sAoUANNEIUDIANS
nsUs:I0UAWIZSY
N1sAdUAUNISURUAIU
s:uuansauinAia:nisdoansioya

o > 0 n o=

S:UURMARMIY

AfUNSsSUNTSTAoWIRUGY USBNTs:uUNsAUALNETU
RlWgawola:inun:audnsuidounisrinssnssunugiiou
sne/lnny NssUMS GUSKNS lazunARaningoveIAUUANAMINGND
8nAJ USBNs:uun1snouAUNEIUTUAoTedU RilaIwana:
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Apart from human development plan as above mentioned
in 2020, the Company also promotes lifelong learning
to employees. They can choose to take courses of their
interest apart from their regular work under the
platform specified by the Company for enhancing new
skills (upskill), adding new necessary skills (reskill) to
expand the worldview. And continued to do knowledge
sharing activities so that employees could listen and
exchanging new knowledge from other employees
and external speakers under the creative atmosphere.
Including knowledge about the life insurance business,
mindset adjustment (conceptual framework), etc.
All of this is to be ready for change and to be part of
driving organizations and businesses to be adaptable
and competitive.

Internal Control and Risk Management

1. Summary of the Board of Directors’ Opinion
Regarding Internal Control System

At the Board of Directors meeting No.1/2020 on February
19, 2020 in which the three Audit Committee members also
participated, the Board of Directors assessed the Company’s
internal control system and inquired the management, staff
members and concerned units about various pillars of the
internal control system, including

Control environment
Risk Assessment

Control Activities

> w0 b=

Information & communication
5.  Monitoring Activities

The Board of Directors deemed that the Company’s internal
control system was adequate and appropriate for entering
into transactions with the major shareholders, directors,
executives and related persons of the foregoing persons.
As well, other pillars of the internal control system were
adequate and could allow for the Company to operate
business under good corporate governance principles and
with transparency.
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In addition, the Board of Directors has entrusted the Audit
Committee with power and duties to review and ensure that
the Company has a sound and effective internal control
and internal audit system and abides by the law governing
securities and exchange, the SET’s regulations or the laws
applicable to the Company’s business. The Audit Committee
must hold a meeting at least once a quarter to review and
ensure correctness of the Company’s financial reporting and
to consider and make certain that the Company’s connected
transactions or transactions with potential conflict of interest
are correct and compliant with the applicable laws and the
notifications and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, the Capital Market Supervisory Board, the
Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange of Thailand,
the Stock Exchange of Thailand and other concerned
authorities. Audit committee agreed with the Company’s
board of directors and auditor.

2. Opinion of the Audit Committee that Is Different from
the Board of Directors or the Auditor’s Observation
Regarding Internal Control

The Audit Committee provided opinion consistent with that
of the Board of Directors and the auditor.

3. Head of Internal Audit Unit

The Company has established Department of Internal Audit
which is under the direct supervision of the Audit Committee
with full authority to appoint, dismiss and transfer Head of
Internal Audit Department.

The Audit Committee monitors the operational activities of
the Head of the Internal Audit Department. The Committee
supports training program for the Department’s Head to
ensure that he or she obtains skills and knowledge
appropriate for the role of internal auditor. Ms.Phanida
Arkad-amnuay, is the Head of Internal Audit Unit.

During the year, the Internal Audit Department performed
the audit according to the audit plan approved by the Audit
Committee and providing advice on internal control, risk
management and overseeing various departments in the
company and regularly report to the Audit Committee every
quarter.
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4. Head of Compliance Unit

The Company has established a compliance department,
which was approved by the Board of Directors on October
10, 2014. The Department will be under supervision of the
Audit Committee. Ms.Cholthicha Arayamaytheekul, act as
the head of Compliance department.

During the year, the department performed compliance
monitoring and report to the audit committee to review on a
regular basis every quarter.
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Corporate Governance Policies

The Board of Directors of Thaire Life Public Company Limited
is aware of its role and responsibility as leader of the
organization and remains steadfast in conducting business
under the corporate governance principles. The Company
itself encourages the creation of innovation that can add
value for shareholders, employees, customers, business
partners and all groups of stakeholders. This is for the
stakeholders to rest assured that the Company has the
ability to compete and adapt to changes, while taking
account of code of ethics and long-term social and
environmental impacts to ultimately create sustainable
value for the organization.

The Board of Directors has established the corporate
governance policy for the directors, executives and
employees to adhere to in performing their duties,
as follows:

1. The Board of Directors plays a crucial role in defining
objectives which could lead to sustainable value
creation including business, customer, stakeholders,
and sustainable society by setting the Company strategy
and policies to attain the objectives and goals as well as
monitoring, evaluating, and reporting on performance.

2. The Board of Directors perform dedicated and
responsibility, independent and clearly define the roles
and responsibilities of chairman and chief executive
officer and monitor management’s proper performance
of its duties.

3. The Board of Directors, executives and employees
must perform duties with commitment, responsibility
and integrity by upholding the corporate governance
principles and the code of ethics and conduct along
with company regulations in their work.

4. The Board of Directors must put in place a nomination
process to ensure that qualifications of nominated
directors, executives and employees are sufficient
to drive the organization forward towards goals, as
well as set an effective compensation structure and
performance evaluation and provide skill and
knowledge development for every departments in the
company on a regular basis.
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5. The Board of Directors should ensure that the company
has risk management and internal control system and
monitor conflicts of interest that might occur between
the company and stakeholders. The board should also
prevent the inappropriate use of corporate assets,
information and opportunities.

6. The Board of Directors must ensure the integrity of the
company’s financial reporting process to be timely,
accurate disclosure and trustworthy information
regarding to regulatory requirements, accounting
standard and the company procedure.

7. The Board of Director must encourage shareholders’
participation, ensure equitable treatment of shareholders
and shareholders’ rights to access information with
appropriate channels of communication with the
Company by providing the investor relations services to
facilitate proper, equal and timely communication with
shareholders and other stakeholders.

8. The Board of Directors, executives and employees must
adhere to the anti-corruption policy. The Company has
communicated this policy within the organization and
the outsiders to ensure it is translated into practice

9. The Board of Directors must encourage create a
corporate innovation culture that creates value for the
company and its shareholders together with benefits
for its customers, other stakeholders, society, and the
environment, in order to support sustainable growth of
the company.

Compliance with THREL’s corporate governance policy

ﬁa|ﬂuﬁaﬁﬁv§mﬁéﬂﬁmiumsUs:lUuwanﬁsu§Hw35mnﬂs§sﬁv is a key indicator to measure the business management
VOUANU=NSSUNISUSEN ushis soufivnisus:iduwanisUuia  performance of the Board of Directors and executives and
JuvaIwunIunNNAU to evaluate the performance of all employees.
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The Company encourages compliance with the corporate
governance principles and code of business ethics and
communicates with the directors, executives and employees
to ensure that they would realize and acknowledge the
significance of corporate governance and ethics and that
all employees have studied, familiarized themselves with,
and signed to acknowledge the corporate governance
and ethics as a guideline for their operation. Moreover, the
Company has to maintain corporate governance policies on
its website and regularly monitors the compliance program in
general. An assigned working party must report all updates
and progresses to the Board of Directors. For instance, the
Audit Committee has been entrusted with duties to monitor
issues concerning a conflict of interest, internal control and
audit, and compliance with laws and regulations prescribed
by relevant authorities, and to regularly report the Board of
Directors on a quarterly basis. The Company secretary is
responsible for reporting on securities holding by directors
and executives and informing the results thereof to the Board
of Directors on a quarterly basis; and so on.

Subcommittees

1. The Board of Directors may form Subcommittees in
various aspects of concerns to assist in studying and
scrutinizing details of particular matters. Qualifications
and scope of duties and responsibilities of each
committee shall be clearly defined.

For each board-level committee, a meeting shall be
convened to assess the performance or review all
policies at least once a year.

2. The Board Chairman shall not act as either chairman
or member of the Subcommittees so as to ensure that
each committee can truly exercise their independent
judgment.

List of Subcommittee Members and the Scope of Duties
and Authorities

To enhance efficiency in business administration and
supervision, the Board of Directors has appointed
subcommittees to specially oversee and follow up on the
routinely important activities or the activities that need close
attention. There are four subcommittees at present, namely
the Audit Committee, the Enterprise Risk Management
Committee, the Investment Committee and the
Remuneration and Nominating Committee. Their structures
and responsibilities are clearly identified as follows:
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on November 5,
2012, consisting of three independent directors. The Audit
Committee’s term is three years. As at December 31, 2020,
its existing members are listed below:

%o ANNIKUY
Name Position

1. ms.nauds NORYINSHU
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana

2. UNAUATY §asiuun
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

3. ungs:sr [Juoauun
Mr.Tarate Poshyananda
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Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee

NSSUNNSAAS:IIa:NSSUNISNSIdoU
Independent Director and Audit Committee

NSSUNISAES:IIa:NSSUNISNSIVEDU
Independent Director and Audit Committee

There are two members of the Audit Committee, namely
Dr.Kopr Kritayakirana and Mr.Tarate Poshyananda, who
has accounting and financial knowledge, was assigned to
examine and oversee the Company’s operation, financial
reporting, internal control system, external auditor selection,
and conflict of interest.

Ms. Phanida Arkad-Amnuay, Internal Audit Manager, serves
as the secretary of the Audit Committee.

Term of Office

Chairman and members of the Audit Committee are in office
for a term of three years. The chairman and members who
retire by rotation upon the end of each term of office could
be reappointed to serve on the Audit Committee.

The Scope of Duties and Authorities

1. To review and ensure the accuracy and adequate
disclosure of the Company’s financial reports in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards by
collaborating with the Company’s external auditor and
executives who are in charge of financial reporting on
a quarterly and yearly basis.

2. To recommend the auditor, during the course of
auditing the Company’s accounts, to review or examine
any transactions deemed necessary and significant.
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To Review and assess to ensure the appropriateness,
effectiveness and accordance with international
standards of the Company’s internal control, internal
audit systems, and risk management systems, provide
opinion on the Company’s internal control assessment
report to the Board of Directors, assess the
independence of the internal audit unit, define the
authority and responsibility of the internal audit unit,
recommend the appointment, rotation and termination
of employment of heads of the internal audit unit or any
other units in the Company involved with internal audit
functions, approve the internal audit charter, the audit
plans, budgets and resource plan for the internal audit
unit and consider the appropriate scope or resource
limitations and the remuneration of heads of the internal
audit unit.

To review and ensure the Company’s compliance with
the law governing securities and exchange, including
notifications of the Securities and Exchange Commission,
notifications of the Capital Market Supervisory Board,
notifications of the Board of Governors of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, regulations of the office of
insurance commission and any other laws applicable to
the Company’s business.

To consider, select and recommend appointment of an
independent person to serve as the Company’s auditor,
propose remuneration for the Company’s auditor,
and participate in a meeting with the auditor, without
presence of the management, at least once a year.

To consider the connected transactions, assets
acquisition/disposal transactions or transactions
with potential conflict of interest and ensure their
correctness and compliance with the laws, notifications
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, the Capital Market Supervisory Board,
the Board of Governors of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, and the Stock Exchange of Thailand
including other concerned authorities, to make
certain that these transactions are reasonable and
bring about the maximum benefit to the Company.
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8.

To prepare the Audit Committee’s performance report,
duly signed by the Audit Committee Chairman, for
publishing in the Company’s annual report, including
at least the following information:

(@) Opinion on accuracy, completeness and reliability
of the Company’s financial reports;

(b) Opinion on adequacy of the Company’s internal
control system;

(c) Opinion on compliance with the law governing
securities and exchange, notifications and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, the Capital Market Supervisory
Board, the Board of Governors of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, including any other laws applicable to
the Company’s business;

(d) Opinion on appropriateness of the auditor;

(e) Opinion on transactions with possible conflict of
interest;

() Number of meetings convened by the Audit
Committee and meeting attendance by each Audit
Committee Member;

(9) Opinion or observation in overall received by the
Audit Committee from a discharge of duty under
the charter;

(h) Any other transactions that should be disclosed to
the shareholders and general investors within the
scope of duties and responsibilities designated by
the Board of Directors.

To perform any other task as assigned by the Board of
Directors with the Audit Committee’s consent.

Provide recommendation to management and report to
the Board of Directors in case of whether the following
actions will occur

(@) Transactions with possible conflict of interest;

(b) Fraud, corruption, strangeness or significant
weakness of internal control systems;

(c) Violation of laws applicable to the Company’s
business.

If the corrective action could not complete within Audit
Committee deems appropriate. The Audit Committee shall
report to the Office of the Insurance Commission or the SEC
without delay.
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1. uwAUME sasauun
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

2. ms.g8 lunv=1od
Mr. Sutee Mokkhavesa

3. U19aNs sINSJEssA
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

4, UNaI0URA ISDISHUILE
Ms. Navadee Ruangrattanametee

5. UUNBNS ossruanng
Mrs. Nutchakorn Suwansathit

6. ungszsA [Juwoauun
Mr. Tarate Poshyananda
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Enterprise Risk Management Committee

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee was
established on December 1, 2012, consisting of Director,
independent directors and executive director. The Board
of Directors appoints the Enterprise Risk Management
Committee from among directors. The Enterprise Risk
Management’s term is three years. As at December 31,
2020, existing members are listed below:

%o ANNIKLY
Name Position

US:S']UﬂSSUﬂ']SU§H"ISﬂO'1UI§I:U\l
Chairman of Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNMSUSKNSAOWIRDY
Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNISUSMSAOWIFEY
Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNISUSMSAOWIFEY
Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNMSUSKHNSAOWIADY
Enterprise Risk Management Committee

NSSUNISUSMISAOWIFEY
Enterprise Risk Management Committee

The Scope of Duties and Authorities

1.

Oversee the Company’s enterprise risk management
framework and policy which covers strategic risk,
insurance risk, market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
operational risk, reputation risk, information technology
risk, catastrophe risk, emerging risk, group risk, and
other risks as deemed appropriated, and submit to the
Board of Directors for approval.

Assess the overall adequacy, efficiency, and
effectiveness of current risk management as well as
the accuracy and appropriateness of the Company’s
Enterprise Risk Management framework.

Meet at least once in every quarter to monitor the
Company'’s risk status, risk profile, and progress of risk
management and make recommendations to ensure the
ongoing alignment with the Company’s Enterprise Risk
Management Framework and Policy and report back to
the Board of Directors at least once in every quarter.

Monitor key activities and all material enterprise risks
and ensure that the Company operates in accordance
with its Enterprise Risk Management Framework and
Policy.
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5. Review the Enterprise Risk Management and Own Risk
and Solvency Assessment report and submit to the
Board of Directors for approval.

6. Prepare a contingency plan to respond to unexpected
events.

7. Perform other duties and responsibilities delegated by
the Board of Directors.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee was established on February
25, 2014, consisting of directors or executives and
personnel with knowledge, skill and experience in investment
management, risk management or securities analysis.
The Board of Directors appoints the Investment Committee
from among the directors, executives or external personnel.
The Investment Committee’s term is three years. As at
December 31, 2020, existing members are listed below:

o ANNIKLY
Name Position

1. UNEIUA KHINE
Mr. Suchin Wanglee

2. U1gans sINSJEssA
Mr. Sutti Rajitrangson

3. ugs:sA [Jveuun
Mr. Tarate Poshyananda

4. ps.gs lunv=1od
Dr. Sutee Mokkhavesa

VouIvAduNPnlinNvaIATuzNSSUNIsadnu
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nssuNIsanu
Investment Committee

nNssuN1sainu
Investment Committee

NsSsuUNISavnu
Investment Committee

nssuNIsadnu
Investment Committee

The Scope of Duties and Authorities

1. Toformulate an investment policy framework, covering
investment and other business activities of life insurance
companies as stipulated in notification of the Insurance
Commission, and submit it to the Board of Directors for
approval.

2. To consider and approve the Company’s investment
plan that is aligned with the investment policy framework
and risk management policy framework.

3. Tomonitorand ensure that investments and investment
fund management are in conformity with the investment
policy framework, overall risk management policy,
rules and procedures for investment, and relevant legal
provisions.

4. To monitor corporate governance, transparency,
and prevention of conflict of interest associated with
investment transactions of the Company.

5. To monitor work systems, personnel and data used for
the Company’s investments and ensure that they are
adequate for the operation.
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6. To report results of the investments to the Board of
Directors on a regular basis.

7. To perform any other task or the task under its authority
and responsibility as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Remuneration and Nominating Committee

The Remuneration and Nominating Committee was
established on February 26, 2015, consisting of three
members of Independent Director. The Board of Directors
appoints the Remuneration and Nominating Committee
from Independent Directors. The Remuneration and
Nominating Committee’s term is three years. As at
December 31, 2020, existing members are listed below:

o ALY
Name Position

1. ms.naus nnmneInstu
Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana

2. UnAUAY §aS'1uuri
Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

3. 9YS:nINNISESSHN
In the process of recruiting.

voulvadIu19nlanna:A9IuSUIABOUVIIANIENSSUNAIS
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1. JIUAIUESSH
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(A) WISTUIESSHINSSUNISIA:NSSUNISEAYaulnY
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NssUN1sdas:ia:Us:s1unssuNIsassHiliazNIKUAAIRDUINU
Independent Director and Chairman of the Remuneration and Nominating Committee

NSSUNISI&S:IIazNSSUNISASSHIIAzNTMUARIADUINU
Independent Director and Remuneration and Nominating Committee

NSSUNNSA&S:IIa:NSSUNISASSHIIa:NTHUARIABUIINU
Independent Director and Remuneration and Nominating Committee

The Scope of Duties and Authorities

1. Nomination

(@) To determine and recommend the structure, size,
composition, and qualification of the Board of
Directors and subcommittees.

(b) To determine policy, criterion, qualification, and
nominating procedures for appointing directors and
subcommittee members to replace the outgoing
members.

() To recruit and nominate the directors and
subcommittee members from the qualified
candidates and submit the lists to the Board of
Directors for approval and/or propose them to
the meeting of shareholders for approval, as the
case may be.

(d) Ensure that the board has the appropriate size
and composition in accordance with the policy
framework set by the board of directors. Including
adjustments to be in line with the changing
environment
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To determine and review authority and duties of the
nominating to appropriate and comply with legal,
regulations and regulatory agencies such as OIC,
SET and SEC etc.

To select, screen and propose a qualified person to
assume the position of President when it becomes
vacant.

To propose the criteria and succession plan for key
management for Board of Director’s consideration.

Top management means president and executive president.

2. Remuneration

(@)

To determine a policy and structure of remuneration
and other benefits for directors, board advisors,
and subcommittee members of the Company
that are subject to transparent criteria and are
commensurate with their responsibilities, taking
into account duties, responsibilities and related
risks and focusing on increase in shareholders’
equity in the long term.

To determine a policy on remuneration of top
management that is consistent with the Company’s
overall performance and the performance of that
executive.

To determine annual remuneration of the Board of
Directors and subcommittee members and propose
it to the meeting of shareholders for approval.

To determine annual remuneration of the individual
top management and propose it to the Board of
Directors for approval.

To determine and review authority and duties of the
remunerating to appropriate and comply with legal,
regulations and regulatory agencies such as OIC,
SET and SEC etc.

3. Others

(@)

To perform any other duties as assigned by the
Board of Directors.
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Nomination and Appointment of Directors and Top
Management
Nomination and Appointment of Independent Directors

The Company sets out criteria for selection process of
independent directors. A candidate must meet the
qualifications for director nomination of the Company as well
as the qualifications of ‘Independent Director’ as defined by
the SEC, SET and OIC, these qualifications are as follows;

Definition of Independent Director

“Independent Director” of the Company means a person who
possesses the complete qualifications and has the minimum
independency as required under the Notification of the Board
of Governors of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and Office
of Insurance Commission as follows:

1. An independent director must not hold more than 1%
of the total number of shares with voting rights of the
Company, parent company, subsidiaries, associated
companies or any other juristic persons who may have
a conflict of interest, inclusive of number of shares held
by his/her related persons.

2. An independent director must not be a director who
takes part in management, an employee, a staff
member or an advisor who receives a regular salary, or
a controlling person of the Company, parent company,
subsidiaries, associated companies or subsidiaries
of the same rank or juristic persons who may have a
conflict of interest, unless the foregoing relationship
already ended for at least two years before the date of
appointment as the Company’s independent director.

3. An independent director must not have relationship,
whether by blood or by legal registration, in the form
of fatherhood, motherhood, spouse, sibling and child
as well as child’s spouse of the executives, major
shareholders, controlling persons or persons to be
nominated as executives or controlling persons of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

4. An independent director must not have nor have ever
had a business relationship with the Company, its parent
company, subsidiary, associate, major shareholder or
controlling person, in a manner that may interfere with
his/her independent judgment, and neither is nor has
ever been a significant shareholder or controlling person
of any person having a business relationship with the
Company, its parent company, subsidiary, associate,
major shareholder or controlling person, unless the
foregoing relationship has ended not less than 2 years
prior to the date of becoming an independent director
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The term “business relationship” in the preceding paragraph
shallinclude any normal business transaction, rental or lease
of immovable property, transaction relating to assets or
services or granting or receipt of financial assistance through
receiving or extending loans, guarantees, providing assets
as collateral, and any other similar actions, which result
in the applicant or his/her counterparty being subject to
indebtedness payable to the other party in the amount of 3%
or more of the net tangible assets of the applicant or twenty
million baht or more

5. An independent director must not be or have been an
auditor of the Company, parent company, subsidiaries,
associated companies or juristic persons who may have
a conflict of interest, and must not be a major shareholder,
non-independent director, executive or managing
partner of an audit firm which employs auditors of the
Company, parent company, subsidiaries, associated
companies or juristic persons who may have a conflict of
interest, unless the foregoing relationship already ended
for at least two years before the date of appointment as
the Company’s independent director.

6. An independent director must not be or have been a
professional advisor including legal advisor or financial
advisor who receives an annual service fee exceeding
2 million baht from the Company, parent company,
subsidiaries, associated companies or juristic persons
who may have a conflict of interest, and, in case the
professional advisor is a juristic person, must not be
or have been a major shareholder, non-independent
director, executive or managing partner of the
professional advisor, unless the foregoing relationship
already ended for at least two years before the date of
appointment as the Company’s independent director.

7. An independent director must not be appointed as
a representative of the Company’s director, major
shareholder or shareholders who are related to the
Company’s major shareholder.

8. An independent director must not undertake any
business in the same nature and in competition with
the business of the Company or its subsidiary, nor be
a significant partner in a partnership or director with
management authority, employee, staff member or
advisor who receives salary or holds shares exceeding
1% of the total number of shares with voting rights of
another company which undertakes business in the
same nature and in competition with the business of
the Company or its subsidiary.
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9. An independent director must not have any other
characteristics which make him/her incapable of
expressing independent opinions with regard to the
Company'’s business affairs. After being appointed an
independent director possessing the characteristics as
defined in the first paragraph, the independent directors
may be assigned by the Board of Directors to make a
collective decision on any activities of the Company,
parent company, subsidiary companies, associated
companies, subsidiary companies of the same rank,
major shareholders or persons with control power in
the Company.

In the case where the person appointed by the Company
as an independent director has or used to have business
relationship or provides or used to provide professional
service in the amount exceeding the value specified in
Clause 4 or Clause 6, the Company shall be granted a
waiver of the prohibition from such business relationship
or professional service which exceeds the specified
value after the Company 1) has sought the Board of
Directors’ opinion which is expressed in such a way that the
appointment of such person has no impact on the discharge
of his/her duty and the rendering of his/her independent
opinion, and 2) has disclosed the following information in
the notice of the shareholders’ meeting on the agenda item
regarding the consideration and appointment of independent
directors:
(1) Nature of the business relationship or professional
service which causes such person to fail to meet
the specified qualifications;

(2) Reasons and necessity to allow such person
to remain or be appointed as the independent
director; and

(3) The Board of Directors’ opinion on the nomination
of such person for appointment as the independent
director.

The Board of Directors has considered, with due care, that
all independent directors fully meet the qualifications set
forth by the Company and their resuming in such position
for several consecutive terms does not have any impact on
the discharge of their duty and provision of independent
opinions.

Annual Report 2020 « ThaiRe Life Assurance PLC



nasnafuananInis
Corporate Governance

msassmnssumsua:w:u§mss:ﬁuc:_l\l
naninrurAalunasAnIdonnssunas

USBNTNISINAYANIZNSSUNNSASSHAIAATKUAAN
moulinu  IWeWosrunAnIZennssunis Tnednanincurilu
n1sassn1 WasruI9INanuruN1sUs:naussnala:nagns
Vouustn HlArrunAaUURVoINSSUNSAGOINISASSHN
RUAOWInLN:aUNa:donndadnunagnsTunisAIdussnavead
usBn IneWarstunAnu:RFITURSIVIRag Inuldnnsty Board
Skill Matrix 10uveyaus:noun1sWorsnunassnaninadu
ANW:IBIBW ADIUIBUOBINYIAWIAU ADIUSADIEINSH
soufigUszaumsninisringuds:nounswonstuniforinnun
fouARANDAIUIKU=AL AYFIUUS:aUNTSAd ADUE ADL
awnsnie=Iduls:Tuslisioustn iaundunssumsréorusms
Auli UARaRTASUNMSIFIATIHRSIFAIKUINSSUNMSKEOLUSINS
VaIUSEN 2:AaVdANANURASUNOUAIULINST 68 IIKIWS:STY

v
g )

UrYrgAUSBNUMNBUTIAR W.A. 2535 (SOUNYAGNMSIATVIWUIRL)
llazUs=N1AANUNSSUNIS N.a.6. lazfodludanuruzAodiiuniuy
W.S.U. KaNNSWE (SoUNVADNISIATVIWUIRL) nOruIedU Nia:
nns:IdeuRInuovoy

Nomination of Directors and Executives
Criteria for Director Selection

The Company has set up the Remuneration and Nominating
Committee to be responsible for director nomination.
The Remuneration and Nominating Committee determines
qualifications of the required director positions that fit in
with the nature of business operations and strategies of
the Company by considering necessary skills that are still
lacking by using the Board Skill Matrix table as a supplement
for considering professional skills including specialized
expertise, knowledge and talent, and work experience.
The qualified candidates who have amassed professional
experience, knowledge and capability that will be useful
to the Company will be selected and appointed as the
Company’s directors or executives. They must also
completely meet the qualifications specified in Section 68
of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535 (and as
amended) and the Notification of the SEC and must not
possess any prohibited characteristics under the SEC Act
(and as amended) and other applicable laws and regulations.

nnu: AWS Us:dunasnivovaruznssunasusen
Skill Matrix of Board Directors

Business Menagement
Corporate Governance
Insurance

Finanical Accounting / Auditing
Risk Management

Investment
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The existing THREL Board of Directors is composed of
nine members, the number of which is compatible with the
Company’s business operation. All of them have had work
experience or used to assume a top-ranking position in the
business and government sectors. In view of their educational
background, most of the directors finished their studies
in the field of business administration and economics and
some of them graduated in accounting and laws. As such,
the Board of Directors is composed of experts with skills and
experience in a diverse field of professions that can suitably
cover all aspects of the Company’s affairs.
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MIILUFUNOARTIKLY (Succession Plan)

Nomination and Appointment Process for Directors

In order to nominate a candidate for director position, the
Remuneration and Nominating Committee and shareholders’
consent is required. There is also no limit to how many
candidates a shareholder can nominate. The Company offers
an opportunity to each shareholder to propose appropriate
candidates through the Company’s website prior to the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders which is usually
held 3 months prior to the end of fiscal year. The candidates
must be competent and have a proficiency background
in various professional fields. Also, the candidates must
have leadership skills, vision, virtue and ethic, exceptional
working history as well as be able to express opinion freely.
The shareholders may cast their votes for each individual
candidate in accordance with the rules and regulations of
the Company as follows:

(@) Each shareholder casts a number of votes equal to
the number of the share units.

(b) Each shareholder will cast the votes as stated in
rule number 1 and the votes can be for one or many
candidates. However, the vote must be evenly spilit.
The Company does not apply cumulative voting due
to the structure of the shareholders of the Company,
which does not have any absolute major shareholder
who can influence the Company or decide which
candidate to vote for.

() Those who receive majority of votes from
shareholders will be elected as Directors of the
Company.

Criteria for Executive Selection

The Board of Directors, upon the recommendation of the
Remuneration and Nominating Committee, considers an
appointment of top management at president level and
higher to be responsible for business operation, based on
both the candidate’s qualifications for an executive position
and the Company’s succession plan.
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Nomination and Appointment Process for Executives

The Remuneration and Nominating Committee is
responsible for nominating a qualified candidate for the
President position. At the same time, the President and the
Board of Directors are jointly responsible for nominating
senior executives in the first and second layers below the
President. Qualified candidates are screened based on their
knowledge, competence, skill and experience that will be
useful for the Company’s business operation, as well as their
profound understanding of the Company’s business and
administrative ability to achieve the Company’s goals and
objectives. After completion of the selection and nomination
process, names of the qualified persons will be proposed
to the Board of Directors for approval. The Nomination
and Remuneration Committee is also responsible for the
Company’s management succession plan.

Monitoring of Associated Companies

Under the Company’s mechanism for monitoring of its
associated companies, the Board of Directors and/or the
management are responsible for nominating and voting on
appointment of the Company’s directors and/or executives
to serve as directors of the associated companies. The
appointed persons shall be obligated to perform duties in the
best interest of the associated companies that they serve.
Number of director seats in the associated companies to
which the Company is entitled is allocated according to the
Company’s shareholding percentage in any such entities or
as agreed upon in the shareholders’ agreement.

However, there has been no agreement between the
Company and other shareholders with respect to the
management of the associated companies.

Internal Information Disclosure Policy

The Company has a policy to prohibit executives and
employees at all levels from using internal information for
personal benefit. Apart from the data security measure
that limits number of personnel who could access
confidential information and the requirement for directors
and executives to comply with the SEC regulations, the
Company has incorporated best practices into its code
of business ethics and clearly stipulated disciplines and
disciplinary actions in the Company’s work regulations.
In this respect, all employees are to sign the data security
policy compliance agreement in a bid to prevent them from
using the Company’s information for personal benefit or to
prevent unauthorized use of such information. Moreover,
the Company adopts the following policy and measure to
monitor the executives’ use of internal information for
personal benefit and for securities trading:
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Provide the directors and executives with knowledge
about their duty to report their securities holding and the
holding of securities by their spouse and minor children
to the SEC in accordance with Section 59 and penalty
clauses in Section 275 of the Securities and Exchange
Act B.E. 2535 (and the subsequent amendments),
and also to report their and their spouse’s and minor
children’s acquisition or disposal of securities to the
SEC in accordance with Section 246 and penalty clauses
in Section 298 of the Securities and Exchange Act B.E.
2535 (and the subsequent amendments).

Ensure that the directors and executives, including their
spouse and minor children, prepare and disclose reports
on their securities holding and the holding of securities
by their spouse and minor children of securities in the
Company including changes in such holdings to the
SEC in accordance with Section 59 and penalty clauses
in Section 275 of the Securities and Exchange Act B.E.
2535 (and the subsequent amendments), and to submit
a copy of such reports to the Company on the same day
that such reports are submitted to the SEC.

Ensure that the directors, executives, staff and
employees of the Company and its subsidiary who have
known of the material insider information that has an
effect on prices of the securities shall exercise caution
in trading securities of the Company during a 30-day
period prior to the date on which the financial statement
or such insider information is disclosed to the public
and during a 24-hour period after the disclosure of such
information to the public. Those concerned with the
insider information shall not make it available to other
parties until the information is notified to the SET. A
violation of such rules and regulations shall be deemed
as a disciplinary offence pursuant to the Company’s
working regulations. Persons committing such offence
shall be penalized, according to the degree of its
severity, ranging from verbal warning to written warning,
putting on probation and termination of employment by
way of dismissal, removal or discharging, as the case
may be.
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4. Prohibit the directors, executives, staff and employees
of the Company from using the insider information,
which has or may have an impact on changes in prices
of the Company’s securities and has not yet been
disclosed publicly and which they have derived from
their position or status, for selling or buying or for
offering to sell and to buy or for persuading other
persons to sell or to buy or to offer to sell or to buy shares
or other securities (if any) of the Company, directly or
indirectly, in such a manner that could cause damage
to the Company, directly or indirectly, irrespective of
whether such transaction is performed for personal
benefit or for the other’s benefit or whether such
information is disclosed to allow for other person to
perform such transaction in exchange for a benefit for
themselves.

Auditors’ Remuneration
Audit Fee

Remuneration for the external auditors payable by the
Company and associated companies is comprised of
annual audit fee, review audit fee for quarterly financial
statements, fee for review and assessment of internal
control on investments, and fee for audit of the risk-based
capital report of life reinsurance business under the OIC’s
regulations. For 2020, a total of 2.7 million baht was paid to
EY Office Ltd.

Non-Audit Fee

In the fiscal year 2020, the Company did not pay any other
service fees unrelated to EY Office Ltd and auditors.
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Compliance with Good Corporate Governance
Practices by the Company in 2020

The company has realized and focused on compliance with
the good corporate governance principles which are trusted
to drive its business with sustainability. Thus, the company
has applied and followed the Corporate Governance Code
(CG Code) for Listed Companies 2017, which was issued
by the Securities and Exchange Commission. In 2020, the
company performed in accordance with such principles, and
specified in CG Handbook. However, there are some issues
which still have not implemented.

1. The Board of Directors should clearly specify in the
corporate governance policy the term of office of an
independent director to be not longer than nine years
and without any exception.

The Company’s practice:

The Board of Directors has not determined the term of
office of an independent director because the Company
is confident that its independent directors have profound
knowledge, competence, experience and understanding of
the nature of its business operation and could independently
provide their opinion and advice that are useful to the
Company. They are not, or have no connection with, the
Company’s major shareholders or persons with control
power; are not induced or manipulated by the management;
and meet the independent director’s qualifications
prescribed by the SEC. Besides, it is somewhat difficult to
find new independent directors in the industry sector where
the Company operates business.

2. The Board of Directors should consider organizing the
board meetings more than 6 times a year.

The Company'’s practice:

The Board of Directors shall pre-determine dates of the
meeting to be held at least four times a year (once every three
months) as required by law. In the event that the meeting is
not held monthly, the Company shall prepare and submit a
performance report to the Board of Directors on a monthly
basis to enable the Board of Directors to continuously
monitor, control and supervise the management’s operation.
In 2020, the Board of Directors held a total of six meeting
that sufficient and appropriate.
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3. The Board of Directors should disclose the remuneration
of the CEO for short term and long term, including the
performance of the CEO.

The Company’s practice:

The remuneration of the President (CEO) would be
determined each year according to the principles and the
policies that the NRC designated, which would be at the
appropriate and motivated level, by considering the duties,
responsibilities along with the performance of the CEO, as
well as the profit growth in the past year and the overall
economic situation of the Company. These were in
accordance with the strategic objectives and main goals
of the organization, consistent with the long-term business
interests, including being comparable to other listed
companies in the same industries. The NRC would propose
to the Board of Directors for approval and the management
for further proceeding.

4. The Board of Directors should set up a CG Committee.

Reasons or Substitution Measures:

At present, the Company has not yet appointed a CG
Committee. However, the Nominating and Remuneration
Committee has proposed this for the Board of Directors’
consideration and has duty to monitor and ensure that the
Company complies with the relevant principles of corporate
governance. The Company has all along remained committed
to conducting business under the principles of corporate
governance and has consequently been rated “Excellent” in
the Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed Companies
by IOD.

The Company has publicized the significant CG-related
policies in both Thai and English languages on its website
at www.thairelife.co.th under the topic of “Corporate
Governance” for the shareholders, investors and all groups
of stakeholders and also via the Intranet for its employees.

The Board of Directors is confident that adherence
to the principles of corporate governance, ethics and
righteousness will help to add value to the Company in the
long term. It is committed to upgrading the Company’s
corporate governance standard in accordance with the
new CG Code and ASEAN CG Scorecard. The Company’s
compliance with the principles of corporate governance in
2020 was as described below:
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Principle 1: Establish Clear Leadership Role and
Responsibilities of the Board

e All the directors and executives accept their roles

as leaders of the organization and perform their
duties responsibly, carefully and with integrity and act as
role models all executives and employees.

The Board of Directors approves all matters of
significance relating to policy, vision, corporate strategy,
goals, business plans, financial targets and yearly
budgets. Additionally, overseeing efficient allocation and
supervising the management to be in accordance with the
policy with efficiency and effectiveness. As well as driving
the organization to adapt to various changing factors in
order to maximize the economic value of the business
and the highest stability for the shareholders.

The Company segregates the roles, duties and
responsibilities of the Board of Directors, the
Board Chairman, President and the management
and discloses these on corporate governance
policy, annual report and the Company’s website.

The Board of Directors is firm in its belief that business
should be conducted under strict rules of corporate
governance and sustainable development by publishing
its corporate governance policy, codes of conduct and
ethics, anti-corruption policies and measures, and other
CG-related policies. All these standards of corporate
behavior are communicated to all executives, employees
and stakeholders requiring their acceptance and
adherence and monitored through an annual compliance
audit.

The Board of Directors is aware of the importance of
operating the business ethically and in a socially and
environmentally responsible manner whilst seeking
favorable returns and sustainable growth. The Company
also seeks innovative ideas to create added value for all
stakeholders and is always ready to adapt to change and
compete successfully.
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Principle 2 : Define Objectives that Promote
Sustainable Value Creation

The Company clearly defines and communicates its
corporate goals and objectives to all employees and
strengthen the vision and values to reflect in the decisions
and operations of employees at all levels to become a
corporate culture.

The Company promotes innovation and technology
-based functions to control costs, increase distribution
channels, develop products and supervising the efficient
management of resources, supervising the operations
to be appropriate, and following up the operations in
accordance with the strategy and plans.

Principle 3 : Strengthen Board Effectiveness

Structures, roles and duties of the Board of Directors and
sub-committees

The Board of Directors comprises 9 members considered
appropriate for the size of the Company. The balance
between executive and non-executive directors is also
considered appropriate and the number and qualifications
of independent directors are complied with the SEC’s
requirements

The Board Chairman and the President are not the same
person and their roles and duties are clearly divided to
ensure a balance of responsibility between them.

The Board of Directors has appointed sub-committees
to assist in enhancing its efficiency and overseeing the
Company’s operation, consisting of four sub-committees,
which are the Audit Committee, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Investment Committee,
and the Enterprise Risk Management Committee.
Their duties and responsibilities are clearly defined, as
described in the “sub committees” Section on Page 48.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee holds a
meeting to set out the criteria and process of director
nomination and appointment to ensure the candidates
have the required qualifications, knowledge and expertise,
and then recommends the candidates to the Board of
Directors for appointment or approval, as the case may be,
before proposing to the shareholders’ meeting for further
consideration on the director appointment.
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¢ Alldirectors understand their role and duty to report their
holding of other positions and shall report to the Company
at the end of each year and/or when there is any change
during the year.

¢ All board members have work experience or held senior
from various professions that are necessary for the
management of the company’s business which
composing of people with knowledge or experience
in the insurance industry especially in life insurance,
accounting, finance, legal, and risk that can suitably
cover all the company’s business strategy and goals.
As such, the Board of Directors are currently composed
of expert with skills and experiences. The Company has
procedure for a nomination and appointment process of
all the director’s position.

Self-assessment by the Board of Directors and sub
committees.

e Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors as
a Whole

Annually, each member of the board is required to evaluate
the overall performance of the Board of Directors, using
an evaluation form determined by the SET Corporate
Governance Center. The purpose of this is to jointly review
performance, problems and obstacles in the past year.
The result will be used as a guideline to improve the work
of the Board of Directors to ensure greater effectiveness
and efficiency. In 2020, the SET Corporate Governance
Center’s evaluation form was used, similar to the past years.
All directors completed the evaluation and the result showed
that the Board of Directors expressed opinion on all of the
six main subjects of the evaluation as follows:

1. The Company Secretary prepares and reviews the
evaluation form to ensure it is efficient, correct and
complete according to the regulatory body’s practice
guideline.

2. The Board of Directors conducts the performance
evaluation at least once a year.

3. The Company Secretary concludes and proposes the
evaluation results to the Board of Directors’ meeting
so as to draw up a guideline on development and
improvement of operational efficiency.
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All of Board of Directors ‘self-assessments are also
carried out on six topics: (1) Structure and qualification of
the Board of Directors, (2) Role, duties and responsibilities
of the Board of Directors, (3) Board meeting, (4) Performance
of directors, (5) Relation with the management, and (6) Self
—development of directors and development of executives.
Self-assessment of the Board of Directors is also carried out
by the individual directors on three topics: (1) board structure
and qualification, (2) board meeting, and (3) roles, duties and
responsibilities of the board. The scoring system is divided
into five levels as follows:
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The performance evaluation of the Board of Directors as
a whole in 2020 showed that the Board of Directors could
perform their duties in accordance with the principles of
corporate governance, achieving an average score of 3.81.
Meanwhile, the performance evaluation of the individual
directors (self-assessment) resulted in an average score
of 3.87.

* Performance Evaluation of Subcommittees as a Whole

The Board of Directors also conducts performance
evaluation of all board-level committees, which are the Audit
Committee, the Enterprise Risk Management Committee,
the Nominating and Remuneration Committee and the
Investment Committee. Carried out once a year, the said
performance evaluation covers the following topics:
(1) committee structure and qualifications, (2) committee
meeting, and (3) roles, duties and responsibilities of the
committee. The scoring system is divided into five levels
similar to the performance evaluation of the Board of
Directors. The evaluation results of the Audit Committee, the
Enterprise Risk Management Committee, the Nominating
and Remuneration Committee and the Investment
Committee were “Excellent,” with average scores of 3.93,
3.82, 3.95 and 4.00 respectively.
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Performance Evaluation of Top Management

The Board of Directors sets out that there shall be a
performance evaluation of President (CEQO) and other
executives on an annual basis at the last meeting of the
year to be a basis for consideration on their compensation.
In this respect, the board of directors shall consider and
recommend compensation rate for President (CEO) and
executives.

Director improvement

The Board of Directors supports the training and provision
of knowledge for directors so that they can continuously
develop and improve their work. The Company Secretary will
from time to time provide them with details of the training
courses that are useful for performing their duties.

The Orientation of New Directors

The Board of Directors is aware of the importance of
orientation for new directors by having a meeting with the
President before the first meeting. The President and the
Company Secretary presents information supporting the
performance of new directors such as directors handbook,
corporate governance handbook, code of ethics and
conduct, articles of association, structure of shareholders,
operation performance, minutes of the past board meeting,
regulation related. Including information relevant to the
company’s business operations to strengthen Strategy
understanding Business direction as well as other important
matters of the company before acting in the first meeting.

Furthermore, if the new directors have not participated
in the courses for directors, the company shall support
the directors to be trained in those necessary courses
such as Director Accreditation Program (DAP) or Director
Certification Program (DCP), Audit Committee Program
(ACP) (in case the directors are also the audit committee)
organized by Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD) and
other related training courses that are necessary.

Principle 4 : Ensure Effective CEO and People
Management

Nomination of senior executives

The Board of Directors attaches importance to the
nomination and development of senior executives to ensure
they have the knowledge and competency to be effective
managers. The Company has appropriate criteria for
executive selection.
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Succession Plan

The remuneration and nominating committee has a plan
to recruit personnel who will be responsible for important
administrative positions. The nomination of the president
and senior executives is in accordance with the nomination
procedures from both inside and outside the organization

For selecting a person in the organization, this will consider
the most appropriate personnel from the successors who
are assessed as potential. Such person will receive skill
development to be available to serve an importance position
in case of vacancy, end of service term, or others.

Thus, the procedures in nominating the president and senior
executives are in consideration of qualifications, expertise,
skills, knowledge, moral personality, and experience of
type of business related to THREL. Such procedures
will be systematically organized in all levels of positions
appropriately and transparently in order to ensure that THREL
is empowered by qualified.

Development of senior executives and employees

The Board of Directors encourages the development of
senior executives and employees through skills enhancement
for current roles and career advancement. Employees are
provided with both in-house and external training designed
to expand their knowledge and experience relevant to
their roles and operational efficiency. The Human Capital
Management & Development Department provides all
employees with details of the training courses that are
appropriate, as described in the “Human Resources” Section
on Page 48.

Remuneration of directors, sub committee and executives

The Board of Directors is aware of remuneration to all
directors, sub-committees and executives appropriately in
accordance with the duties and responsibilities participation
of each director. The remuneration of the company shall
compare to the remuneration of similar types of business in
other companies. The board of directors has assigned the
nomination and remuneration committee to determine and
review the criteria, policies, and forms of consideration of
compensation or other benefits to the board of directors and
all sub-committees for presentation. The board of directors
agreed before proposing to the shareholders’ meeting for
approval.

Annual Report 2020 « ThaiRe Life Assurance PLC



nasnafuananInis
Corporate Governance

dmSuAinounuLusKiss:AUEY (MUdYIY N.a.m.)
10ulUnunaninrurifnnu=nssunisusenrirun Tneidou
Tggnuwanisantuviuveadusenina:dia:wanisuguaviu
Us=91Uveugushisirazau aze:thiausveaulnonius:su
ANUENSSUNSUSEN AJINMSWNSAUNMHUAANASUINUGUSHIS
S=AUETADIKUN=AUAU N1S=HUNAADUSUBIABOUIA:IWEY
wone:gulana:snuunainsAtAUNIWIS T

hanufuRA 5 : duidsuudnnssuna:n1sus:noussine
2gWIAIUSUTABOU
NISEIIASUUINNSSU

usanlAdnistitudnnssuunidnunnruouauluadAns
AYAUNISWAUNWARATUZ NISAAIA OIN1NIS FIKLNY
ns:usunsrinuunazinalulag IvelfifnwadwshtUs:ansnw
lazUs:answagundau nanalAusdnaiuisndnunazase
Ao WlGIUSsUTuNsINTUIUUSIEU

MNSUSHNSTANSUANSIWONUEIEU USENTHAS LAY
AUNSUSMSIANSNSWEINSagWTUs:anSNw AunSwens
ngluna:n1guenussn ArU:NssSUNISY:ITULWINSTUIOUTA
IWUINUIIA=0UUS:UTU BunsaunaUBiunSweINsSsAN ¢ AUSEN
foulfielKusinatunsnussadnnus:avAnazidnnunevey
ovAnsIdogNdIEu soumilArfruAlRln1sUSKHsIa=9ANTS
AoWIFsvFuINAlulagansaund nazrinuanalitulounoia:
UIRSNNSSNUIADLUAIUADAAEVEIS:UUENSAUINA

N1sUs:nNoussN0gWIAWSUENBOU

n1sAItussievadusEnonvllndiwans:nulnensIko
dunnondou agNIsfimUUSENguAIauaSUTRNS Us:noussie
10ulUsiosnousuiinsourodinula:anondon Tua:iinso
ansveugiddoulside Weidunuonik usBnaunsnussa
snnUs:avAlia:irunenanfidulsiosnoududiu aud

The remuneration for executives is in accordance with the
criteria by the board of directors, which are linked to the
performance of the company each year and the annual
performance of each executive and will be submitted for
approval from the meeting of the Board of Directors. In this
regard, the consideration of remuneration for executives is
appropriate for their duties, responsibilities, and sufficient
to motivate and retain quality personnel.

Principle 5 : Nurture Innovation and Responsible
Business

Promotion of innovation

The Company encourages innovation in all of its work units
with respect to product development, marketing, distribution
channel, business process and technology so as to ensure
more efficient and more effective results and enable the
Company to create and maintain a sustainable competitive
advantage.

As regards organizational management and sustainability,
the Company attaches importance to efficient management
of both internal and external resources. The Board of
Directors considers and approves plans and budgets
for all resources required by the Company to enable the
Company to achieve the corporate goals and objectiveson a
sustainable basis, and also oversees and ensures that the IT
risk management and the policy and measures for IT system
security are in place.

Responsible business operation

Although its reinsurance business has no direct impact on
the environment, the Company still advocates a business
operation that is socially and environmentally responsible
and does not infringe upon stakeholders’ rights in seeking
sustainable achievement of objectives.
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1. Non-violation of human rights

The Company recognizes its responsibility to all groups of
stakeholders such as shareholders, investors, employees,
customers, business partners, competitors, creditors and
others including communities, society and the environment
in a bid to retain their sustainable mutual interests by paying
attention to rights of those stakeholders according with the
laws and obligations of the Company. The Company will not
perform any act that infringes upon rights of stakeholders.
The Board of Directors has a policy on human rights for
adherence by all executives and employees. The Company’s
code of conduct and ethics sets out the standards of
behavior to ensure that stakeholders rights are fully
observed. Any stakeholder damaged by a failure of the
Company to observe such rights can expect fair and
proper compensation for any damage suffered. More details
of the policy on human rights are available at the Company’s
website under the topic of “Corporate Governance.”

2. Treatment of stakeholders

The Company has formulated a guideline on treatment of
each group of stakeholders for all directors, executives and
employees to adhere to, the details of which are as follows:

Treatment of shareholders

Apart from the basic shareholder rights established by law
and the Company’s Articles of Association such as a right
to attend the shareholders’ meeting, right to vote, right to
express opinion freely at the shareholders’ meeting, and right
to earn a fair return, the Company also provides additional
protection to shareholders rights as follows:

1. Ensure that the shareholders are provided with full
disclosure of all information both financial and non-
financial accurately, correctly and simultaneously
through the Stock Exchange of Thailand’s electronic
media, the Company’s website, and all other forms of
media.

2. Encourage shareholders to exercise their right to attend
shareholders meetings, their right to vote and other
rights to which they are entitled, and not perform any act
that violates or prejudices shareholders’ rights.
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3. Permits shareholders the right to make suggestions or
lodge a complaint regarding the Company’s business
operation through channels indicated on the Company’s
website. The company will ensure that all suggestions or
complaints are screened and considered by the Board
of Directors or the concerned parties and the outcome
of such advised to shareholders. In 2020, there were no
suggestions or complaints filed. Telephone calls were
made to Investor Relations asking for information about
the Company’s business operations.

4. Providing Investor Relations to provide information
and answer questions from shareholders. So that the
shareholders receive the information they need to be
accurate, complete, sufficient, timely, reliable, and
equally.

Treatment of employees

Employees hold the key to a successful reinsurance and
insurance-based enterprise. The Company seeks to
encourage its employees to have pride in their work and
be keen to advance their careers. The Company therefore
attaches priority to staff development, fair treatment of
all employees and provision of compensation compares
favorably within the insurance industry. The Company
also ensures employees’ wellbeing through a modern and
comfortable workplace environment. Employees are also
provided with health benefits and recreational activities.
The details are as follows:

1. All employees are accorded treatment following
human rights principles with dignity, equality and without
violation or infringement of any other rights.

2. Employees at all levels are properly selected through
a fair and transparent recruitment process, based
on the required qualifications for each position,
educational background, work experience and other
requirements without discrimination based on
sex, age, nationality, religious or any other status
unrelated to job requirements.
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5.

The Company considers health and safety at work to
be an essential part of employee treatment. A safety,
occupational health and workplace environment
committee ensures that all aspects of workplace
health and safety are properly considered. The
Company also fosters a pleasant work environment for
employees and provides safety and convenience for
customers, business partners and stakeholders when
visiting the Company. A disaster recovery plan has been
formulated in the event of fire or another emergency
and the plan execution is practiced annually. All
equipment is inspected, maintained and repaired to
always remain functional. In 2020, there was no report
of any employee accident or sickness at work. The
Company has incorporated the best practice for safety
into its code of conduct and ethics.

A welfare committee has been set up as an employee
representative to work with the management in
improving employee welfare and to arrange activities
for employee participation such as New Year’s activities
and other off-premises events.

The Company provides its employees with pre-
employment checkups and annual health checkups
according to age groups. For health promotion among
employees, the Company makes available standard
and by arranging exercise activities such as yoga, etc.
in order to encourage exercise and have the opportunity
to meet with employees from different departments in
the same company. By confident that if the personnel
in the organization have good health will help reduce
illness and ultimately improve work efficiency.

Under the Company’s policy and procedure for
remuneration and welfare, employee compensation is
set out at an appropriate level that is commensurate
with their duties and responsibilities and competitive
with the comparable positions in similar businesses.
The employee compensation is decided based on salary
and compensation surveys in insurance business and
other industries derived from various sources together
with the individual employees’ yearly performance
evaluation. The Company has also established an
employee provident fund which gives employees the
rights to receive employer’s contribution and benefit
thereof from the Company based on the required years
of service specified by the Company so that they will
have accumulated savings for their future needs. Details
of employee compensation (including contributions to
the provident fund) are presented on Page 64.
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7. The Company has established a human resource
development policy, encouraging consistent employee
training and competency development to enhance
skills and helping employees advance their careers.
Recognizing that employees are the most valued asset
of the organization, the Company makes certain that
all employees will be developed in accordance with the
Training Road Map, according to their Career path and
Career plan. Details of the number of hours of employee
training. Disclosed on page 43.

8. Employees are encouraged to access information
through channels such as the Company’s Intranet,
internal announcements or e-mails promoting clear
and open communication between the Company and
employees enhancing efficiency and developing good
team work.

9. The Company conducts an annual employee attitude
and satisfaction survey and uses the comments and
suggestions collected from the survey as a basis for
improving work related issues. Responses to comments
or suggestions are communicated to all employees via
the Company’s Intranet.

10. Channels are made available for employees to make
comments, lodge complaints and raise any other
work-related issues, all of which will be considered
in a fair and transparent manner and be treated in
accordance with the policy on complaints/
whistleblowing and whistleblower protection.

Treatment of customers

The Company attaches considerable importance to
customer satisfaction. It has developed a code of best
practice in customer relations including fair and non-
discriminatory treatment of customers, building of good and
sustainable customer relations:

1. The Company treats customers on a fair and non-
discriminatory basis and avoids any unethical acts or
using the customers’ confidential information for the
benefit of third party.

2. The Company strictly honors the contractual conditions
made with customers and delivers quality and reliable
services in accordance with its business standards.

3. The Company provides services in a polite and
respectful manner and promotes a good and
sustainable relationship with customers to ensure
friendliness and satisfaction for all parties, thereby
resulting in services rendered with quality, accuracy,
rapidity and responsiveness to customer needs.
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4. The Company will not disclose customers’ information
which is derived from its business operations unless
otherwise permitted by the customers or where it has
the duty or is required by law to make such disclosure
or where the disclosure will benefit insurance business
or the public as a whole.

5. The Company gives advice on and assistance in matters
relevant to its business or matters that are not beyond
its ability.

6. The Company improves and maintains its service
standards to ensure timely and genuine responsiveness
to customers’ requirements and arranges for a work
unit to closely take care of the individual customers. It
also conducts study, research and co-development of
products and services that meet customers’ demand,
additionally preparing analytical and research papers
and arranging seminars that are useful for customers
and business partners.

Treatment of business partners, competitors and
creditors

The Company is committed to treating business partners,
competitors and creditors under the rules for ethical, free
and fair trade competition and within the purview of the laws
and their mutual obligations. This has been incorporated
into the code of conduct and ethics in order for all parties
to abide by, as follows:

1. The Company sets out rules for evaluation and
selection of business partners and counterparties and
opts to do business with those who conduct business
with accountability, ethics and integrity and are not
involved in any forms of fraud.

2. The Company treats all business partners and
counterparties on an equitable and nondiscriminatory
basis and does not take advantage of them.

3. The Company puts in place a management and
follow-up system to ensure the agreement conditions
are completely fulfilled, together with an anti-corruption
process at all steps of its operation.

4. The Company will not perform any act that will tarnish
its competitors’ reputation through any allegation that
may cause reputational damage.
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5. TunaownvoyaRiduno uauveuAININIMsAEed8NNs 5. The Company will not seek to obtain confidential
ﬁ:TLJ'G‘I‘\7§mh§OIU'IHU'I:aU information of its competitors by any unethical or

improper method.

6. Tuns:innsing Aildunisazioandwegaunmedoyryiazgau 6. The Company will not perform any act that will infringe
5uﬁév?{n§v0\1[§15u KSOAININNISAN upon intellectual property and invention under the patent

of its competitors or other parties.

7. JpuamuiieulvvedryryndsoldntosWIASIASA 7. The Company complies with all conditions under
Qnrﬁoa ASUNIU ASYATUNIKUAIDAN ﬁ\ﬂuéoumsﬁws:ﬁu agreements made with creditors in a strict, correct,
NSUSHSITUNU N1sEs:RU azi8esdulanTdnnadlsnu complete and punctual manner with respect to
bala] guarantee, fund management, payment and any other

matters agreed upon with the creditors.

8. TunstuinluanuisnUuanuidoulvvesdryryn fiouduiidy 8. In the event of failure to fulfill the conditions, the
TKISmtinsau wSauirnwa naznuonanilvdrynn Wosow Company will promptly notify the creditors and provide
AUW1stUIrIUINWIATYHIAINEND reasons and remedial measures for such failure in order

to jointly seek solutions to the problems.

9. Jpummuuloungna:uinsnissofiunisnassUsuved 9. The Company abides by the anti-corruption policy and
usEn Inednnangasmnsssu IWTKKSasuFAULUTL9:10uU measures and the principle of integrity, and neither
TusUveuvsryrdowaus:losidu  naze=siodlisouUnUmlu gives nor receives any bribe whether in form of a gift
e‘iar‘iaﬁvozdoiﬁlﬁmn']sr}o§mﬁmﬁuuu Tuns:nn1srndoyou or any other benefit. It shall not perform any act that is
|nﬁon§oaﬁuaqumsns:rhmséu|i’Junmquionr,]hmu conducive to fraud and bribery, and shall not perform
na:Us:nARINeovod Kéon1sns:riNIsauUINgoAUNSWE any act or assist in or support any act that is deemed
[nen?sn nSonasns:rinduilunesiolAsygnansondu as a misconduct according to the relevant laws and
JuAdvedUs:inA nasnauliunUandeldoulunisgngng notifications, nor perform any act relating to property
niodrUreNSWEFURTFAUTDIRINNISNS:ANAINED in bad faith or any act that is detrimental to the
MG usenlgideansulouneminanoli unnaniguon lla: national economy or security, nor conceal or take part in
wulnuiuuseninsunsiuiia:uQUuRMIUAY embezzlement or sale of property obtained from such

act. The Company communicates the said policy to
outsiders and its employees for acknowledgement
and adherence to.

10. UAUAnIUNQKUIERIfgovadiunswegdun1adyryr  10. The Company abides by the laws governing intellectual

property or copyright and will not infringe on intellectual
property or copyright. Besides, before using any
invention or information belonging to a third party, the
Company shall examine and make certain that it is not
an infringement on intellectual property or copyright of
other party.

In the past year, the Company had no disputes or complaints

TuidevRiNeonuanAn AA AINinwnsAa:IFktinenvdiwa
ns:nuagidans:=d1Ary

with its customers, business partners, competitors and
creditors which could cause a material impact.

Annual Report 2020 « ThaiRe Life Assurance PLC



nasnafuananInis
Corporate Governance

nuaunURseavAnNsnNuANaNnaznuoed1uvoIsy

USENUQUANIUNNKIUNE Us:NA Torrkum la:nns:1deu
199 AfknualngadAnsAfitAuRNalazKuUdgIUVaISTA
IReovod 15U NSUWRIUISSAIINISAT NS:NSOIWAUBE NS
asswans ddnyiunnuzNssuNIsnInuIazaviasunisus:nou
ssfioUs:AUAY namrannswe d10nvau n.a.n. 1I0UsU SOURY
TRousoulea:UszanuuluiesRinuovouiunisifiugia
fonsha laz18a9dU 4 soufiuidesmssiosiunsnesnaessusu
Tneilosun 6 NUNWUS 2562 USBNIASUN1SSUSEINSFHOONE
1Juausnlasinasiuasoudijusvavninonsulnelunismo
rﬁ’\ur]vém (Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against
Corruption, “CAC”) 1S8USo08II80 iaTus“usaomnei']onq 3U
UuU9INIURALUzNSSUNTS CAC GURATKNISSUSaY
nuoUfUnsedununa:dunondou

usnAtussielneAtudvgRIReovounnde 10u
wallouRanrinUs:losuTRingusuna:sndaunondou Tnels
frumIidunuoUnURISTueSussSsSUIIa-9ssuUSsSIUSSAY Wl
nnAudntioldunuoufuRtudouRineatiouudunuiia:adiondou
duiasunisidndwennsogidus:ansniw

1. d@tuauulAwinaunnauidousouiunisAiiunanssy
IWoduAU NISWAUNBUBU la:AIdussnelulAifinwa
ns:nurodIALIIa=AIondoU Falull 2563 USENIHTN"S
asuUs:TosUrouusu duAu a=auondeu aull (1) USuusd
amwuoméouImUsouamuﬁﬁ'mu'[ﬁu"losj (2) Thnns
atuayuindedruislnuesiosiazgunsniosnesiin
du.ansansiWoldlunon1s9s19sIIa=NSTUIBAIIEADN
alanduUaannuinds:s1su (3) sounAuivry “TUsurlie
reBOX” soullasunaoy sod 10uveuvsryUlnl 2564 1o
UnlUsTsiAaidugnl=iing TRiniSoulsudousinsoamns:iou
BrwiIau (4) annsidwasnuad Ingidunissouiionuved
nnAuluevAnsiunisAtussivAluddwans:nusioduAu
aunondaw na:gidoulmizunnue

Treatment of regulatory bodies and government agencies

The Company complies with all laws, notifications, rules
and regulations stipulated by regulatory bodies and
government agencies. Including corporate governance
and anti-corruption cooperation. On February 6, 2019,
the Company was granted a renewal of its membership of
Thailand’s Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against
Corruption (“CAC”). Such CAC recertification is valid for
three years from the date of approval by CAC Committee.

Treatment of society and the environment

In conducting its business, the Company pays attention to
all groups of stakeholders and acts as a good corporate
citizen contributing positively to communities, society and
the environment. The Company has incorporated into the
code of conduct and ethics, to which all staff members
must adhere, the best practices towards society and the
environment including the promotion of an efficient use of
resources, as follows:

1. The Company encourages all employees to join in CSR
activities and community development, and operates
business without causing any impact on society and the
environment. In 2020, the Company made contributions
to communities, society and the environment as follows:
(1) Creation of a pleasant workplace surrounding; (2)
Donate traffic signs and traffic equipment to Sutthisan
Policy Station in order to use in traffic and facilitation
activities for the safety of the people.; (3) Joined the
campaign “reBOX Post”, inviting change of envelope
boxes to New Year gifts in 2021 to be recycled into a
set of tables and chairs for students at the Prairie Police
School by donating boxes ; and (4) reduction of energy
consumption. All members of the organization have
cooperated in conducting business without posing any
impact on society, the environment and all groups of
stakeholders.
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The Company is determined to operate business
with fairness and display responsibility to society, the
environment and all groups of stakeholders in its core
business processes. The Company assesses the
impact of its activities on the economy, society and the
environment and also pinpoints the issues that
significantly affect its business operation or have an
influence on stakeholders’ decision-making so that it
could identify operational goals that cause no impact
on society and the environment and could disclose the
operational information that is particularly important to
the organization and its stakeholders.

The Company educates its employees on conservation
of natural resources and the environment. It encourages
all employees to most efficiently use natural resources
by, for example, using the computerized data filing
technology so as to reduce paper consumption,
ensuring that both sides of the paper are used, using
energy-saving electrical appliances, setting the turn-
on/off times for air-conditioners, switching off air-
conditioners and lightings during lunch break or when
they are not needed in order to save energy, recycling
used items, etc.

Workplace environment is improved and maintained to
be in a tidy, pleasant and healthy condition up to safety
standard to ensure employees’ security while at work.

The Company is aware of the importance of society
and communities. As part of Thai society, the Company
deems that it has duty and responsibility to support and
operate CSR activities, which is in line with the main
objective of its establishment to operate business for
the utmost benefit of insurance business and national
economy as a whole. Further details can be found in
the Company’s 2020 Sustainable Development Report
under the topic of “Corporate Social Responsibility
Activities.”
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Principle 6 : Strengthen Effective Risk Management
and Internal Control

Risk management and internal control

e The Company has to face changes of internal and
external factors that may affect its business. Hence, the
Company develops risk management framework to help
accomplish its vision, mission, short and long-term goals
as well as maintain its financial stability, reputation, image,
competitive advantage and sustainability. This framework
is developed from Insurance Core Principles (ICP) of
the International Association of Insurance Supervisors
(IAIS) and corresponds to the OIC’s. Risk management
requirements.

e The Company determines Risk Appetite and applies in
the formulation of strategy and operational policy as
well as the establishment of enterprise risk management
guidelines. In the process of risk management, key
risks that may affect capital fund, financial stability and
reputation of the Company are identified, assessed and
analyzed their interrelation. In addition, the Company
also sets key risk indicators, appropriate thresholds
and risk measures to manage these risks to be within
acceptance level; and continuously monitor the
effectiveness of these measures. The Company also
focus on learning from actual loss experience and then
revises both risk measures and key risk indicators to
cope with changing environment. Moreover, the company
regularly monitors key risks and reports the results of risk
management to both Enterprise Risk Management
Committee and Board of Directors every quarter.
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The Board of Directors has entrusted the Audit Committee
with power and duties to review and ensure that the
Company has a sound and effective internal control and
internal audit system and abides by the law governing
securities and exchange, the SET’s regulations or the
laws applicable to the Company’s business. The Audit
Committee must hold a meeting at least once a quarter
to review and ensure correctness of the Company’s
financial reporting and to consider and make certain
that the Company’s connected transactions or
transactions with potential conflict of interest are
correct and compliant with the applicable laws and
the notifications and regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission, the Capital Market
Supervisory Board, the Board of Governors of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, the Stock Exchange of Thailand
and other concerned authorities. A legal compliance
unit has been set up to ensure the Company operates
business in conformity with the laws and relevant
standards.

Whistleblowing or complaints

The Company provides secure and easily accessible
complaint channel and a complaint management process
for employees or outsiders or stakeholders to report
complaints about damages occurring to them or voice
their concerns or report any suspicious incidents or clues
to possible misconduct concerned with the Company,
as well as to seek advice on compliance with the code of
ethics and the related policies. The reported information
shall be treated as confidential and the informants or
whistleblowers shall be protected and shall neither be
punished nor be adversely affected from their reporting
such complaints or whistleblowing. The Company
communicates the said policy to employees and outsiders
for acknowledgement and adherence to. The policy on
complaints/whistleblowing and whistleblower protection
can be found on the Company’s website under the topic
of “Corporate Governance.”
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Principle 7: Ensure Disclosure and Financial
Integrity
Information disclosure

The Company attaches importance to maintaining of financial
reliability and disclosing of material information. The Board
of Directors is responsible for overseeing and ensuring that
the Company’s financial reporting and information disclosure
are carried out in an accurate, adequate, timely and equitable
manner and that the disclosure through various channels
strictly complies with the legal or regulatory requirements.
The Company has disclosed information to demonstrate its
good corporate governance and business transparency as
follows:

1. The Company prepares, communicates and posts the
corporate governance policy, anti-fraud policy, anti-
corruption policy and measures, and all other CG-
related policies on the Company’s Intranet and website
for the directors, executives, employees and all groups
of stakeholders to acknowledge and abide by, with a
policy review conducted on a yearly basis

2. The Company’s information, both financial and non-
financial, is disclosed. The financial information,
especially financial statements, are to be audited
/reviewed by the auditors and approved by the
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors before
submission to the SET, the SEC, shareholders, investors
and concerned agencies.

3. Essential information is made available on the
Company’s website in both Thai and English languages,
including information such as nature of business, list of
the Board of Directors and management team, financial
statements (Form 56-1), annual report (Form 56-2),
important news and business activities, which are
useful to shareholders, investors, analysts and the
general public. The Company also discloses the
roles and duties of the Board of Directors and sub-
committees, meeting frequency and meeting
attendance of each director in the past year, details of
which can be found in the “Management Structure”
Section on Page 71.

4. The Company sets a requirement to report all trading
transactions/securities holdings of directors and
executives. The Company Secretary is assigned to
collect all of such information for reporting to the Board
of Directors’ meeting on a quarterly basis.
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5. The Company discloses Investment Governance Code:
I Code and Investment Governance Policy Principle on
the Company’s website.

Investor relations

The Company gives importance to investor relations
management and remains committed to performing duties
with accountability and integrity and providing accurate,
adequate and reliable information to ensure that the investors,
analysts and interested parties could receive the information
in a correct, sufficient, complete, transparent and equitable
manner. The Company has assigned Ms. Sirin Dhumma-
upakorn to be in charge of “Investor Relations.” For
contact, please call 02-666-9000 or e-mail to address:
corpsecretary@thairelife.co.th. In 2020, there were 10
meetings held with members of the media, stock analysts,
investors and fund managers.

Report on interests

The Company has established rules and procedures
for reporting interests of directors, executives and their
related persons, which were duly approved by the Board of
Directors, as a guideline for all concerned parties to abide by.
Such report will be useful for complying with the regulations
for connected transactions and monitoring the interests
of directors, executives and their related persons with the
Company’s business as follows:

1. The Company has a policy for the directors and
executives to disclose their interests and their related
persons in a form designated by the Company on
a yearly basis and when there is a change in such
information during the year. The directors and executives
who have interests in any transactions of the Company
shall not participate in decision-making, and the
transactions shall be processed according to the
Company’s measures or procedures for approval of
related party transactions.

2. The Company has a policy on trading of the Company’s
securities and procedures for reporting of securities
holding in order for the directors, executives and
employees who can access and benefit from such
information to abide by, and requires that the directors
and executives have duty to report their securities
holding in accordance with the SEC’s regulations.
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Principle 8 : Ensure Engagement and Communication
with Shareholders
Rights of shareholders

The Company gives importance to and respects rights to
which the shareholders are entitled in their capacity as both
investors and owners of the Company, and accordingly
provides the shareholders with an opportunity to exercise
their basic rights under the laws, comprising right to sell,
buy or transfer shares held by them, right to receive a share
of profit from the Company, right to attend a shareholders’
meeting, right to cast votes at the meeting, right to express
an opinion, right to receive equal treatment with respect to
share repurchase by the Company, right to jointly decide
on crucial issues of the Company such as appointment
or removal of directors, appointment of an auditor,
amendment to the Articles of Association or the
Memorandum of Association, etc.

In addition, the Company pays higher regard to the
shareholders’ rights than to such basic rights, including right
to have access to crucial information sufficiently and timely
via the Company’s website, right to communicate with the
Board of Directors through the channels designated by the
Company, etc.

The Company communicates with the shareholders,
discloses crucial information and discloses its shareholding
structure in subsidiaries and associated companies clearly
in the annual report and on its website in order for the
shareholders to rest assured that the Company has an
efficient, transparent and examinable management
structure which could deliver a reasonable shareholder
return and lead to sustainable growth.

Shareholders’ meeting

The Company sets out that an annual general meeting
of shareholders is held within the first four months after
the end of an accounting year and that, where there is an
urgent need to consider any matter which could affect or
is related to the shareholders’ interest and is subject to the
shareholders’ approval, the Board of Directors may then
convene an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders
case by case. In 2020, the Company held one shareholders’
meeting, i.e. the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
No. 9 on July 7, 2020, which was attended by 9 out of the
total 10 directors, representing 10% of the total. The absent
directors could not attend the meeting because they were
engaged in other business. However, the Board Chairman
and the Audit Committee Chairman were present at such
meeting.
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For every shareholders’ meeting, the Company adopts
the best practices in accordance with the AGM checklist
guideline provided by the Thai Investors Association,
which are:

Treatment of shareholders before the meeting date

1.

The Company provided the shareholders with an
opportunity to propose meeting agenda or submit
questions about the Company and to nominate qualified
persons for election as the Company’s directors at
the 2020 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
(AGM) in advance during the period from September 2,
2019 to December 31, 2019 through e-mails or letters
sent directly to the Company Secretary. At the end of
such period, none of the shareholders proposed the
meeting agenda or nominated any qualified persons
as the Company’s directors for the Board of Directors’
consideration.

The notice of the meeting, meeting agenda with the
Board of Directors’ opinion, proxy forms prescribed by
Ministry of Commerce comprising Proxy Form A, Form
B and Form C (applicable to only shareholders who
are registered as foreign investors and have appointed
a custodian in Thailand to take care of their shares),
documents or evidence showing identification of the
shareholders or proxies entitled to attend the meeting,
and documents for all agenda items are publicized
via the Company’s website in both Thai and English
languages at least 30 days ahead of the meeting
date. In 2020, the Company posted the notice of the
shareholders’ meeting on its website 30 days prior to
the meeting date.

The Company encourages the shareholders who are
unable to attend the meeting to assign other person or
any of the independent directors as their proxy to attend
and vote at the meeting on their behalf by using the
proxy form in which they could determine their voting
direction. The Company publicizes the proxy forms and
all details and procedures on its website at least 30 days
in advance. For the AGM held in April 2020, there were
a total of 100 shareholders present at the meeting, with
25 of them attending in person and 75 by proxy.
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The Company delivers notice of the shareholders’
meeting, clearly giving details of the meeting date,
time and venue, meeting agenda, objectives and
reasons, opinion of the Board of Directors, minutes of the
previous meeting, annual report, proxy forms prescribed
by Ministry of Commerce with proxy granting
instructions that are clear and easy for the
shareholders to follow, list of independent directors
whom the shareholders can select and assign as their
proxy to attend the meeting on their behalf, details of
documents that the shareholders must bring on the
meeting date, the Company’s Articles of Association
pertinent to the shareholders’ meeting and method
of vote casting, and all other documents to preserve
shareholders’ right to attend the meeting. The
Company submits the notice of the meetingandallrelevant
documents to the shareholders at least 21 days ahead of
the meeting date so that the shareholders could obtain
sufficient, accurate and complete information and have
sufficient time to study the meeting agenda in advance.
Moreover, the notice of the meeting is published in local
newspapers for three consecutive days at least three
days before the meeting date so that the shareholders
would be informed of the meeting notice in advance and
could prepare for their meeting participation. In 2020,
the Company submitted the notice of the shareholders’
meeting and relevant documents to the shareholders 27
days in advance.

The Company facilitates and encourages all shareholder
groups, whether individual or juristic persons and
institutional investors, to participate in a shareholders’
meeting in order to allow for all shareholders to equally
exercise their rights at the meeting, by setting the
suitable meeting time and date and arranging the
meeting venue that is conveniently accessible by all
shareholders. The Company also provides proxy forms,
i.e. Proxy Form A, Form B and Form C, for all shareholder
groups who are unable to attend the meeting to assign a
proxy to attend the meeting on their behalf. In addition,
the Company contacts institutional investors such as
asset management companies or custodians to dispatch
their representatives to attend the meeting and assists
in screening all documents for meeting attendance in
advance.
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Treatment of shareholders on the meeting date

1.

5.

The Company provides convenience for all shareholders
and proxies, whether they are individual, juristic or
institutional investors, on the meeting date on an
equitable basis. The Company arranges for a sufficient
number of reception staff, document screening staff and
computer equipment to facilitate the registration, the
meeting and the vote counting in an efficient manner.
English language interpreters are available for foreign
investors who wish to attend the meeting.

Registration begins 1 hour and 30 minutes before the
start of the meeting. The Company will not perform
any act in such a way that will restrict rights of the
shareholders to attend the meeting and all shareholders
are entitled to register for attending the meeting at any
time throughout the meeting.

The barcode system is used for meeting registration
and vote counting to ensure accuracy, convenience,
and rapidity.

Before the start of the meeting, the Chairman will
introduce to the shareholders the Board of Directors,
the management, the auditors and the legal advisor who
has been assigned to inspect the casting and counting
of votes, and will inform the meeting of the number and
percentage of shareholders attending the meeting in
person and by proxy and also explain to the shareholders
about how to cast votes and use voting ballots for each
agenda item. The voting ballots for director election will
be separated from other agenda items. The shareholders
and proxies attending the meeting have the right to cast
votes equal to the number of shares they hold. One
ordinary share is equal to one vote. The Company has
only one type of shares, i.e. ordinary shares, and does
not have any preferred shares and any other types of
securities.

The Company’s legal advisor is assigned to serve as
inspector of vote casting and vote counting in order to
monitor and ensure that the registration, the meeting
and the vote counting are conducted transparently and
accurately at every step in accordance with the laws
and the Company’s Articles of Association, while the
shareholders are given an opportunity to volunteer to
witness the vote counting and to raise any questions
regarding the vote counting.
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The Company conducts the meeting according to the
agenda and has no policy to add any new agenda
items or change material information without notifying
the shareholders in advance. During the meeting, the
Chairman gives the opportunity to the shareholders to
raise questions and express opinions on each agenda
item and provides clarifications to all queries to the
shareholders’ satisfaction. At the previous meeting
of shareholders, the Board Chairman, the Audit
Committee Chairman, Director and President, senior
management, the auditors and the legal advisor
participated in the meeting to answer the questions
raised by the shareholders.

The shareholders are instructed to use voting ballots
for all agenda items. Voting ballots are provided for
each agenda item. Separate ballots are used for each
director election to enable the shareholders to vote as
they deem appropriate. Voting ballots are collected in
the meeting room and the results of such vote counting
will be combined with the votes indicated in advance
in the proxy forms before announcing the final voting
results to the meeting.

The shareholders who join the meeting after the
meeting already started have the right to cast votes on
the agenda item that is still under consideration and
has not yet been voted on.

Treatment of shareholders after the meeting date

1.

Resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting will be
disclosed together with voting results by the next
business day immediately after the meeting date through
a news release to the SET. For the 2020 shareholders’
meeting, the Company could disclose the meeting’s
resolutions and voting results on the day of the meeting.

The Company prepares Minutes of the Shareholders’
Meeting by containing therein all material information
such as explanations, questions, comments, voting
procedures, voting results, and so on. For the 2020
Annual General Meeting, the Company completed the
Minutes within 14 days after the meeting and submitted
to the SET in accordance with the SET’s requirements.
The Minutes were also available on the Company’s
website for the shareholders who were or were not at
the meeting to view.

Visual records of the meeting were also made available
for shareholders who did not attend the meeting or any
interested persons to view on the Company’s website.
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Equitable treatment of shareholders

All groups of shareholders, whether major shareholders,
minority shareholders, institutional investors or foreign
investors, are treated on a fair and non-discriminatory
basis with their rights being equally protected. The Company
abides by the following best practices:

1. All shareholders are given an equal right, regardless
of the percentage and period of their shareholding,
to propose meeting agenda in advance and to
nominate persons for director election. The Company
has disclosed this information via the SET and posted
the clearly-defined relevant process on the Company’s
website. For the recent 2020 Annual General Meeting,
the shareholders were allowed a period of time from
September 2, 2019 to December 31, 2019, or more than
three months before the end of the accounting year,
to propose director nomination and meeting agenda
through e-mails or letters sent directly to the Company
Secretary for compilation and submission to the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and/or the
Board of Directors for further consideration. In the event
that the Board of Directors resolves to reject the agenda
items proposed by the shareholders, the Company will
notify the shareholders of reasons for such rejection at
the shareholders’ meeting. Besides, the shareholders
who attend the annual general meeting are also granted
the right to additionally nominate persons for director
election directly to the meeting. At the recent 2020
Annual General Meeting, none of the shareholders
nominated any qualified persons for election as directors
or proposed any additional agenda items.

2. The shareholders are able to forward their questions,
comments or suggestions in advance through e-mails
or letters directly to the Company Secretary prior to the
meeting date so that all questions could be gathered
for further clarification at the meeting. In 2020, there
were two questions from shareholders sending to the
Company in advance and all questions were disclosed
in the minutes of the Annual General Meeting No.9 on
the website of the Company.

3. In order to protect the interest of and facilitate
communication with all groups of shareholders, the
notice of the meeting, meeting materials, Minutes of
the previous meeting, and any related information are
posted on the Company’s website and available in
both Thai and English. The Company also assigns its
staff members proficient in English language to serve
as interpreters for the foreign shareholders who attend
the meeting.
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6.

The meeting is conducted according to the agenda
indicated in the meeting notice. The Company adheres to
the policy and does not add any new agenda items at the
meeting without notifying the shareholders in advance.

All shareholders have an equal access to the Company’s
information. Up-to-date information is disclosed
through the Company’s website, the SET’s information
disclosure system as well as the Company’s investor
relations unit.

The Company has devised measures against misuse
of internal information by its directors, executives and
employees, as described in “Internal Information
Disclosure Policy.” Information regarding interests of
the directors, executives and their related persons is
reported to the Board of Directors. The directors or
executives who have a conflict of interest in or are
connected with any transactions shall be prohibited
from involving in the approval process for any such
transactions. The Audit Committee is assigned to follow
up on this matter and report to the Board of Directors
on a quarterly basis.
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Policy Overview

THREL’s main objectives are to operate their business to
optimum levels to benefit the Thai insurance sector and the
country’s overall economy. The Company strongly adheres
to a good governance policy and social responsibility to
strengthen the insurance industry and the overall economy
of the country which supports the Company’s sustainability
into the future.

The commitment of the Company is to build a strong
society that leads to sustainable growth and long term
development through: -

e Business partners, the insurance business sector and
Thai people in general by cooperatively developing and
building business with the Company’s counterparties and
to effectively respond to society’s current requirements.

e Benefits for shareholders through growth in revenue
and profits and maintaining sustainable growth and
development.

e Development of employees through skills improvement
and promotion of good quality of life for all personnel.

CSR Activities and Reports

In 2020, the Company produced its Sustainable
Development Report to publicize its CSR activities
that support sustainable development in tandem
with the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) framework
so that all stakeholders have access to relevant
information. The report is available in Thai and
English and can be downloaded from the Company’s
website at www.thairelife.co.th/en/ir-shareholder-meeting.

php
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Business Operation with Impacts on CSR

In 2020, The Company conducted its business for the
best interests of the Company and the insurance industry,
while paying attention primarily to society’s needs without
harming society and the environment and violating the rights
of stakeholders.

Social and Environmental Contribution Activities

Apart from its core business processes where impacts
on society, the environment and stakeholders are taken
into account, the Company, with an awareness of the
importance of society and communities, has sponsored and
launched social and community development activities on
a continuous basis. Details of the Company’s CSR activities
in 2020 are presented in the Sustainability Report 2020,
which is downloadable from the Company’s website at
www.thairelife.co.th/en/ir-shareholder-meeting.php

Anti-Corruption Activities

Since 2012 the Company has seriously adopted a policy to
act against corruption and bribery for commercial benefit.
The policy is a part of the Company’s business ethics
code in respect of best practices towards customers,
competitors, and state agencies. Details the about Company’s
CSR activities in 2020 are provided in the Sustainable
Development Report 2020, which can be downloaded
from the Company’s website at www.thairelife.co.th/en/
ir-shareholder-meeting.php

CSR Plan

The Company is committed to operating its business in a fair
and responsible manner towards society, the environment
and all groups of stakeholders involved in the core business
processes of the Company.
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Nature of Related Transactions

The Company has business transactions involving related
parties because shareholders and/or directors participate
in them, either because of personal relationships or simply
from taking part in the same transactions. In such cases,
the Company takes into account the true nature of the rela-
tionships to a greater extent than the legal forms they take
or the contracts behind them. Most of these transactions
come about in the ordinary course of business, with prices
at the standard rates. These are disclosed in the list “Related
Transactions,” in the Notes to Financial Statements for 2020.

Necessity and Reasonableness of Related
Transactions

Such related transactions that the Company has with
the related parties are considered to be beneficial to the
business development and will enhance the business and
create stability for the Company, which can be considered
a maximization of the existing resources together with the
Company and also a cutting down on the expenses.

Policy on Interest and Conflict of Interest

The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of
prevention of interest and conflict of interest and has
established a policy on interest and conflict of interest as
follows:

1. The Board of Directors shall prudently control and monitor
any transactions that are prone to a conflict of interest
by determining approval procedures for connected
transactions in writing.

2. The Audit Committee shall report transactions with a
possible conflict of interest and connected transactions
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.
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3. If there are any connected transactions that are subject
to disclosure rules or approval from the shareholders
pursuant to the SET’s requirements, the Company shall,
before entering into the transactions, clearly disclose to
shareholders the information regarding relationship of the
connected persons, policy on determination of transaction
value, reasons for entry into the transactions, and opinion
of the Board of Directors on the transactions.

4. The Board of Directors sets out that materials on
related party transactions shall be disclosed in the
annual registration statement (Form 56-1) and annual
report of the Company, with details about names of
persons who may have a conflict of interest, relationship,
nature of the transactions, conditions, policy on price
determination and value of the transactions, reasons and
necessity of the transactions.

Guidelines on Consideration of Transactions that
Have/May Have a Conflict of Interest

Consideration of transactions that have/may have a conflict
of interest shall comply with the rules set forth by the SEC
and the SET. The Audit Committee has duty to monitor and
ensure that the rules are strictly adhered to, as well as duty
to compile and report transactions with related parties that
may lead to transactions with a possible conflict of interest
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.

Measures or Procedures for Approval of Related
Party Transactions

The Company abides by the law governing securities and
stock exchange and the regulations, notifications, directives
or requirements of the Capital Market Supervisory Board
and the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The executives or
stakeholders who have a vested interest are not allowed to
participate in the approval of such transactions. In the case
where it is legally required to obtain approval from the Board
of Directors’ meeting, the Company will arrange the Audit
Committee to join the meeting to consider and advice
regarding necessity and reasonableness of any such
transactions. The principles for entering into the arm’s-length
transactions and the non-arm’s-length transactions are as
follows:
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Arm’s-length transactions

The Board of Directors gives approval in principle for the
management to approve the arm’s-length transactions
executed by the Company and its subsidiaries with the
directors, executives or related persons provided that those
transactions are under the same trade terms and conditions
as those executed by persons of ordinary common sense
with general counterparties in the same situation and the
bargaining power thereof is free from their influence in
their capacity as directors, executives or related persons.
The Company will present a summary report on the said
transactions to the Audit Committee’s meeting and the
Board of Directors’ meeting on a quarterly basis.

Non-arm’s-length transactions

The non-arm’s-length transactions are to be considered
by the Audit Committee before proposing to the Board
of Directors and/or the shareholders’ meeting for further
consideration and approval. In this respect, the Company
must observe the law governing securities and exchange
and the regulations, naotifications, directives or requirements
of the Capital Market Supervisory Board and the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, including the disclosure rules
for connected transactions. In the case where the Audit
Committee has no expertise in the consideration of any
potential related party transactions, the Company will
appoint an independent specialist or its auditor to render
opinion on such transactions to be a basis for decision
making by the Audit Committee and/or the Board of Directors
and/or the shareholders, as the case may be. This is to ensure
that such transactions are necessary and reasonable and
are executed in the interest of the Company. The Company
will disclose information on the related party transactions in
the annual registration statement and notes to the financial
statements that have been audited by the Company’s
auditor.
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ga10uussnsou 10ulUifieliusBnsouaunsnANIiussA9
Tnmudanune TneAusnasikANUsnundanuidnold Tudou
VOUAIWMIUNS:UUIIUUSNUBINgUAITMADIUUNIIS:UUIIU
MINA10WHUUNIIADIESY

Policy or Trend of Related Party Transactions in
the Future

In enter into any related party transactions in the future,
the Board of Directors must comply with the law governing
securities and exchange and the regulations, notifications,
directives or requirements of the Capital Market Supervisory
Board and the Stock Exchange of Thailand, including the
disclosure rules for connect transactions of the Company or
its subsidiaries, in accordance with the accounting standards
set out by the Federation of Accounting Professions.

The current related party transactions with other life
insurance companies are the usual transactions executed in
line with condition in general. The related party transactions
made with Thaire Actuarial Consulting Co., Ltd., is actuarial
advisory service fee which will continue to occur. The related
party transactions with Thaire Services Co., Ltd, will continue
to occur, only for consulting information technology services
and computer equipment service fees with an effective use
of available resources. The human resource service fee
was canceled on January 1, 2021 due to the Company can
operate by itself. The related party transactions with TKI Life
Insurance Co., Ltd, an associated company. In order to be
able to operate their businesses according to their goals,
therefore, the consulting service fee is still available. As for
the cost of the life insurance system development, it will
continue until the system is fully developed.
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Us=AugdnUs:INNSouwWsJIU1 (Non-conventional Reinsurance)
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Us:=AuBdInUs:INNSouwWsIUN (Non-conventional Reinsurance)
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SusouvaausBnIdoIfisuAuluafin

dansunisasnu usen UdmsrwanduinuaININuavnu
Tul 2561 fivl 2563 ogfs:AuUs:unrusoua: 2-5 Inudou
Us=neunanvevaunsweanu Ae Ruadnune:fioaunsuritnun
Hlsn rannswesgunana:5gdannne Kud 1IuLinsunAns
10usiu IneAanidudndouds:unruSosa: 45-55 vovaunswe
aunuAVKUA llazRuaINUItiovs Haldiin nsnansnu nazruiou
ainu 10udndouds:unrusosa: 40-50 vavaunsweadnu
uananduiduiiuadnuiieAndndouls:urusosa: 4

Overview of Operating Performance

The Company has engaged in life reinsurance of all classes.
The reinsurance premium written are partially appropriated
for insurance reserve which is further invested to bring
in returns that could cover contingent liabilities. Thus, in
addition to life reinsurance, investment is extremely crucial
for our business operation.

Our major income source is net reinsurance premium
written which make up 97-99 percent of total income,
followed by investment income which is around 3-4 percent
of total income. The remainder includes commission and
brokerage income and other incomes.

The Company provided reinsurance for domestic life
insurance companies. The services are classified by
two main types of business, which are conventional and
non-conventional reinsurance. Over the past 9-10 years,
non-conventional reinsurance has played a pivotal role in
growing the Company’s overall premiums. It has experienced
robust growth and contributed an increasing proportion in
the Company’s total reinsurance premium written when
compared with the past records.

On the investment side, the Company enjoyed an average
rate of return on investment of 2-5 percent in 2018 to
2020. The main investment assets are held-to-maturity
investments such as government and state enterprise
securities, debentures, deposits at banks etc., which make
up about 45-60 percent of total investment assets.
Moreover, available-for-sale investments such as equity
securities and unit trusts, accounting for approximately
40-50 percent of total investment assets. Aside from
the above is trading investment accounting for
approximately 4 percent.
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10eUs:nunusonteoIdusals (Earned Premium) Ao
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Operating Performance
Income

The Company’s income is mainly derived from earned
premium, commission income and profits from investment of
its associated companies, net investment income, fair value
gain(loss) on investments as well as other incomes. In 2020,
2019 and 2018, the Company’s total income was recorded
at THB 2,331.0 million, THB 2,388.9 million and THB 2,426.3
million respectively, representing a growth rate of 2.4 percent
and 1.5 percent respectively. A decreasing in the Company’s
total income derives from declining in reinsurance premium
written was the result from slowdown in domestic life
insurance business and loss on investment resulting from
volatility of investment in securities which the significant
details as follows:

Earned Premium

Earned premium is the amounted of total premiums
calculated from gross reinsurance premium written less
reinsurance premium ceded and change in unearned
premium reserves.

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company’s income had gain
from earned premium of THB 2,291.2 million, THB 2,281.5
million and THB 2,347.5 million respectively, representing
an increase rate of 0.4 percent and a decrease rate of 2.8
percent respectively.

In terms of net reinsurance premium written, the growth was
primarily caused by the expansion of domestic life insurance
market which increased annually. Life insurance market
of Thailand’s CAGR between years 2016-2020 was at 1.4
percent while the Company’s CAGR of the same period
was approximately 4.3 percent, resulting in increased gross
written premiums from life insurance companies. However,
in 2020, the growth rate of the domestic life insurance
business dropped by approximately 1.7 percent, with the
growth rate of the Company constantly at 0.0 percent.
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1UaUs:nuResuvaIUs:InAlng s:rgd 2559 — U 2563

Net premium written in Thailand During 2016-2020 (THB Million)

I09Us:AUABSUVEIUSEN s=roU 2559 — U 2563
THREL’s Net premium written During 2016-2020 (THB Million)

Kuoy:d1uuIN

CAGR: 1.4% 627,606
610,558
600,303 600,013
568,002
2559 2560 2561 2562 2563F
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020F

ruo:duuIn

CAGR: 4.3% 2,400
2,157 2,340 2,339
1,975
2559 2560 2561 2562 2563
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

AL : dUinunuAnuNssUNsAUNa:auIasUNsUs:NaUssaUs:AUNY la:aunAuUs:ALEIRTNg

Source : OIC and the Thai Life Assurance Association

uan91nd nasUs:Aug3nluds:iNNSouwemua (Non-
conventional Reinsurance) NUSGNIFSOUARAUNIA:WAIUA
AUUSBNUs:AUBIM3UBITNsIRUInog WLt dAryTUBod 9-10
URwWauwn nilrusenlgsudounyanissuus:Aunesonuin
ngnNssuls=AufsoIuUAVIAL

I08Us:NunesonnoIdusiels

(Earned Premium)

MsUS:AUBIRUS:INNAVIAL
(Conventional Reinsurance)

n1sUs:AUBINUSINNSIUWRIUN
(Non-conventional Reinsurance)

SO 2,291.2

Total

s1elAvInn1sasnuans

seld9nnisasnuans Aesneldnlfsuennisasnu
Tuaunsweiringg soufumsTFiEuRu $als:noudios neniTy
Nuduwa nlsennisvigaundweainu nnlsviAnu9INNs
JSuyanignsssu nazdounuiwanilsvianuanniiuasnulu
usensou 1Jusiu

Tul 2563 U 2562 1a:U 2561 useniishelavNNIsadnu
ansininu 31.9 &uu1n 100.1 &uun a: 74.1 &uun My
aau Andudnsinsiiulnanasdoua: 68.2 la:iWuTuSoua:
35.0 mMuanau Ingsrelinnisainuansminaronnidudnsi
wamauInuvINNIsavnuinnuosa: 1.7 Sova: 5.1 na:Sova:
3.8 muanu

U 2563
2020

ajuuin | Sewa: | dwuuan | Sewa: | dwuunn | Sewa:
Amount | Percent | Amount | Percent | Amount | Percent

1,202.8

1,088.4

Another contributing factor was growth in non-conventional
reinsurance, which the Company has innovated and
developed in partnership with a life insurance company,
which it has grown remarkably in the past 9-10 years,
resulting in a higher market share when compared with the
conventional reinsurance.

(KUoy: &1uun)
(Unit: THB Million)

U 2561
2018

U 2562
2019

52.5 1,261.5 55.3 1,306.8 55.7
47.5 1,020.0 44.7 1,040.7 44.3
100.0 2,281.5 100.0 2,347.5 100.0

Net Investment Income

Net investment income is income derived from investments in
assets, including loans. It consists of interest, dividend, gain
on sales of investments, fair value gains, share of gain(loss)
from investment in an associate, and so on.

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company generated net
investment income of THB 31.9 million, THB 100.1 million
and THB 74.1 million, respectively, decreased 68.2 percent
and increased 35.0 percent respectively. The rates of return
oninvestment were 1.7 percent, 5.1 percent and 3.8 percent,
respectively.
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Suannisavnurannswelunatarannswe 10usiu Tnelud
2563 snglnvINnNisadnuagnsanaliidnAnaninneINwa
VIANUAINNISVIZRUAINU 1a:VIANUYINNISADEANINUAINU
douludl 2562 snelfivnnnisadnuaNsIWUTUTAIMARANIAR
9niuduwasuaniiuadnulunsaisnu NMlseNNIsVIgiU
aunu a=rils9nnisusuyargfAsssuRimuTU

Net investment income will vary according to investment
situation each year; for example, interest rate from debt
securities or dividends from securities investment in the
stock market, etc. In 2020, net investment income decresed
mainly due to loss from sale of investments and loss from
impairment of investment. In 2019, net investment income
increased mainly due to dividend income from investment
in equity securities, gain from sale of investment and
increased in fair value gain.

S19N1S U 2563 U 2562 U 2561
Items 2020 2019 2018

dnsawanauinuaNFuadnu” (Seea:)
Investment Yield" (percent)
Nuaynu’ (@uuin)

Investment”® (THB Million)

1,979.4 1,995.6 1,952.9

" SnSIWaANdUINUINIUAINUAILINIIIN WasdUVeIsrglfvINNIsadnuans misnnisvigaunsweadnu doundiwanilsvaianuainiiuasnulu
uSBNSoU Ia=NlsviANUYINNISUSUYaAMYASSSU KSAOYITUaINU (10388)

2 Ruavnuus:nauRoyiiuaniia:s1gn1sIfuuInINuan FuasnuideA" Iuadnuitioviy Fuadnune:fioauasunrkua RIuadnunold FUTEREL na:Ru

aunuluusensou

" Investment Yield: Divide the summary of net investment income, gain (losses) on investments, share of profit from investment in an associate,

and fair value gain (losses) by the average investment assets.

"2 Investment assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, trading investments, available-for-sale investments, held-to-maturity investments,

general investments, loans, and investments in an associated.

91NKUNYIKAUS:NEUIUNISITUAInSUTFUgASUR 31
SuoAu 2563 11a: 2562 TniinisPmundoudiuaitiugnuoan
10U 2 dou Us:nousios wandruris:Augdnus:Innadia lia:
WARANUFUS:AUE3AUSINNSOUWRIUN AU

Notes to financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2020 and 2019 classified business lines into two lines
as conventional and non-conventional reinsurance as
follows:

HUOU a"IUU"ln
Un|t THB M|II|on

2563 2562
2020 2019

S1UNS

Items

iDeUs:Aunfentodusels
Earned Premiums

nasUs=NUZIN
Jszinnaiau
(@uunn)
Conventional
Reinsurance

1,202.8

nasuUs=NuBIMN
Us:innsouwsuu
(@uuan)
Non-Conventional
Reinsurance

1,020.0

n1sus:NuBIN
Us:INnNSouwWmun
(@wuunn)
Non-Conventional
Reinsurance

1,088.4

nasUs:=NUBIN
Uszinneiau
(@wuunn)
Conventional
Reinsurance

1,261.5

AlgIeTunisSuus:=nune 1,094.9 997.6 1,120.0 943.0
Underwriting expenses

nlseannassuds:aunesio 107.9 90.8 141.5 77.0
Profit from underwriting

dnsanalsennasSuls:nuneo (%) 9.0 8.3 11.2 7.5

Underwriting profit margin (percent)

NMISNVNEAUR:IKUTRIRSINIS9INNISSUUS:AunY
roveunsUs:NuBInUs:iNnaviauanadludnsiguitionnn
anno:nanaus:Augdntuds:ina Tuveu:ndnsininlsennissu
Us: nunumovaamsds nUBdmUs: mnsouwmwwlanasmw
UINN3TIINUSENENUISNUSHISIANSITOAIUALATINTW
vounisSuds:Aungsoln

In the above table, the underwriting profit margin from
conventional reinsurance decreased at higher rate due to
the fact that domestic life insurance market conditions,
while underwriting profit margin from non-conventional
reinsurance is more relatively stable because the Company
have capability to control the quality of reinsurance
underwriting.
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Tul 2563 U 2562 n1a:U 2561 usEnuAEaUlnUNAINUIEA:
A1E91ulunisianasAdulnunainuansininu 1,460.2
a1uunn 1,420.6 a1uunn a: 1,370.5 a1uuin MUENAU Nl
Tu 3 YA USBNTdMsIdouAMAUTHUNAINU (Loss Ratio)
INNAUSoua: 64.5 Sova: 64.4 1a:So8a: 60.6 mUaIAU [AUNS
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A1aulruNAINU (Loss Ratio) AMUorU9INAFUlnUNAINU
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Us:Aunusenieoidusiels Inudnsidounidulrunainu
10untvluavAds:nounldlunisdnds:anEnawvounas
SuUs:AUABVOIUSEN RISUNI1dNSIEOUSIU KO “Combined
Ratio” Ne:I5iosunusiolU

AlE91elun1sSuds:=nune

AlE91eTun1sSuls:nuny Us:nounoy AUNIKGY ATE
919lunsSulds=nunydu lazAlg9aalunisAtiugiu

Expenses

Two major expense categories for the Company are 1) claim
expenses and 2) underwriting expenses.

Claims Expenses

Claims expenses consist of claims incurred, whether paid
or unpaid to the reinsured in case of the insured’s becoming
ill, having an accident or passing away, and benefits under a
life insurance policy payable upon the insured reaching the
age specified in the policy or upon completion of a period of
time specified in the policy, deducted by claims recovered
from reinsurance. These also include actuarial claim liability
reserve, which is derived from the best possible estimate
of claims expected to be paid to the insured in the future
for both the reported and the unreported losses incurred
before or on the estimation date, and include loss adjustment
expenses.

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company recorded claims
expenses at THB 1,460.2 million, THB 1,420.6 million and
THB 1,370.5 million respectively, representing for three years
a loss ratio of 64.5 percent, 64.4 percent and 60.6 percent
respectively. An increasing in claim expenses in the past
three year mainly from the increase in health insurance that
grow in accordance with the life insurance market conditions
together with the higher average of loss ratio than other
products. Nevertheless, the Company can manage by
considering the risk at acceptable risk level, however, the
Company has a policy to control a loss ratio to be in the
appropriate level by improving the conditions for underwriting
or terminate the loss reinsurance contracts and so on.

Nevertheless, claim payment will directly affect the profit
commission which will be discussed later on. Loss ratio
will be calculated from compensation and expenditures
in handling with such compensation, compared to earned
premiums. The loss ratio will be employed as one of the
instruments in measuring the Company’s efficiency in the
reinsurance business, called “the combined ratio” which will
be explained in details later.

Underwriting Expenses

Underwriting expenses include commission expenses, other
underwriting expenses, and operating expenses.
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ANTUIIUdU

Commission expenses

As mentioned earlier, the Company’s core business is to
provide reinsurance services for life insurance companies.
Under the reinsurance contract, account items consist of
(1) reinsurance premium (2) deductible expenses such as
commission expenses as agreed upon in the contract and
(8) claim payable based on the liability per policy under such
reinsurance contract. Therefore, the commission is
comparable to a discount payable from reinsurance under
the reinsurance contract. Commission is divided into 2
parts, commission payable to the life insurance company
when transferring a transaction to the Company and profit
commission which relies mainly on profit sharing from quality
of such transaction the Company has to pay to the life
insurance company. If the Company has to pay a large
amount of claims for such transaction, the profit commission
payable to the Company will decline as a result or not be paid
at all. Nonetheless, the profit commission will vary based on
each reinsurance contract’s terms and conditions.

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company recorded commission
expenses at THB 570.5 million, THB 536.1 million and THB
548.6 million respectively, representing net commission
expenses ratio of 25.1 percent, 24.2 percent and 24.1
percent respectively.

Net commission ratio will be calculated from commission
expenses less commission income, compared to earned
premium. Net commission ratio is regarded as one
instrument in measuring the Company’s efficiency in the
reinsurance business, called the combined ratio which will
be discussed later on.

Other underwriting expenses

Other underwriting expenses consist of contribution the
Office of Insurance Commission, employee’s expenses
which are relate for underwriting and other underwriting
expenses as agreed on in the reinsurance contract.

In 2020, 2019, and 2018, the Company recorded other
underwriting expenses of THB 36.5 million, THB 33.9 million
and THB 25.2 million respectively, accounting for a growth
rate of 7.7 percent and 34.3 percent respectively.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses comprise of staff expenses, premise
expenses, taxable expenses, and other operating expenses.
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Tul 2563 U 2562 na:U 2561 usenidA1lg919luns
ANTUINUINIAU 93.0 41uU1n 92.1 d1uU1n N1a: 85.4 a1uun
muaaU AndudnsimsiAulniwuiuSoua: 0.9 Ia:Sova: 7.9
nanau Inelut 2563 i1a:U 2562 AlEdnglunisAntugun
wuiuiUedunanenAnldsneRinuolosnuunnans

dnsadounldaresuls=nunenazArlédrontdudau

dnsadounidanasSuds:=nunana:Atdaruntuvu
10unktvluavAUs:nounldTunisinus:ansnawveunissu
Us:Aufgvedustin Aisundndnsidousou Ko “Combined
Ratio” dnsadounldanosSuus:nunana:zAEarentiuiiu
AuoruIINWasouvauAlEgnelunissuls:AuRudU 1a:AlE
Sesntuu IUSsUIRsUNUITEUSAUABFOSUANS dnsndou
AlgIesSuUsNnuneIa:AEIenItuIruveadusen Tul 2563
U 2562 n1a:U 2561 InnnuSosa: 5.6 Sova: 5.4 na:Sova: 4.7
MIEIAU

dmns1dousou

dns1doUsoU (Combined Ratio) 10Udns1doUnTIATE
fnuagiwsrnalaglunisdnus:ansnawvounissuus:=nune
Inedns1dousouds:NounNIUdNSIEIURIC AIU

1) dmsadourraulnunainu
2) dmsrdouruninbiogans
3) dmsndoumidanesuds=nunaia:AEInuntudnu

Aadunn dnsnaousounIndnSoua: 100 IAAISISSAVD
nlsennassuds:=nNune dmsrdousouvevuseniul 2563
U 2562 na:U 2561 Innu Sova: 95.2 Sova: 94.0 na:Sova:
89.4 muadau Inslull 2563 l1a: U 2562 dns1dousouiwuiu
ItiouNUBNTaNs1douAEUTHUNAINUIIUUS:ALUZIANAUIA:
Us=Augvnwiwuuniu

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company recorded total
operating expenses at THB 93.0 million, THB 92.1 million and
THB 85.4 million respectively, accounting for a growth rate of
0.9 percent and 7.9 percent respectively. In 2020 and 2019,
an increase in operating expenses mainly resulted from an
increase in staff related expenses.

Underwriting Expenses and Operating Expenses Ratio

The ratio of underwriting expenses and operating
expenses are one of the instrument employed in measuring
the Company'’s efficiency in reinsurance business which
is called “combined ratio”. Such ratio is calculated from
other underwriting expenses plus operating expenses in
comparison with net written premiums, underwriting
expenses and other operating expenses. In 2020, 2019
and 2018, the ratio of underwriting and operating expenses
was equivalent to 5.6 percent, 5.4 percent and 4.7 percent
respectively.

Combined Ratio

Combined ratio is a commonly used ratio in measuring the
efficiency of insurance. Combined ratio consists of the
following:

1) Loss ratio
2) Net commission ratio

3) Underwriting expenses and operating expenses
ratio

Consequently, if the combined ratio is lower than 100
percent, meaning that the Company has profits from its
reinsurance business. The Company’s combined ratio in
2020, 2019 and 2018 were 95.2 percent, 94.0 percent and
89.4 percent respectively. In 2020 and 2019, an increasing
in combined ratio was a result of an increasing in loss ratio
of group and health insurance.
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MISWIEAIINSIGOUSIU
Table illustrating the combined ratio

HUOU saaa
Un|t percent

$19N1S U 2563 U 2562 U 2561
Items 2020 2019 2018

dnsadournaulrunainu
Loss ratio

dnsdounnunikdeans
Net commissions ratio

dnsndounniganasSuds=nunaiazATEaruatudnu
Underwriting expenses and operating expenses ratio

dms1dousou
Combined ratio

fnlsans

Tud 2563 U 2562 11a:U 2561 useninnlsansininu 121.4
a7uu1n 194.3 &uunn Nla: 253.5 duun MaAu Anidu
dmsnnlsgnssova: 5.2 Sova: 8.1 1a:5ova: 10.4 mMuUAIAU
Tnelul 2563 dnsrlsansanavitiouunansieliineonunis
avnuansfanay d1sull 2563 dnsrlsansanavitiodnan
AdulruNAINUINUUS=NUBINUS:INNEJNY Us:NuoUuRInn&ou
yAAa lla:Us=AUgVNIWAITLU

dmnsrwanaunnudouveuiiiionu

Tul 2563 U 2562 1a:U 2561 USBNIdNSIWaNOUINUEIU
voauyhioAuINNUSova: 8.4 Sova: 13.4 na:Sova: 17.0 MU
annu
72UzNWNISNU
gunsSwsg

aunSwgnanvouusin Us:naumnoy RUaAIazs18n1s
INguININuan s1elaanNnisainuAIsy dunSweiNnNIs

Us=nunuso annﬁvmnﬁryry']Us:ﬁuﬁur;io Ruavnulunannswe
la=nau 91A1s nazaunsni

fu Ful 2563 U 2562 1a:U 2561 uSBNIAUNSWEISOUINA
fiu 2,700.1 awUuun 2,426.2 d1UU1N la: 2,357.9 d1uun
MU Andudnsinisiaulniwuiusosa: 11.3 na:Sova:
2.9 MUENAU TsnenisidrAtysit

25.1 24.2 241
5.6 5.4 4.7
95.2 94.0 89.4
Net Profit

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company recorded a net profit
at THB 121.4 million, THB 194.3 million and THB 253.5
million respectively, representing a net profit margin of 5.2
percent, 8.1 percent and 10.4 percent respectively. In 2020,
a declined of profit margin was due to a declining in the net
investment in come. In 2020, a decrease of profit margin was
due to an increase in the claim incurred in the ordinary life,
individual personal accident and health product.

Return on Equity

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company recorded return
on equity of 8.4 percent, 13.4 percent and 17.0 percent,
respectively.

Financial Position
Assets

The Company’s core assets are composed of cash and
cash equivalents, accrued investment income, premium
receivables, reinsurance assets, reinsurance receivables,
investments in securities, and premises equipment.

As of the end of 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company’s total
assets were recorded at THB 2,700.1 million, THB 2,426.2
million and THB 2,357.9 million respectively, increasing by
11.3 percent and 2.9 percent respectively.
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anhtondryryads=nunesio

@nnﬁoqnﬁmrwaS:ﬁuﬁuﬁa Us:=noumoe U9 WIdINNIS
Us:=Nungmo lazRuAWNSUIINNIsSUS=NUNYFo

IUONIBINNNsUs=AUNEse Ao RudrsasaniDeus:Ausio
AusBnUs:Aune (WionUs:Aufena) 1fuINUSENSU
Us=Auneraiioidunands:Au Tunsdifijsuls:Aunoso
o19Us:audrynin1unasiiu Tuaunsndis:Ha lBnIudnyrya
Js:Aunemo Nudisavninaloyionds:nunusadsaulul
anlundailioduduanaryryn

ru AUl 2563 U 2562 la:U 2561 usBNTanKG Ay
UszNunosaininu 433.9 aauun 214.6 aauuln na: 195.5
duun muaau IneAanidudnsidounodunswesouSovas
16.1 Sova: 8.8 lla:Sova: 8.3 mMudau InulsrvazIBunmad

anhtinndryryads=Nnunemo

Reinsurance Receivables

Reinsurance Receivables

Reinsurance Receivables consists of amounts deposited on
reinsurance and amount due from reinsurers.

Amounts Deposited on reinsurance are premium reserves
collected by an insurance company (a reinsured) from a
reinsurer as collateral in case the reinsurer encounters
financial difficulties and is unable to perform obligations
under the insurance contract. Such reserves will be returned
by the reinsured in the following year or upon the end of the
contract.

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company’s reinsurance
receivables amounted to THB 433.9 million, THB 214.6
million and THB 195.5 million, representing 16.1 percent, 8.8
percent and 8.3 percent of total assets respectively. Details
are described below:

(Muoy: druuln)
(Unit: THB Million

RuoWIdNNISUSNUNYMD
Amounts deposited on reinsurance

NUAMSUIINNISUS:NUNEFD
Amounts dues from reinsurers

Ssou
Total

dunswedaunu

dunSwegadnuds:nounoy 1IUdANIAzSIuNISINYUINI
Iuan Ruadnuifiodn Ruadnuitiovis 1IuainuAe:=fiosuAsu
fruA 1Iuainunoly RUTEABU 1a:Ruasnuluusensou Tnod
swa:IBunAIU

98.6 92.4 62.0
335.3 122.2 133.5
433.9 214.6 195.5

Investment Assets

Investment assets are composed of cash and cash
equivalents, trading investment, available-for-sale
investments, held-to-maturity investments, general
investments, loans and investments in associate details of
which are as follows:
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S19UN1S

Items

(Muog: auu1n)
(Unit: THB M|II|on

U 2563 U 2562 U 2561

2020 2019 2018
aauunn Sova: aauun Soga: auun Sova:
Amount | Percent | Amount | Percent | Amount | Percent

NUdnIa:s1eNIsSINgUININuEn
Cash and cash equivalents
RuaJnuIiioAn
Trading investment
Ms1a1sNu
Equity securities
|Clua\1n‘uu7iavw
Available for sale investment
Ms1aIsnNu
Equity securities
Huogaunu
Unit trusts

RuaunuRv:fioouAsUMKUA

Held to maturity investment
nannSwesgunana:zSgdannng
Government and state enterprise securities

nsnasHUNIAIPNBU
Private enterprise debt securities

NuwWINsuIAIS
Deposits at banks

Ruaununoly
General investments

NUlANEU 0.6

Loans

NuavnuluusBnsou
Investments in an associate

SoU
Total

RuaJnuIwoA

|Guaur1U|V"\ioﬁ'1 QIVREIhTY |Gua\1nur‘iu§Gnaar1U||a:U
dnnuUs:avAne:vrgluasunAndulng Invasnuluduaan:ideulu
matanannsweinvds:inAlne

ru Aul 2563 U 2562 na:U 2561 USENGITUaINUITIOA
INAU 79.1 &1uu1n 72.3 4quu1n 1a: 78.5 Aqauuin nuanau
InoAnbudnsadouradunswesoudova: 2.9 Sova: 3.0
Sowya: 3.3 mMuannu

Al ITuanuIiioAn ru AUl 2563 U 2562 a=U 2561
Andudnsndousioaunsweanuininusosa: 4.0 Sova: 3.6
na:5oua: 4.0 nuanu

411

79.1

339.4

543.6

475.6

287.4

199.8

12.8

1,979.4

33.8 55.1
4.0 72.3 3.6 78.5 4.0
171 203.0 10.2 243.4 12.5
27.5 601.0 30.1 699.9 35.8
24.0 709.1 35.5 546.4 28.0
14.5 214.6 10.7 180.0 9.2
10.1 145.0 7.3 130.0 6.7
- 2.1 0.1 2.1 0.1
0.1 1.0 0.1 1.4 0.1
0.6 13.6 0.7 16.1 0.8
100.0 1,995.5 100.0 1,952.9 100.0

Trading investments

Trading investments refer to investment performed by the
Company with the intention to sell them in the near future in
which the Company has to invest such registered shares in
the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET).

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company had total trading
investments of THB 79.1 million, THB 72.3 million and THB
78.5 million respectively, representing 2.9 percent, 3.0
percent and 3.3 percent of its total assets respectively.

Nevertheless, trading investments in 2020, 2019 and 2018
accounted for 4.0 percent, 3.6 percent and 4.0 percent of
investment assets respectively.
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Ruavnuiovie

Iuadnuitiovie Kurefiv 1IuasnuiusBnadnuna:i
dnnUs:avAnv:vrsluounnn Ineus:nounds msiaisnuna:
ruovaunu

ru AUl 2563 U 2562 na:U 2561 USBNTRUaNUIEOV1Y
IN1AU 883.0 d1uu1n 804.0 a1uunn a: 943.3 a1uuin
nwanu Inoanidudnsidousiodunswesousoua: 32.7
Sowa: 33.1 na:Sova: 40.0 nwanu Inedndouduainu
iovisvesustinidunsiansnuds:unrusosa: 25 filuowa: 40
naz10untoasnuUs:urtuSosa: 60 fuSosa: 75

AVl Fuadnuitiovne ru AUl 2563 U 2562 Na:U 2561
Andudnsdousiodunswedadnuininusosa: 44.6 Sova:
40.3 la:80ua: 48.3 MUAINU

RuaJnun9:NesuAsunInuA

Ruadnuhv:fioauAsurithun KUNefiy [FuadnuAUSEN
asnuna:idnnUs:=avrAne:foounsuritnunlnnou Taun
nannswegsgunana:Sgdannne ns1asHiNIAIONBU Nla:
NuWnsu1ns

ru Ful 2563 U 2562 na:0 2561 USBNTIUAINUAD:
filoouAsUNIKUAINIAU 962.8 a1uuln 1,068.7 aqUuIn lia:
856.4 awuun nwaau InoAnidudnsidousodunsSwesou
Sowa: 35.7 Sowa: 44.1 1a:Sova: 36.3 MUEIAU

vl IFuadnuA9:=fiosuAsuriun ru AUt 2563 U 2562
na:U 2561 Anidudnsadousiodunsweasnuininu$osas
48.6 Sova: 53.5 1a:Sova: 43.9 MUARU

NAu 91A1s na:ounsni-gns

—_—

pu AUl 2563 U 2562 1a:U 2561 USBNDNAU 91ANS N1a:
aUnsnignsinanu 51.1 d1uuin 53.3 d1uunn na: 55.2
duun mwannu IneAanidudnsidousiodunswesousova:
1.9 Sowa: 2.2 n1a:Sova: 2.3 nUa1AU

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments refer to investments made
by the Company and intended to be sold in the future,
comprising of equity securities and unit trusts.

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company’s available-for-sale
investments amounted to THB 883.0 million, THB
804.0 million and THB 943.3 million respectively,
representing 32.7 percent, 33.1 percent and 40.0
percent of total assets respectively. A proportion of
available-for-sale investments were reported at 25
percent to 40 percent and unit truste were report at
60 percent to 75 percent respectively.

However, available-for-sale investments in 2020, 2019
and 2018 made up 44.6 percent, 40.3 percent and 48.3
percent of investment assets respectively.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are investments made by the
Company and intended to be held until maturity, comprising
of government and state enterprise securities, debentures,
and deposits at banks.

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, held-to-maturity investments
amounted to THB 962.8 million, THB 1,068.7 million and
THB 856.4 million, respectively, representing 35.7 percent,
441 percent and 36.3 percent of total assets, respectively.

Held-to-maturity investments accounted for 48.6 percent,
53.5 percent and 43.9 percent of investment assets in 2020,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

Premises and equipment

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, premises and equipment-net of
the Company amounted to THB 51.1 million, THB 53.3 million
and THB 55.2 million respectively, representing 1.9 percent,
2.2 percent and 2.3 percent of total assets respectively.
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(MU2: &uunn)
(Unit: THB Million

S19N1S
Particulars
fiAu
Land
21A1S
Building

InSounniisiiazindoulddatineiu
Furniture, Fixture and equipment

AOUWIINDS
Computers

aunsweansnnsid
Right-of-use assets

SouU - ans
Total - Net

nugu

ru AUl 2563 U 2562 N1a:U 2561 USBNDHUFUSOUINNAU
1,276.1 &1uu1n 967.6 a1UU1n lla: 919.0 A7UUN MUATAU
AnIdudnsINsIAUInWUTUSoua: 31.9 la:Soua: 5.3 MUEHU
TnortiausouRimuiubanananeNkiauINdryryus:=Nune
TnebsnenisidArysvd

I9ntusSEnUs:Aunesio
ru AUl 2563 U 2562 na:U 2561 USEN DIFIKTUSEN
Js=nunusmaininu 346.7 aauuin 137.0 aauunn 1a: 184.6

a1uunn muainu InoAanidudnsidournontduna:-douvoy
191vousousoua: 12.8 Soua: 5.6 lla:Sova: 7.8 muaInu

hldauvndryryads:=nune

HuAUINAryryUs:Auie Us:nousios disouls:Ausiy
danSudryryrds:nunys:g:910 drsadA1aulnunainu na:
disouilods:nuny

drsouds=nunedinsSudryryads:=Nunes:g:919

drsouds:nunenuuibeds:nunusouidudisauus:Au
FInnAUONUMUSEVaUAUnAEnsSUs:AUREAIUUS:NA AUN.
TnedvoauuAnannlslunisus:unrunisifeoviouiu Snsanis
VInongrdolouAuNnsusss ANfEIeIRuonUNMsYIIazUSHIS
dnsustuziiazansuSudos dnsiAnan a:ansiiuduwaniu
Suseunsdreiuaunan I0URU TneNNIUEUSOUS:B:1081S18 U
usBNe:IUSBUIRBUYaAd1saIUsAUABILUITBUS:AUNESOU
fAudsevideus:AunuRgulutioiusialfidnsunsusssungs
DwatuAueg rnyaAndisedus:AufgIuuIboUs:AuNsow
aundndrseuidous=nunendulitiodusnels usBne:suSdou
AIazIianIs1en1sarsaUs:AuAUIuUITaUs:AufusouTugu
NS

17.6 17.6 17.6

27.2 29.4 32.2

3.8 5.1 3.8

1.0 1.2 1.6

1.5 - -

51.1 53.3 55.2
Liabilities

As at the end of 2020, 2019, and 2018, the Company had total
liabilities of THB 1,276.1 million, THB 967.6 million and THB
919.0 million, respectively, increased by 31.9 percent and
decreased by 5.3 percent, respectively. The chiefly attributed
changes in total liabilities were increased from insurance
contract liabilities which the main items are as follows:

Amounts Due to Reinsurers

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, amounts due to reinsurers totaled
THB 346.7 million, THB 137.0 million and THB 184.6 million,
respectively, representing 12.8 percent, 5.6 percentand 7.8
percent of total liabilities and equity, respectively.

Insurance Contract Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities are composed of long-term
insurance policy reserves refer to reserves for long-term
reinsurance agreements, loss reserves and outstanding
claims and premium reserves

Long term insurance policy reserves

Gross premium valuation reserves are life policy reserves,
calculated using an actuarial method in accordance with the
OIC notifications. The main assumptions applied relate to
lapse or surrender rate, selling and administrative expenses,
mortality, morbidity, discount rate and non-guaranteed
dividend payment rate. Long term insurance policy reserves
refer to reserves for long-term reinsurance agreements.
At every final date of the reporting period, there will be
comparison between value of gross premium valuation
reserves and unearned premium reserves for policies that
still remain in force. If value of gross premium valuation
reserves is higher than unearned premium reserves, such
difference will be recognized and the gross premium
insurance reserves will be presented in the financial
statements.
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ru AUl 2563 U 2562 1a:U 2561 USBniidsauUs:=Aune
dmSudryryrds=Nunes:g:912In1Nu 508.6 awuuin 471.2
d1uunn na: 406.8 dwuun mwainu IneAnidudnsidou
rorUauUNa:douvauiinvousousosa: 18.8 Sowa: 19.4 lla:
Sowa: 17.3 mwannu Ined 2563 U 2562 1a:U 2561 d1sod
Us:Aufiednsudnyryads:Aufes:g:0101WuTu 1Gova1nns
AMuorudsevUs=AUNuIUUIDEUs:NUAYSIUEINIE1SouITY
Us:nunendalutioDusnels

drsovAdulnunminu

d1savAnaulrunainu Kuleiv Us:uarunisAndulruy
nanuarsuAUIFEKIERIRAVUIEINASITLTERNaY Kody
TWTGsusneU nazANaUTrUNAINUARNadIEIFEIoUS:AUNY
gululEsuTU Avtinnsus:urunisArauTrunanulkiduluniu
NNHUIYIINUNISATUINUIINUEISDIUSNUNE

ru AUl 2563 U 2562 11a:U 2561 USBniidsavAAUTHU
NAINUINTAU 29.0 aauu1n 7.8 d1uu1n nla: 21.7 aauuin
nwaau IneAnidudnsidousiontaunazaouvauidnvodsou
Sowa: 1.1 Sowa: 0.3 1a:Sova: 0.9 muaiau Inolul 2563
Innsdrsesmaulrunainuanaditios9nus:uarunisAnaulku
nanudnsunouIFsrIeRIfnvuNd oA galuTaSus1e9U
(Incurred but not reported: IBNR) Ramay

drsouiloUs:=fiune

msomuuds nunuidudisevdinsudryryrus:=nunosu
Us:=inns:u:du UsBne:=IUSBUIRBUYaAVoudsaIno Iy
AguludugnnudrseudoUs:nunuRgltiodusnelignsen
ANMG919s0ANUNYE 1a:9:SuSdounIWUIRUKINYAAT
voudsesnouIdsINURaTluAUgngINIdseuIuUs=Nune
AgulitiedustelfiansonAUiniesnesednUnys Inudnsey
AoWIEsINBRGIUAUaRITJusUoUIRURAUSENdsaulSITosnld
AraulnunaINuReIRAVLTUSUNAREMSUNMSUS:AUNBRSID
waluAUag BuAuanulngdsnisnIAfinFansUs=Auney

ru dud 2563 U 2562 n1a:0 2561 uSENn Gd1souidy
Js=Auneininu 326.8 aauuan 307.6 a1uun la: 255.4
dquun mwaau IneAandudnsidousiontauna:douvey
I9vousouSosa: 12.1 Sova: 12.7 na:Seva: 10.8 muanu
Tnelul) 2562 drsouidoUs:AusneidudrsoudoUs:Aunendll
fioldusnelsinnu 298.1 &uuin ia: ei'lsa\lnmuﬁiuaﬁuﬁﬁulu
auamlmnu 9.5 aquunn doulul 2563 1a:U2561 awsauluu
Us:Ausiediawn:drsovibuds:Aunenguludodusiels nud
drsouilous:AuneIvuiuINdndounissuls:Aungsos:o:
AURIWUYU

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company have long term
insurance policy reserves of THB 508.6 million, THB 471.2
million and THB 406.8 million respectively, representing 18.8
percent, 19.4 percent and 17.3 percent of total liabilities to
shareholders’ equity respectively. As for 2020, 2019 and
2018, an increase in long term insurance policy reserves was
aresult of Gross Premium Valuation’s calculation higher than
Unearned Premium Reserve’s calculation.

Loss Reserves

Loss reserves refer to provisions for claims for losses
incurred but not yet agreed upon or reported. Provisions
for claims shall conform to the law governing reserve
calculation.

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company’s loss reserves
equaled THB 29.0 million, THB 7.8 million and THB 21.7
million respectively, accounting for 1.1 percent, 0.3 percent
and 0.9 percent of total liabilities to shareholders’ equity
respectively. In 2020, a decrease in loss reserves resulted
from a decline in incurred but not reported claims (IBNR).

Premium Reserves

Premium reserves are short-term insurance policy reserves.
At the end of the reporting period, the Company compares
the amount of unexpired risk reserves with that of net
unearned premium reserves from deferred commission
expenses, and if the amounts of unexpired risk reserves
are higher than the amounts of unearned premium reserves
net of deferred commission expenses, the Company will
recognize additional reserves for such difference. However,
the increase or decrease in unearned premium reserves
from prior year is to be recognized in profit or loss. The
unexpired risk reserves, consistent with the actuarial
method, are provided for any possible future claims arising
from the insurance that remain in force.

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company had premium
reserves of THB 326.8 million, THB 307.6 million and THB
255.4 million, respectively, representing 12.1 percent,
12.7 percent and 10.8 percent of total liabilities to
shareholders’ equity, respectively. In 2019, premium
reserves comprising of unearned premium reserves THB
298.1 million and unexpired risk reserves THB 9.5 million.
In 2020 and 2018, premium reserves was only for unearned
premium reserve. Nevertheless, premium reserves increased
from increasing in short-term reinsurance.
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AoUasniunIsusnasnSweau
NuAwWSUINNIsUs:=NUNYsID

RUANSUINNIsUS:AUAUAD KuTefiv 1I0eUs:Auny
ANSU AMUNIKU9ANSU AMEUTHUNAINUATIISU 18:S19N1S
AWSUBU 9NUSENUs:NUAY lazAnAnitiontiavda:ary ny
usBnUURNANIGiontiavd9:arydnsuuavianuineUs:uirun
219IAATUINNASIAURUILTE $uWansturaanUs:aunsninis
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Asset Management Ability
Amounts due from reinsurers

Amounts due from reinsurers consist of premium
receivables, commission income receivables, claim
receivables and various other items receivable from
reinsurers, excluding reinsurance premium receivable,
and are deducted by allowance for doubtful accounts.
The Company records allowance for doubtful accounts
for the estimated losses that may be incurred due to
uncollectible, taking into account collection experience
and the status of reinsurers.

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company had outstanding
debts from reinsurance which was equivalent to THB 335.3
million, THB 122.2 million and THB 133.5 million, respectively,
which were accounted for 12.4 percent, 5.0 percent, 5.7
percent of the total asset respectively. In 2019 and 2018, the
amounts due from reinsurers declined since the Company
was able to manage debt collection more effectively.

Nevertheless, 99 percent of the amounts due from
reinsurers are not yet due. Only 1 percent exceeds
the payment due date as indicated in No.9 of notes in the
financial statement.

Liquidity and Capital Adequacy
Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from operating activities is reinsurance
receivables and investment income, operating expenditures,
corporate income tax and including cash received or paid
from investments in securities. In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the
Company had cash flow provided from operating activities
of THB 88.4 million, 149.2 million and THB 156.5 million
respectively. A decrease in cash flow from operating
activities in 2020, was the result from decreasing in cash
received from reinsurance and gain from sales of investment.

Cash flow from operating activities

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company reported cash flow
for investing activities of THB 2.2 million, THB 2.5 million
and THB 13.5 million respectively. In 2018, the Company’s
cash flow from investing activities remarkably increased as
a result of the office renovation.
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Cash flow from financing activities

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, the Company’s cash flow employed
in financing activities amounted to THB 78.8 million, THB
168.0 million and THB 300.0 million respectively. The main
item of cash flow from financing activities was dividend
payment to the Company’s shareholders.

Capital Structure

The Company does not acquire other capital sources from
loaning or have any other sources out of financial statements.
Nevertheless, the Company’s D/E ratio at the end of 2020
was 0.9 times caused mainly from due to reinsurers and
insurance contract liabilities.

Factors Impacting on Future Operation and
Financial Position

Economic Volatility

Economic fluctuation could be a threat to consumers’
purchasing power. Particularly in tough economic times,
consumers will become more stringent in their spending,
including their decision on buying insurance. Some of them
choose to take out insurance only when they could save
enough money. Besides this, interest rate is another factor
influencing consumers’ insurance buying decision, which is
made based on comparison with yields from other forms of
financial instruments. Interest rate also has an effect on the
rate of return receivable by the Company from investments,
which will further affect on operating performance.

Domestic Reinsurance Business Expansion by Foreign
Reinsurers

Factors include the expansion of international reinsurance
companies in Thailand (not in a form the joint venture),
cutting-edge technology and ongoing product innovation
and development have made the reinsurance with life
insurance companies more difficult. However, major life
insurance companies in Thailand are still close and in good
relationship with the Company, as well as the Company had
an expertise in the life insurance business of Thailand as well,
led to the Company’s growth steadily.
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iDeUs:nuiurosu

Gross Written Premiums
i0eUs:=AuNusosUaNS
Net Written Premiums
iWeUs:=Aunesontodusels
Earned Premium
nlsvnnassuds:nung’
Underwriting Profit'
snelnvInnN1sasnuans
Net investment income
nlsnaunBiIuls

Profit before Tax
nlsans

Net Profit

gunSwgainu

Investment Assets
aunsweisou

Total Assets

KUAUSOU

Total Liabilities
nuiSen¥1s:180

Paid-up Capital

NUNdJNU (douvedtifioru)
Capital Funds (Shareholders’ Equity)
JaARURWOYE (UNsioru)
Book Value per share (Baht)
uduwa (UNsvAU)
Dividend per Share (Baht)

dnsrAaUlrUNAINU®
Loss Ratio®
ansadounnidane®
Expenses Ratio®

dMS1douUsou
Combined Ratio

dnswanaulnusiagouvagiioRu
Return on Equity

dnsIwanauIinuYINNISaINU
Investment Yield
nnlsanssioAu (Un)
Earnings per Share (Baht)

nugIne:

1.
2.
3.

2,338,705

2,319,390

2,291,209

105,655

31,397

142,588

121,435

1,979,404

2,700,104

1,276,108

600,000

1,423,996

2.37

0.14

64.5

30.7

95.2

8.4

1.7

0.20

ansnasrnAnlEgeAtuUIa:Klisudo9=ary ([10)
dnsAdulrunaInu Kuefis AFUTruNAINUENS / (DeUs:AunentioiDusielsi-grsegUsnunedrSudnyryius:Nunes:g:810IWuTU (@nad)andnou)
dnsndournldine runefiv snsndounriiniadns + snsndounnlgsnglunissuls:nunena:AEanesntiuiu

Note:

1.
2.
3.

Net of other operating expenses and allowance for doubtful debt (if any)

2,339,703

2,324,110

2,281,480

126,256

100,075

232,005

194,256

1,995,587

2,426,164

967,550

600,000

1,458,614

2.43

0.26

64.4

29.6

94.0

13.4

5.1

0.32

2,400,298

2,380,760

2,347,462

234,102

74,117

310,022

253,467

1,952,881

2,357,869

918,948

600,000

1,438,921

2.40

0.35

60.6

28.8

89.4

17.0

3.8

0.42

2,157,428

2,136,580

2,096,545

455,964

82,355

542,233

435,684

1,987,421

2,397,065

853,601

600,000

1,543,464

2.57

0.50

44.4

33.3

7.7

30.5

4.6

0.73

1,975,176

1,950,078

1,965,811

299,753

86,682

390,000

321,748

1,596,792

2,052,532

739,517

600,000

1,313,015

2.19

0.40

48.9

35.7

84.6

24.8

5.3

0.54

(MU2®: Wuu1n)

(Unit: THB Thousand)

2563 2562 2561 2560 2559 2558 2557
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

waus:=naunis
Operations

1,850,785

1,828,084

1,833,458

423,065

52,424

478,113

388,673

1,526,145

2,025,325

742,862

600,000

1,282,464

2.14

0.50

44.0

32.1

76.1

31.4

3.6

0.65

Loss Ratio expressed as a total of net loss (earned premiums deduct life policy reserve increase(decrease) from previous year)
Expenses Ratio expressed as a Commission Ratio plus Underwriting and Operating expenses Ratio

1,623,774

1,606,600

1,582,962

331,274

115,612

449,188

371,717

1,483,505

1,978,544

788,832

600,000

1,189,712

1.98

0.45

40.8

38.2

79.0

32.6

8.2

0.62
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The Board of Directors has the duties and responsibilities
to supervise the business undertaking by the Company in
compliance with the good corporate governance principles.
The Board of Directors is accountable for the financial
statements of the Company. The financial statements
ended 31 December 2020 are prepared in accordance
with Thai Accounting Standard Act B.E. 2547 and other
related regulations of The Office of Insurance Commission.
Appropriate accounting policies are cautiously utilized.
Sufficientimportant information is disclosed in the footnotes
of the financial statements which have been audited by
the auditors.

The Board of Directors has provided and maintained the
effectiveness of risk management, internal control, internal
audit and supervision, to be assured that the financial
records are accurate, complete and adequate to protect
the Company’s assets and to prevent any significant
operational risk. The Board of Directors has appointed an
Audit Committee comprised of independent directors and
non-management members of the Company as regulators in
this matter. The opinion of the Audit Committee with regard
to these matters appear in the report of the Audit Committee
in this Annual Report.

The Board of Directors is of the view that the Company
has maintained an effective internal control system at an
adequate and appropriate level of protection to assure the
credibility of the financial statements presenting the correct
financial positions, financial performance and cash flow of
Thaire Life Assurance Public Co., Ltd.
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Dear Shareholders,

The Audit Committee is composed of three independent
directors: Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana as Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon and Mr. Tarate
Poshyananda All members of the Audit Committee are
knowledgeable and experienced in reviewing the reliability
of financial statements required by the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Audit Committee has duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board of Directors, which include
reviewing the correctness and adequacy of the Company’s
financial reporting and ensuring the effectiveness of internal
control system, risk management system and corporate
governance process and the compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The Audit Committee is also responsible
for monitoring and ensuring that any transactions that may
have a conflict of interest are conducted in accordance with
regulations and provide maximum benefit to the Company,
as well as selecting and nominating an independent auditor
for the Company.

In 2020, the Audit Committee completed their duties
under the scope of responsibilities assigned by the Board
of Directors and in line with the Audit Committee Charter.
Four meetings were held in the year and were attended by
all committee members. The Management, independent
auditor, internal auditors, and risk management department
representatives were also invited to join the meetings on
the agenda items which they were concerned. The main
duties performed by the Audit Committee in 2020 can be
summarized as follows:

1. Approved quarterly financial statements and reviewed
annual financial statements of the Company prior to
disclosure to the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the
Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

2. Nominated and recommended an appointment of
auditor and fixing of auditor’s remuneration, with EY
Office Limited being nominated and appointed as auditor
of the Company for another year (for the year 2020).

3. Attended two joint meetings with the auditor, one of which
was organized without the attendance of the Management
to consider the guideline and scope of auditing and review
the audit plan, results and recommendations to ensure
that the audit of financial statements was carried out
properly and completely in accordance with the auditing
standards.
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4. Oversaw internal audit, approved the annual internal

audit plan based on the Company’s material risks,
reviewed the audit reports to ensure that the audit was
carried out properly and completely in accordance with
the internal auditing standards, and followed up on
the recommended corrective actions to improve
the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal
control system.

. Reviewed the report on compliance with relevant laws

and regulations on a quarterly basis.

. Reviewed the report on related party transactions on

a quarterly basis.

. Reviewed and assessed the enterprise wide risk

management process to ensure that they were
appropriate and effective in accordance with the global
standard, obtained the audit report on the enterprise wide
risk management process from Internal Audit Department
at least annually, and provided recommendation for
the effectiveness of the risk management process.

. Arranged for the annual self-assessment of the Audit

Committee as a whole and discussed the assessment
results at the Audit Committee meeting.

. Arranged for the annual evaluation of internal control

adequacy and proposed the evaluation results to the
Board of Directors for consideration and approval.

The Audit Committee’s opinions are as follows:

1. Based on (1) a review of the Company’s significant

accounting policy, (2) an enquiry about important details
of financial position and performance, (3) a review of the
report on evaluation of internal control adequacy, and
(4) an independent meeting with the auditor to discuss
about observations on the financial reporting process
and reliability, the Audit Committee has not found
any ground for doubting that the Company’s financial
statements presents information which contradicts
material fact and, hence, is confident that the
Company’s financial statements is reliable, accurate
and complete in accordance with the financial reporting
standards.

2. The Company’s internal control system, risk management

system, operational control of management team, and
monitoring system are effective and adequate.
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3. The Company gives importance to compliance with the

law on securities and exchange, regulations of the Stock
Exchange, and other laws relevant to the Company’s
business.

. The appointed auditor of the Company has experience

in auditing several insurance companies and has a
well-recognized broad local and global network, thus
enabling the auditing standard of the Company to meet
international level. Moreover, the auditor and all persons
designated to certify the financial statements are the
auditors approved by the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission, are independent, and do not
have any relationship or any transaction that may cause
conflict of interest with the Company, thereby ensuring
that an audit will be conducted in an efficient and
transparent manner.

. All related party transactions or transactions that may

cause conflict of interest were done in conformity with
the laws and regulations of the Stock Exchange and were
reasonable with the maximum benefit to the Company.
There was not any other indication or remark that implied
any irregularity.

. The Audit Committee has the number of members,

composition and qualification suitable for an efficient
discharge of duties under the Audit Committee Charter.
The Audit Committee has performed their duties in
accordance with the scope of responsibilities correctly
and completely in all respects with good collaboration
and support from all concerned parties.

TuunuAruzNSSUNISMSOEOU
On Behalf of the Audit Committee

(ns.nous NnnaINSIU)
(Dr. Kopr Kritayakirana)
Us:=s81UANUNSSUNISASIAE0U
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Thaire Life Assurance Public Company
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position, in which the equity
method is applied, as at 31 December 2020, and the related statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in owner’s equity and cash flows, in which the equity method is
applied, for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and also have audited the separate financial statements of Thaire

Life Assurance Public Company Limited for the same period.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2020,
its financial performance and cash flows, for the year then ended in accordance with Thai

Financial Reporting Standards.
Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as issued by the Federation of Accounting
Professions as relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. | believe that the audit evidence | have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most
significance in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my
opinion thereon, and | do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

| have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, my
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to my assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of my audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for my audit
opinion on the accompanying financial statements as a whole.

Key audit matters and how audit procedures respond to each matter are described below.
Reinsurance premium written

The Company’s core revenue is from reinsurance premium written, which amounted to Baht
2,339 million. The Company has entered into reinsurance contracts with customers, who are life
insurance companies, for both facultative and treaty reinsurance contracts. Conditions under
those contracts vary depending upon types of insurance, reinsurance share, insured periods, etc.
In addition, recognition of revenue on such reinsurance contracts shall also meet the definition of
insurance contracts under Thai Financial Reporting Standards. Therefore, the Company’s
management is required to use judgement in consideration and review its product classification.
Hence, | therefore focused on examining that the reinsurance premium written is recognised
correctly as actually incurred.

| assessed and tested, on a sampling basis, the Company’s internal controls relevant to revenue
recognition from each type of reinsurance contract, assessed the appropriateness of method and
assumptions used for product classification testing, involving experts in the assessment of such
methods and assumptions through comparison with historical and industry data and the review of
the related actuarial models, tested, on a sampling basis, the data used for product classification
testing and tested, on a sampling basis, the amount of reinsurance premium written against the
statements received from reinsurers that occurred during the year and near the period-end.
Furthermore, | also performed analytical procedures on reinsurance premium written,
disaggregated by reinsurance types and tested, on a sampling basis, any significant adjustments
made through journal vouchers.
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Long-term insurance policy reserves

As described in Note 16 to the financial statements, as at 31 December 2020, the Company had
long-term insurance policy reserves amounting to Baht 509 million, representing 40 percent of
total liabilities, whereby the Company compared the amounts of gross premium valuation
reserves as at 31 December 2020 with those of unearned premium reserves, and recognised the
differences as additional reserves if the amounts of gross premium valuation reserves were
higher than those of unearned premium reserves. In calculation of the gross premium valuation
reserves, it involves the use of assumptions, including mortality rate, discounted rate, lapse or
surrender rate, and selling and administrative expense ratio. Changes in such assumptions will
affect the amounts of long-term insurance policy reserves and the Company’s management is
required to exercise high level of considerable judgement in selecting those assumptions.

| therefore focused on the adequacy of long-term insurance policy reserves.

| assessed the method and key assumptions used in determining long-term insurance policy
reserves by involving our experts to assist in analysis and comparison of the methods and
assumptions used to historical and industry data, and in the review of the actuarial models used
in calculating reserves under the Gross Premium Valuation method. Moreover, | also tested, on a
sampling basis, data used in calculation, and performed analytical procedures on movements of

long-term insurance policy reserves.
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprise the
information included in annual report of the Company, but does not include the financial
statements and my auditor’s report thereon. The annual report of the Company is expected to be

made available to me after the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.
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When | read the annual report of the Company, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, | am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance for correction

of the misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that | identify during my audit.
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| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
| determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.

| am responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report.

Rachada Yongsawadvanich
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4951

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 19 February 2021
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Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Statements of financial position

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 41,134,866 33,798,067 41,134,866 33,798,067
Accrued investment income 14,386,288 13,187,204 14,386,288 13,187,204
Reinsurance assets 8 3,372,998 2,662,337 3,372,998 2,662,337
Reinsurance receivables 9 433,896,203 214,596,499 433,896,203 214,596,499
Investment assets

Investments in securities 10.1 1,924,821,674 1,947,134,836 1,924,821,674 1,947,134,836

Loans and interest receivables 11 633,103 1,029,648 633,103 1,029,648
Investments in an associate 12 12,814,178 13,624,528 18,910,900 21,684,234
Premises and equipment 13 51,069,455 53,308,373 51,069,455 53,308,373
Intangible assets 14 37,920,025 33,649,819 37,920,025 33,649,819
Deferred tax assets 15.1 85,884,833 28,592,060 84,665,489 26,980,119
Other assets

Deferred commission expenses 80,760,917 78,324,647 80,760,917 78,324,647

Others 13,409,224 6,256,404 13,409,224 6,256,404
Total assets 2,700,103,764 2,426,164,422 2,704,981,142 2,432,612,187
Liabilities and owners' equity
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 16 864,361,657 786,531,545 864,361,657 786,531,545
Due to reinsurers 17 346,731,212 137,009,478 346,731,212 137,009,478
Income tax payable 29,540,236 18,794,352 29,540,236 18,794,352
Lease liabilities 18 1,486,503 - 1,486,503 -
Employee benefit obligations 19 17,180,397 14,080,989 17,180,397 14,080,989
Other liabilities

Accrued expenses 3,281,189 4,644,925 3,281,189 4,644,925

Deferred commission income 50,595 39,935 50,595 39,935

Others 13,475,935 6,449,194 13,475,935 6,449,194
Total liabilities 1,276,107,724 967,550,418 1,276,107,724 967,550,418
Owners' equity
Share capital 20

Registered, issued and paid-up

600,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 1 each 600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000 600,000,000

Share premium 79,162,825 79,162,825 79,162,825 79,162,825
Retained earnings

Appropriated - statutory reserve 21 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000

Unappropriated 782,250,161 739,516,723 783,996,204 743,339,730
Other component of owners' equity (97,416,946) (20,065,544) (94,285,611) (17,440,786)
Total owners' equity 1,423,996,040 1,458,614,004 1,428,873,418 1,465,061,769
Total liabilities and owners' equity 2,700,103,764 2,426,164,422 2,704,981,142 2,432,612,187

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Statements of income

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019

Revenues

Reinsurance premium written

Less: Reinsurance premium ceded

Net reinsurance premium written

Less: Unearned premium reserves increased
from prior year

Net earned premium

Commission income

Net investment revenue

Gain (loss) on investments

Fair value gain (loss)

Share of loss from investment in an associate under the equity method

Other income

Total revenues

Expenses

Long-term insurance policy reserves increased

Unexpired risk reserves increased (decreased)

Gross benefits and claims

Less: claims recovered from reinsurers

Commission expenses

Other underwriting expenses

Operating expenses

Finance costs

Expected credit losses

Total expenses

Profits before income tax expenses

Income tax expenses

Net profits

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Net profits

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 2020 2019 2020 2019
2,338,704,752 2,339,702,858 2,338,704,752 2,339,702,858
(19,314,751) (15,593,246) (19,314,751) (15,593,246)
2,319,390,001 2,324,109,612 2,319,390,001 2,324,109,612
(28,181,178) (42,629,375) (28,181,178) (42,629,375)
2,291,208,823 2,281,480,237 2,291,208,823 2,281,480,237

2,425,383 1,667,338 2,425,383 1,667,338

64,643,489 70,517,811 64,643,489 70,517,811

(31,234,351) 25,726,163 (34,007,685) 25,726,163

(1,367,601) 4,655,899 (1,367,601) 4,655,899

12.3 (177,128) (825,217) - -
5,536,238 5,674,198 5,536,238 5,674,198

2,331,034,853 2,388,896,429 2,328,438,647 2,389,721,646
37,257,424 64,657,158 37,257,424 64,657,158

(9,507,891) 9,507,891 (9,507,891) 9,507,891

1,464,063,410 1,423,183,690 1,464,063,410 1,423,183,690
(3,896,233) (2,549,195) (3,896,233) (2,549,195)

570,478,498 536,058,822 570,478,498 536,058,822

36,471,523 33,877,794 36,471,523 33,877,794

23 92,997,751 92,155,677 92,997,751 92,155,677
18 115,177 - 115,177 -
467,150 - 467,150 -

2,188,446,809 2,156,891,837 2,188,446,809 2,156,891,837
142,588,044 232,004,592 139,991,838 232,829,809
15.2 (21,153,386) (37,748,950) (20,634,144) (38,704,702)
121,434,658 194,255,642 119,357,694 194,125,107

26

0.20 0.32 0.20 0.32
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Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Statements of comprehensive income

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

Net profits 121,434,658 194,255,642 119,357,694 194,125,107
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Items to be reclassified to statements of income in subsequent periods:
Translation adjustments of the financial statements

in foreign currency of an associate (633,222) (1,652,310) - -
Loss on revaluation of available-for-sale investments

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 10.5 (96,056,031) (5,722,213) (96,056,031) (5,722,213)
Add : Income tax benefits 19,337,851 1,800,632 19,211,206 1,144,443
Items to be reclassified to statements of income in subsequent periods

- net of income taxes (77,351,402) (5,573,891) (76,844,825) (4,577,770)
Items not to be reclassified to statements of income in subsequent periods:
Actuarial losses 19 (880,084) (1,236,432) (880,084) (1,236,432)
Add: Income tax benefits 176,017 247,286 176,017 247,286
Items not to be reclassified to statements of income in subsequent periods

- net of income taxes (704,067) (989,146) (704,067) (989,146)
Other comprehensive loss for the years (78,055,469) (6,563,037) (77,548,892) (5,566,916)
Total comprehensive income for the years 43,379,189 187,692,605 41,808,802 188,558,191

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Statements of cash flows

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities

Cash received from reinsurance 300,354,869 281,008,864 300,354,869 281,008,864
Interest income 16,472,278 17,193,277 16,472,278 17,193,277
Dividend income 47,523,354 51,675,957 47,523,354 51,675,957
Other investment income (expense) (8,214,216) 25,175,217 (8,214,216) 25,175,217

Other income 503,474 661,985 503,474 661,985

Other underwriting expenses (36,413,223) (33,869,674) (36,413,223) (33,869,674)
Operating expenses (81,089,591) (81,241,251) (81,089,591) (81,241,251)
Income tax expenses (48,186,407) (48,274,011) (48,186,407) (48,274,011)
Investments in securities - (63,487,643) - (63,487,643)
Loans - 320,884 - 320,884

Cash received on financial assets 1,836,671,973 - 1,836,671,973 -

Cash paid for financial assets (1,939,271,308) - (1,939,271,308) -

Net cash provided by operating activities 88,351,203 149,163,605 88,351,203 149,163,605

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities

Disposals of equipment - 420,821 - 420,821

Purchases of equipment (1,076,726) (2,612,020) (1,076,726) (2,612,020)
Purchases of intangible assets (1,103,598) (281,838) (1,103,598) (281,838)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,180,324) (2,473,037) (2,180,324) (2,473,037)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities

Repayment of lease liabilities (792,228) - (792,228) -

Dividend paid 27 (78,000,000) (168,000,000) (78,000,000) (168,000,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (78,792,228) (168,000,000) (78,792,228) (168,000,000)
Increase in expected credit losses (41,852) - (41,852) -

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7,336,799 (21,309,432) 7,336,799 (21,309,432)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the years 33,798,067 55,107,499 33,798,067 55,107,499

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the years 41,134,866 33,798,067 41,134,866 33,798,067

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited

Notes to financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019

1.1

1.2

General information
Corporate information

Thaire Life Assurance Public Company Limited (‘the Company”) is a public company,
incorporated under Thai laws, domiciled in Thailand and listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand since 9 October 2013. Its major shareholder is Thai Reinsurance Public Company
Limited, a public company incorporated under Thai laws, domiciled in Thailand and listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the major shareholder
held 10.10%, of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company. The Company is
principally engaged in the provision of life reinsurance services. The registered office of the
Company is located at No. 48/15 Soi Ratchadapisek 20, Ratchadapisek Road, Samsennok
Sub-district, Huaykwang District, Bangkok.

Coronavirus 2019 pandemic

The Coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic causes an economic slowdown and has an
impact on businesses and industries in various sectors either directly or indirectly. This
situation may bring uncertainties and have an impact on the environment in which the
business operates. The Company’s management has continuously monitored ongoing
developments and assessed the financial impact in respect of the valuation of assets,
provisions and contingent liabilities, and has used estimates and judgement in respect of

various issues (if any) as the situation has evolved.
Basis for preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547, and in accordance
with Thai accounting practices related to insurance and the accounting and reporting
guidelines prescribed by the Office of Insurance Commission (“OIC”), and in accordance
with the format of financial statements specified in the Notification of the Office of Insurance
Commission (“OIC”) regarding criteria, procedures, conditions and terms for preparation and
submission of financial statements and operating performance reports of life insurance
companies B.E. (No.2) 2019 dated 4 April 2019.
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2.2

3.1

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where
otherwise disclosed in Note 5 to financial statements regarding a summary of significant

accounting policies.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of
the Company. The financial statements in English language have been translated from such

financial statements in Thai language.
The financial statements in which the equity method is applied

The Company prepares the financial statements, in which equity method is applied, which

has presented investment in an associate under the equity method.
Separate financial statements

The Company prepares the separate financial statements, which has presented investment

in an associate under the cost method.
New financial reporting standards
Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

During the year, the Company adopted the revised (revised 2019) and new financial
reporting standards and interpretations which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or
after 1 January 2020. These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the
corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes
directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for
users of the standards. However, the new standard involves changes to key principles,

which are summarised below:

a. Financial reporting standards and accounting guidance related to financial

instruments
Financial reporting standards related to financial instruments

A set of TFRSs related to financial instruments consists of five accounting standards
and interpretations, as follows:
Financial reporting standards:

TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments
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Accounting standard:
TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations:

TFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
TFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

This set of TFRSs related to financial instruments makes stipulations relating to the
classification of financial instruments and their measurement at fair value or amortised
cost (taking into account the type of instrument, the characteristics of the contractual
cash flows and the Company’s business model), calculation of impairment using the
expected credit loss method, and hedge accounting. These include stipulations

regarding the presentation and disclosure of financial instruments.

Accounting Guidance related to financial instruments and disclosures applicable

for insurance business

Accounting Guidance related to financial instruments and disclosures applicable to
insurance business was issued to comply with TFRS 4 (revised 2019) Insurance
contracts, which allows insurers who meet certain criteria stipulated in TFRS 4 to delay
adoption of TFRS 9 Financial Instruments and TFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, which are applicable for the financial reporting period beginning on or after
1 January 2020, and to adopt the Accounting Guidance related to financial instruments

and disclosures applicable to insurance business instead.

This accounting guidance has certain stipulations differing from those stipulated in

TFRS 9 in the following key topics.

- Classification and measurement of financial assets: These are to be classified as
trading securities, available-for-sale securities, held to maturity debt securities, and
loans and receivables, with no requirement to take into accounts the assessment of

the entity’s business model and the characteristics of the contractual cash flows.

- Loss on impairment, gain or loss on derecognition, and gain and loss on fair value

hedges for available-for-sale equity securities are to be recognised in profit or loss.

- The derivatives embedded in financial assets that are hybrid contracts are to be

separated from host contract if they meet all criteria for separation.

In addition, the accounting guidance also stipulates certain disclosure topics to be
different from those stipulated in the TFRS 7.
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According to the Company’s statement of financial position as of 31 December 2017,
the Company had liabilities in connection with insurance services under the scope of
TFRS 4: Insurance Contracts of 80% or more but less than 90% of the carrying value of
total liabilities and the Company operates non-insurance related business insignificantly.
As such, the Company meets criteria under TFRS 4: Insurance Contracts, and there
has been no change in the core business of the Company in the following accounting
periods. The Company’s management, therefore, considered to adopt such accounting
guidance instead of the adoption of TFRS 9 and TFRS 7.

Impact to the Company’s financial statements from the adoption of this accounting

guidance can be summarised as follows:

Classification and measurement of financial assets

- The Company continues to classify its available-for-sale investments both debt
instruments and equity instruments, except for non-listed equity securities, as
financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
investments newly acquired during the period will be classified based on the

objective designated on the investment date.

- The Company considers to classify its investments in non-listed equity securities,
which were previously classified as general investments measured at cost net of
allowance for impairment (if any) under the cancelled former accounting standard to

be financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

- The Company continues to classify and present investment in debt securities and
loans, which the Company held to collect contractual cash flow (both principal and
interest), as held-to-maturity investments and loans and interest receivables,

respectively, measured at amortised cost.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The adoption of this accounting guidance does not have any impact to classification and
measurement of financial liabilities. The Company continues to classify financial

liabilities measured at amortised cost.
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Impairment of financial assets

- This accounting guidance requires the Company to move from incurred loss
provisioning, under former accounting policy, to expected loss provisioning by
recognising an allowance for expected credit losses on its financial assets and it is
no longer necessary for a credit-impaired event to have occurred. The Company
considers to adopt the general approach to determine expected credit loss on

financial assets.

- Loss on impairment of investments in equity instruments and unit trusts classified as
available-for-sale investments is immediately recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence of impairment, considering from the evidence that indicates the
cost of investments may not be recovered and a significant or prolonged decline in

fair value of investments below its costs.
Transition

The Company’s management already considered that the effect from measurement and
expected credit losses are insignificantly higher than the amount previously recognised
under the former accounting policy. The cumulative effect, therefore, was not adjusted
against retained earnings as at 1 January 2020, and the comparative information was

not restated.
However, reclassification is described in Note 4 to financial statements.
b. TFRS 16 Leases

TFRS 16 supersedes TAS 17 Leases together with related Interpretations. The standard
sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases, and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term

of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is low value.

Accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged from TAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles to those
used under TAS 17.

The cumulative effect of the change in this accounting policy is described in Note 4 to

financial statements.
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c. Accounting guidances on temporary relief measures

Accounting Guidance on Temporary Relief Measures for Entities Providing

Assistance to Debtors Impacted by Situations That Affect the Thai Economy

The Federation of Accounting Professions announced Accounting Guidance on
Temporary Relief Measures for Entities Providing Assistance to Debtors Impacted by
Situations That Affect the Thai Economy. Its objectives are to provide temporary relief
measures solely for entities providing assistance to debtors impacted by the situations
that affect the Thai economy, such as COVID-19, economic conditions, trade wars and
drought, and to provide an alternative for all entities providing assistance to debtors in
accordance with measures to assist debtors specified in the circular of the Bank of
Thailand No. BOT.RPD.(23)C. 276/2563 “Guidelines on providing assistance to debtors
impacted by situations that affect the Thai economy” and the circular of the Bank of
Thailand No. BOT.RPD.(01)C. 380/2563 “Measures to provide additional assistance to
debtors during the COVID-19 situation” or any other measures announced by the Bank
of Thailand. Such entities include credit card businesses, businesses providing loans
secured against vehicle registrations without collateral, personal loan businesses under
the supervision of the Bank of Thailand and certain entities not under the supervision of
the Bank of Thailand, such as leasing, hire-purchase, motorcycle hire-purchase and
factoring businesses. Entities providing assistance to debtors in accordance with the
Bank of Thailand’s measures and electing to apply this Accounting Guidance have to

apply all temporary relief measures in this guidance.

On 22 April 2020, the Accounting Guidance was announced in the Royal Gazette and it
is effective for entities providing assistance to debtors impacted by situations that affect
the Thai economy during the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2021 or until
the Bank of Thailand makes changes, with which the entities are to comply. The
guidance applies to large debtors, small- and medium-sized debtors and retail debtors
who have the ability to run a business or to pay debts in the future and who have been

impacted directly or indirectly by such this, considering the following guidelines.

The Company did not adopt this accounting guidance since it was not applicable to the

Company’s business.
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Accounting Guidance on Temporary Relief Measures on Accounting Alternatives

in Response to the Impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic

The Federation of Accounting Professions announced Accounting Guidance on
Temporary Relief Measures on Accounting Alternatives in Response to the Impact of
the COVID-19 Pandemic. Its objectives are to alleviate some of the impact of applying
certain financial reporting standards, and to provide clarification about accounting

treatments during the period of uncertainty relating to this situation.

On 22 April 2020, the Accounting Guidance was announced in the Royal Gazette and it
is effective for the financial statements prepared for reporting periods ending between
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020.

The Company did not adopt this accounting guidance in the current year.

3.2 Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal years beginning on

or after 1 January 2021

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting
standards and interpretations, which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after
1 January 2021. These revised financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with
the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes
directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for

users of the standards.

The Company’s management is currently evaluating the impact of these revised standards

to the financial statements in the year when they are adopted.
4. Cumulative effects of the changes in accounting policies

As described in Note 3.1 a. and b. to financial statements, during the current year, the
Company adopted TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation, Accounting Guidance
related to financial instruments and disclosures applicable to insurance business and TFRS
16, Leases. For Accounting Guidance related to financial instruments and disclosures
applicable to insurance business, the Company’s management has already considered that
the effect from the first-time adoption is not significant, the Company, therefore, did not
recognise the cumulative effect against retained earnings as at 1 January 2020. For TFRS
16, the Company chose to use the modified retrospective method whereby an adjustment of
the cumulative effect was made against assets and liabilities as at 1 January 2020 and the

comparative information was not restated.
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The impacts to the line items in the financial statements as at 1 January 2020 from the

first-time adoption of these standards were presented as follows:

Statement of financial position
Assets

Investment in securities
Right-of-use assets (V)

Liabilities

Lease liabilities

Owners' equity

Retained earnings - unappropriated

Other component of owners' equity

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

The impacts of

TAS 32 and
Accounting
Guidance
related to
financial
31 December instruments TFRS 16 1 January
2019 (Note 4.1) (Note 4.2) 2020
1,947,134,836 - 1,947,134,836
- 2,163,554 2,163,554
- 2,163,554 2,163,554
739,516,723 - 739,516,723

(20,065,544)

() Included in “Premises and equipment” in statements of financial position

Statement of financial position
Assets

Investment in securities
Right-of-use assets (!

Liabilities

Lease liabilities

Owners' equity

Retained earnings - unappropriated

Other component of owners' equity

(20,065,544)

(Unit: Baht)
Separate financial statements
The impacts of
TAS 32 and
Accounting
Guidance
related to
financial
31 December instruments TFRS 16 1 January
2019 (Note 4.1) (Note 4.2) 2020
1,947,134,836 - 1,947,134,836
- 2,163,554 2,163,554
- 2,163,554 2,163,554
743,339,730 - 743,339,730

(17,440,786)

() Included in “Premises and equipment” in statements of financial position

(17,440,786)
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4.1 Financial instruments

As at 1 January 2020, the carrying values and classification of financial assets in
accordance with the TAS 32 and Accounting Guidance related to financial instruments and
disclosures applicable to insurance business as compared to the carrying values under the

former basis, were as follows:
(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied
and Separate financial statements

The carrying

values under The carrying

the former Impact from the adoption values under the
accounting of TAS 32 and Accounting Guidance  new accounting
standard as at related to financial instrument guidance as at
31 December 1 January
2019 Classification Measurement 2020
Investment in securities
Trading investments measured
at fair value through profit or
loss 72,336,094 - - 72,336,094
Available-for-sale investments
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income 803,962,688 2,105,720 - 806,068,408
Held-to-maturity investments
measured at amortised cost 1,068,730,334 - - 1,068,730,334
General investments 2,105,720 (2,105,720) - -

Total investment in securities

1,947,134,836 - - 1,947,134,836

4.2 Leases

Upon initial application of TFRS 16, the Company recognised lease liabilities previously
classified as operating leases at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2020.
(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the

equity method is applied and
Separate financial statements

Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2019 2,376,684
Less: Deferred interest expenses (213,130)
Increase in lease liabilities due to the first-time adoption of

TFRS 16 2,163,554
Lease liabilities as at 31 December 2019 -
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2020 2,163,554
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate

(percent per annum) 6.20
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5.

5.1

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition

a. Reinsurance Premium written

Reinsurance premium written consists of reinsurance premium less premium of
canceled policies and premiums refunded to policyholders. Reinsurance premium is
recognised as revenue when the reinsurer submits the reinsurance application or the
statement of accounts and the Company confirms the coverage under the reinsurance

contracts.
Commission income

Commission income are recorded as deferred revenue and will be gradually recognised

over the ceding periods as revenue proportionately to the ceded premium.
Investment revenues

Interest is recognised as revenue on an accrual basis based on the effective interest
rate. Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive the dividends is

established.
Gains (losses) on investments

Gains (losses) on investments are recognised as revenues or expenses on the

transaction dates.

5.2 Expenses recognition

a. Reinsurance premium ceded

Reinsurance premium ceded is recognised as expense when the insurance risk is

transferred to another reinsurer.
Gross claims

Claims consist of claims and losses adjustment expenses of reinsurance for both
reported claim and not reported claim, and stated the amounts of the claims, related

expenses, and loss adjustments of current and prior year incurred during the year.
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Claims of reinsurance are recognised upon the receipt of the claims advice from the
reinsured, based on the claims notified by the reinsured and estimates made by the
Company’s management. The maximum value of claims estimated is not exceeding the

sum-insured under the relevant policy.

Claims recovered from reinsurers are recognised as a deduction item against gross
claims when claims are recorded under the conditions in the relevant reinsurance

contracts.
c. Commission expenses

Commissions of reinsurance are recorded as deferred expenses and will be gradually

recognised over the ceding periods as expenses proportionately of earned premium.
d. Other underwriting expenses

Other underwriting expenses are other expenses relating to reinsurance both directly
and indirectly, including various insurance-related contributions, which are recognised

as expenses on accrual basis.
e. Operating expenses

Operating expenses are these operating expenses not related to underwriting and

claims, which are recognised as expenses on accrual basis.
5.3 Product classification

The Company classifies inward reinsurance contracts and outward reinsurance contracts
based on the nature of the insurance contracts. Insurance contracts are those contracts
where the insurer has accepted a significant insurance risk from another party (the
policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future
event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder. To determine whether a
significant insurance risk has been accepted, the insurer compares the amount of benefits
payable if an insured event occurs with the amount of benefits payable if the insured event
did not occur. If the above condition is not met, the Company classifies the insurance
contract as an investment contract. Investment contracts are the contracts that have the
legal form of insurance contracts and transfer financial risk to the insurer, but not significant

insurance risk. Financial risks are as interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, or price risk.
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5.4

5.5

The Company classifies contracts based on an assessment of the significance of the
insurance risk at an inception of contract on a contract-by-contract basis. Once a contract
has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the
remainder of its lifetime. If any contract is previously classified as an investment contract at
an inception of contract, it may, however, be reclassified to be an insurance contract later if

the level of the insurance risk increases significantly.

The Company classifies reinsurance contracts as long-term and short-term contracts
whereby the long-term reinsurance contracts are those with the reinsurance coverage
period of longer than 1 year or those with automatic renewal terms such that the Company
is not able to terminate the contract or the insurance premium, including benefits, can not
be adjusted throughout the contract period, and the short-term reinsurance contracts are
those not having the same characteristics and conditions as those of the long-term

reinsurance contracts.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents which are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather than for investment or other purposes consist of cash in hand and at
bank, and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less and

not subject to withdrawal restrictions.
Reinsurance assets

Reinsurance assets consist of long-term insurance policy reserves refundable from

reinsurers and unearned premium reserves, less allowance for doubtful accounts (if any).

Insurance reserves refundable from reinsurers are estimated, proportionally based on the
reinsurance terms of long-term insurance policy reserves and unearned premium reserves

in accordance with the insurance reserve calculation laws.

The Company set up a provision for impairment when it has objective evidence, as a result
of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance assets, that the
Company may not receive payment from reinsurers and these amounts, which are effected

from an event, can be measured reliably.
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5.6 Reinsurance receivables and due to reinsurers
The Company presents net of reinsurance receivables from and due to the same entity

(reinsurance receivables or due to reinsurers) when the following criteria for offsetting are

met.

(1) The Company has a legal right to offset amounts presented in the statements of

financial position, and

(2) The Company intends to receive or pay the net amount recognised in the statements of

financial position, or to realise the asset at the same time as it pays the liability.
a. Reinsurance receivables

Reinsurance receivables are stated at amounts deposited on reinsurance and amounts

due from reinsurers

Amounts due from reinsurers consist of premium receivables, commission income
receivables, claim receivables and various other items receivable from reinsurers, and
are deducted by allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company records allowance for
doubtful accounts for the estimated losses that may be incurred due to uncollectibles,
taking into account collection experience and the status of reinsurers as at the end of

the reporting periods.
b. Due to reinsurers

Due to reinsurers are stated at amounts due to reinsurers and other amounts due to

reinsurers which consist of other reinsurance payable to reinsurers, excluding claims.
5.7 Financial Instrument

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Investments in securities

Trading investments are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value of these investments

are recorded in statement of income.

Available-for-sale investments are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value of these
investments are recorded in statements of comprehensive income, and will be recorded in

statement of income when the investments are sold.
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Held-to-maturity investments are presented at amortised cost. The premium/discount on the
investments is amortised/accreted by the effective interest rate method with the

amortised/accreted amount presented as an adjustment to the interest income.

Investments in non-listed equity securities are classified as available-for-sale investment
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. (Before 1 January 2020,
Investments in non-listed equity securities are classified as general investments, are stated

at cost net of allowance for impairment (if any)).

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last working
day of the year as quoted on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The fair value of debt
securities is determined based on yield rates or prices quoted by the Thai Bond Market
Association. The fair value of investment units is determined from their net asset value.
The fair value of non-marketable equity instruments is determined using the general

accepted fair value techniques.

In the event the Company reclassifies investments from one type to another, such
investments will be readjusted to their fair value as at the reclassification date. The
difference between the carrying amount of the investments and the fair value on the date of
reclassification are recorded in statements of income or recorded as revaluation surplus or
deficit on available-for-sale investment in other components of owners’ equity, depending

on the type of investment that is reclassified.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the cost of
the investments is recognised in statements of income. The weighted average method is

used for computation of the cost of investments.

The Company records purchases and sales of investments in equity securities on trade
dates and records purchases and sales of investments in debt securities on settlement

dates.

At the end of reporting period, investments in available-for-sale debt instruments and held-
to-maturity debt instruments are presented in statements of financial position at amortised

cost less allowance expected credit losses (if any)
Loans and interest receivables

Loans and interest receivable are stated at amortised cost less allowance for expected

credit losses (if any).
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Impairment of financial assets

Impairment of debt instruments

The Company recognises expected credit loss on its financial assets measured at
amortised cost and financial assets that are debt instruments classified as available-for-sale
securities (excluding unit trusts), without requiring a credit-impaired event to have occurred
prior to the recognition. The Company adopts the general approach to determine expected
credit loss on financial assets, which are taken into accounts changes in credit risk of
financial assets in stages, with differing methods of determining allowance for expected
credit losses and the effective interest rate at each stage. An exception of this general
approach is applied to other receivables or assets incurred from an agreement that does
not contain a significant financing component. The Company then applies a simplified

approach to determine the lifetime expected credit loss instead.

Impairment of equity instruments and unit trusts classified as available-for-sale

investments

Losses on impairment of investments in equity instruments and unit trusts classified as
available-for-sale investments are immediately recognised in statements of income when
there is objective evidence of impairment, considering from the evidence that indicates the
cost of investments may not be recovered and a significant or prolonged decline in fair

value of investments below its costs.
Losses on impairment (if any) are recognised as expenses in statements of income.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

At initial recognition the Company’s financial liabilities are recognised at fair value net of
transaction costs less transaction cost and classified as liabilities to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and
losses are recognised statements of income when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process. In determining amortised cost, the Company takes
into account fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is

included in finance costs in statements of income.
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5.8

Derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired or have been transferred and either the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control

of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in statements of income.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the
statements of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets

and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Investment in an associate

Investment in an associate, as presented in the financial statements in which the equity
method is applied, is recorded initially at cost and subsequently adjusted to reflect the

proportionate share of the associate’s net income or loss and deducted by dividend income.

Investment in an associate, as presented in the separate financial statements, is stated at
cost net of allowance for impairment (if any). Losses on impairment are recorded as an

expenses in statements of income.
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5.9

5.10

Premises and equipment and depreciation

Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and allowance for impairment (if any).

Depreciation of buildings and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the

straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings - 20 years
Office equipment and furniture - bSyears
Computers - 3years
Motor vehicles - 5Syears

Depreciation is recognised as expense in statement of income. No depreciation is provided
on land and construction in progress.

An item of property, buildings and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal of an asset is included in statement of income when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and allowance for
impairment (if any).

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over their economic
useful lives and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such
intangible assets are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. The amortisation
expense is charged to statement of income. No amortisation is provided on computer
program under development.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives, which are computer softwares, have an estimated
economic useful life of 10 years.
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5.11

5.12

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect
of investment in an associate, premises and equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible
assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be
impaired. An impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset,
which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less
than the carrying amount. In determining value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by a valuation model that, based on information available, reflects the amount
that the Company could obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length transaction
between knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting the costs of disposal.

In the assessment of asset impairment, if there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The increased carrying amount of
the asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities consist of long-term insurance policy reserves, loss reserves,
claims payable and premium reserves.

a. Long-term insurance policy reserves

At the end of the reporting period, the Company compares the amounts of gross
premium valuation reserves with unearned premium reserves, and if gross premium
valuation reserves are higher than unearned premium reserves, the Company will

provide additional reserves for such difference.

(1) Unearned premium reserves

Life reinsurance - Treaty - Monthly average basis
(the one-twenty fourth basis)

Life reinsurance - Facultative - Daily average basis (the one-three
hundred and sixty fifth basis)
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Outward unearned premium reserve is calculated based on reinsurance premium
ceded, as the same method as inward reinsurance, that transfer insurance risk to

reinsurer throughout the coverage period of insurance contract.

(2) Gross premium valuation reserves

Gross premium valuation reserves are life policy reserves, calculated using an
actuarial method in accordance with the OIC notifications. The main assumptions
applied relate to lapse or surrender rate, selling and administrative expenses,

mortality, morbidity, discount rate and non-guaranteed dividend payment rate.
b. Loss reserves

Loss reserves are provided upon receipt of claim advices from the insured based on the
claims notified by the insured and estimates made by the Company’s management. The
maximum value of estimated claim will not exceed the sum-insured under the relevant

policy.

Loss reserves are calculated using an actuarial method based on the best estimate of
claims expected to be paid to the insured in respect of losses incurred before or as at
the end of the reporting period whether or not the claims are reported to the Company,
including loss adjustment expenses. Differences of the then-calculated loss reserves
and the loss reserves already recognised in the financial statements is claims incurred
but not yet reported (IBNR).

c. Premium reserves

Premium reserves are short-term insurance policy reserves. At the end of the reporting
period, the Company compares the amount of unexpired risk reserves with that of net
unearned premium reserves from deferred commission expenses, and if the amounts of
unexpired risk reserves are higher than the amounts of unearned premium reserves net
of deferred commission expenses, the Company will recognise additional reserves for
such difference. However, the increase or decrease in unearned premium reserves from
prior year is to be recognised in profit or loss.

(1) Unearned premium reserves

Life reinsurance - Treaty - Monthly average basis
(the one-twenty fourth basis)
Life reinsurance - Facultative - Daily average basis (the one-three

hundred and sixty fifth basis)
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Outward unearned premium reserve is calculated based on reinsurance premium
ceded, as the same method as inward reinsurance, that transfer insurance risk to

reinsurer throughout the coverage period of insurance contract.
(2) Unexpired risk reserves

Unexpired risk reserves are the reserves for the future claims that may be incurred
in respect of in-force policies. Unexpired risk reserves are set aside using an
actuarial method, at the best estimate of the claims that are expected be incurred

during the remaining coverage period, based on historical claim data.
5.13 Employee benefit obligation
a. Defined contribution plans

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is
monthly contributed by employees and by the Company. The fund’s assets are held in a
separate trust fund and the Company’s contributions are recognised as expenses when

incurred.
b. Defined benefit plans

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payment it must make to
employees upon retirement under labor law. The Company treats this severance

payment obligation as a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial

techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits are recognised
immediately in the statement of comprehensive income and recorded directly to retained

earnings.
5.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.
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5.15 Leases

Accounting policies adopted since 1 January 2020

At inception of a lease contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use

of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. At the commencement date of
the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for use), the Company recognises
right-of-use assets representing the right to use underlying assets and lease liabilities based

on lease payments.
a. Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation, any
accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities initially
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the

commencement date of the lease less any lease incentives received.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets are calculated by reference to their costs or the
revalued amount, on the straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful

lives and the lease term.
Motor vehicles - bSyears
If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Company at the end of the lease

term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated

using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Right-of-use assets are presented as part of premises and equipment in the statement

of financial position.

The Company determined the impairment of right-of-use assets as described in note

5.11 to financial statements: impairment of non-financial assets.
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b. Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees. Moreover, the lease
payments include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which

the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

The Company determined the present value of the lease payments, discounted by the
interest rate implicit in the lease or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a change in the lease term, a change in the
lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying

asset.
c. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

A lease that has a lease term less than or equal to 12 months from commencement
date or a lease of low-value assets is recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

Accounting policies adopted before 1 January 2020

Leases of assets which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Company as a leasee are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the
lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are presented as
long-term liabilities, while the interest element is charged to statement of income over the
lease periods. The assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of

the lesser periods and the useful lives of the leased assets.
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5.16

5.17

Leases of assets, which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Company, as the leasee, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognised as an expense in statement of income on a straight line basis
over the lease terms. When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has
expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as

an expense in the period in which termination takes place.
Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also the Company’s functional

currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Gains and losses on exchange are included in statement of income.
Income taxes

Income tax expenses represent the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and

deferred income taxes.
a. Current income taxes

Current income taxes are provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to
the taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax

legislation.
b. Deferred income taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period,

using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The Company recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences
while it recognises deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which such

deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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5.18

5.19

At each reporting period, the Company reviews and reduces the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or a part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

The Company records deferred taxes directly to equity if the taxes relate to items that
are recorded directly to equity.

Related party transactions

Related parties comprise individuals or enterprises that control, or are controlled by, the
Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the
Company.

They also include associated companies, and individuals or enterprises which directly or
indirectly own a voting interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the
Company, key management personnel, directors, and officers with authority in the planning
and direction of the Company’s operations.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement
date. The Company applies a quoted market price in an active market to measure its assets
and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting
standards. Except in case when there is no active market of an identical asset or liability or
when a quoted market price is not available, the Company measures fair value using a
valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and maximises the use of
relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured

at fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on
categories of inputs to be used in fair value measurements as follows:

Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or
indirectly

Level 3- Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the
end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
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6.

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards at times requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates
regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect
reported amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates.

Significant judgements and estimates are as follows:
Allowance for doubtful accounts on amounts due from reinsurers

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts on amounts due from reinsurers, the
management needs to make judgement and estimates based upon, among other things,
past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic

condition.
Impairment on reinsurance assets

In determining impairment on reinsurance assets, the management needs to make
judgement and estimates loss on impairment of each reinsurers based on conditions in
contract and events occurred that the Company may not receive entire amount under the

term of contract.

Allowance for Impairment of equity instruments and unit trusts

The Company treats equity instruments and unit trusts classified as available-for-sale
investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income as impaired when
there has been the evidence that indicates the cost of investments may not be recovered
and a significant or prolonged decline in fair value of investments below its costs. The

determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment of the management.

Allowances for expected credit losses of financial assets

The management is required to use judgement in estimating allowance for expected credit
losses for financial assets. The Company’s calculation of allowance for expected credit
losses depends on the criteria used for assessment of a significant increase in credit risk,
the development of a model, the risk that collateral value cannot be realised, the probability
of debt collection and the selection of the forecasted macroeconomic data inputs used in
the model. The use of different estimates and assumptions could affect the amount of the
allowance for credit losses and, therefore, the allowance may need to be adjusted in the

future.
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6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Allowance for impairment of non-financial assets

In determining allowance for impairment of a non-financial asset, the management is required
to exercise judgements regarding determination of the recoverable amount of the asset, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions,
conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs of disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash
flow model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the future and do not include
restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the performance of the assets of the cash-generating unit being
tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash
flow model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used in the

forecasts.

Premises and equipment and depreciation

In determining depreciation of buildings and equipment, the management is required to
estimates of the useful lives and residual values of the buildings and equipment and to

review estimate useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review premises and equipment for impairment
on a periodical basis and record impairment losses when it is determined that their
recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgements regarding

forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.
Intangible assets and amortisation

The initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets, and subsequent impairment
testing, require management to make estimates of cash flows to be generated by the asset
or the cash generating units and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the

present value of those cash flows.
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of

estimated future taxable profits.
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6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

Gross premium valuation reserves

Gross premium valuation reserves are calculated using the actuarial method based on the
current assumptions or assumptions determined on the policy inception dates, which reflect
the best estimates at that times. The main assumptions used are policy surrender or lapse
rates, selling and administrative expenses, mortality, morbidity, longevity, discount rates,
non-guaranteed dividend rates and so on. However, the use of different assumptions could
affect the amount of life policy reserves and adjustments to the life policy reserves may

therefore be required in the future.

Loss reserves

At the end of each reporting period, the Company has to estimate loss reserves and
outstanding claims taking into account two factors. These are the claims incurred and
reported, and the claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), the losses on which are
estimated using international standard actuarial techniques. The major assumptions used
under these techniques consist of historical data, including the development of claims
estimates, paid, average costs per claim and claim numbers etc. Nevertheless, such

estimates are forecasts of future outcomes, and actual results could differ.
Unexpired risk reserves

Unexpired risk reserves are calculated using an actuarial technique, based on the best
estimate of the claims and relevant expenses expected to be paid over the remaining terms
of the insurance. Estimating such reserves requires the management to exercise judgment,

with reference to historical data and the best estimates available at the time.
Obligation under the defined benefit plan

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial techniques.
Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future

salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.
Recognition and derecognition of assets and liabilities

In considering whether to recognise or to derecognise assets or liabilities, the management
is required to make judgement on whether significant risk and rewards of those assets or
liabilities have been transferred, based on their best knowledge of the current events and

arrangements.
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6.14 Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments that are not actively traded and for
which quoted market prices are not readily available, the management exercises
judgement, using a variety of valuation techniques and models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets, and include consideration of credit risk (the Company
and its counterparty), liquidity risk, correlation and longer-term volatility of financial
instruments. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value and

disclosures of fair value hierarchy.

7. Cash and cash equivalents

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied
and Separate financial statements
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Cash 4,151 4,052
Deposits at banks with no fixed maturity date 18,923,100 8,788,149
Deposits at banks with fixed maturity date 22,000,000 -
Deposits at other financial institutions 249,467 25,005,866
Total 41,176,718 33,798,067
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (41,852) -
Cash and cash equivalents - net 41,134,866 33,798,067

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, saving deposits, fixed deposits, and deposits at other
financial institutions carried interests between 0.05 and 0.50 percent per annum and

between 0.1 and 1.0 percent per annum, respectively.



JUNISUNAzAU8INAUS:NOUIUNISIIU
Financial Statements and Notes to financial statements

8.

9.

Reinsurance assets

Insurance reserves refundable from reinsurers
Long-term insurance policy reserves
Unearned premium reserves

Total reinsurance assets

Reinsurance receivables

Amounts deposited on reinsurance
Amounts due from reinsurers

Total reinsurance receivables

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied and
Separate financial statements

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

2,821,732 2,656,014

551,266 6,323

3,372,998 2,662,337
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied and
Separate financial statements

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

98,623,966 92,399,180
335,272,237 122,197,319
433,896,203 214,596,499

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the balances of amounts due from reinsurers, classified by

overdue periods of principal, are as follows:

Not yet due
Overdue not longer than 12 months
Over 1 year to 2 years

Total amounts due from reinsurers

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied and
Separate financial statements

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

331,358,377 121,845,713
3,913,860 272,060

- 79,546
335,272,237 122,197,319
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10. Investments in securities

10.1 Classified by types of investments

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Cost/ Cost/
Amortised cost Fair value Amortised cost Fair value

Trading investments measured at

fair value through profit or loss
Common stocks - - 75,613,249 72,336,094
Unit trusts 79,065,508 79,068,935 - -
Total 79,065,508 79,068,935 75,613,249 72,336,094
Add (less): Unrealised gain (loss) 3,427 - (3,277,155) -
Trading investments measured at

fair value through profit or loss - net 79,068,935 79,068,935 72,336,094 72,336,094
Available-for-sale investments

measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income
Common stocks 364,432,796 339,382,892 200,215,348 203,031,302
Unit trusts 659,959,564 543,592,469 625,548,322 600,931,386
Total 1,024,392,360 882,975,361 825,763,670 803,962,688
Less: Unrealised loss (117,857,013) - (21,800,982) -
Less: Allowance for impairments (23,559,986) - - -
Available-for-sale investments measured

at fair value through other

comprehensive income - net 882,975,361 882,975,361 803,962,688 803,962,688
Held-to-maturity investments

measured at amortised cost
Government and state enterprise

securities 475,658,375 486,337,634 709,081,922 715,993,870
Private enterprise debt securities 287,544,302 291,939,521 214,648,412 218,791,589
Deposits at financial institutions which

mature over 3 months 200,000,000 200,000,000 145,000,000 145,000,000
Total 963,202,677 978,277,155 1,068,730,334 1,079,785,459
Less: Allowance for expected credit

losses (425,299) - - -
Held-to-maturity investments measured

at amortised cost - net 962,777,378 978,277,155 1,068,730,334 1,079,785,459

General investments

Common stocks

Total general investments

Investments in securities - net

2,105,720

2,272,072

2,105,720

2,272,072

1,924,821,674

1,940,321,451

1,947,134,836

1,958,356,313
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10.2 Classified by stage of credit risk

Held-to-maturity investments measured at
amortised cost
Stage 1 - Debt securities without a

significant increase of credit risk

Total

10.3 Remaining period of debt securities

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

31 December 2020

Gross carrying

Allowance for

expected credit

value losses Net carrying value
963,202,677 (425,299) 962,777,378
963,202,677 (425,299) 962,777,378

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, Investments in debt securities have the following

remaining periods to maturity.

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Period to maturity Period to maturity
Within Within
1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Total 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Total
Held-to-maturity investments
measured at amortised cost
Government and state enterprise
securities 228,024,125 119,931,071 127,703,179 475,658,375 445,675,238 132,717,416 130,689,268 709,081,922
Private enterprises debt securities 65,371,694 144,368,061 77,804,547 287,544,302 30,000,000 133,000,000 51,648,412 214,648,412
Deposits at financial institutions
which mature over 3 months 200,000,000 200,000,000 145,000,000 145,000,000
Total 493,395,819 264,299,132 205,507,726 963,202,677 620,675,238 265,717,416 182,337,680  1,068,730,334
Less: Allowance for expected
credit losses (268,982) (91,190) (65,127) (425,299)
Total held-to-maturity investments
493,126,837 264,207,942 205,442,599 962,777,378 620,675,238 265,717,416 182,337,680  1,068,730,334

measured at amortised cost - net
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10.4 Fair values of investments in debt securities

As the Company adopted Accounting Guidance related to financial instruments and
disclosures applicable for insurance business, the Company are not required to take into
consideration its business model and the characteristics of the contractual cash flows to
classify and measure financial assets - debt instruments in accordance with TFRS 9.
However, if the financial assets - debt instruments have been classified and measured in

accordance with TFRS 9, the impacts were presented as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

31 December 2020

The contractual terms of the financial The contractual terms of the financial

asset give rise on specified dates to cash  asset give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are not solely payments of flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding amount outstanding
Changes in Changes in
fair value fair value
Fair value during the year Fair value during the year
Trading investments measured at
fair value through profit or loss
Unit trusts 79,068,935 3,427 - -
Available-for-sale investments
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Unit trusts 280,114,859 (17,921,504)(" - -
Held-to-maturity investments
measured at amortised cost
Government and state enterprise
securities - - 486,337,634 3,767,311
Private enterprise debt securities - - 291,939,521 252,042
Deposits at financial institutions
which mature over 3 months - - 200,000,000 -
Total 359,183,794 (17,918,077) 978,277,155 4,019,353

() The Company has already recognised impairment losses amounting to Baht 19 million in statement of income.
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10.5

10.6

10.7

Revaluation deficit on available-for-sale investments
(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the
equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2020 2019

Revaluation deficit on available-for-sale investments, net of income taxes

- beginning of the years (17,440,786) (12,863,016)
Revaluation increase (decrease) during the years (127,002,516) 19,707,595
Impairment losses recognised in statements of income 23,559,986 -
(Gains) losses on sale recognised in statements of income 7,386,499 (25,429,808)
Total losses on revaluation of available-for-sale investments (96,056,031) (5,722,213)
Add: Income taxes 19,211,206 1,144,443
Losses on revaluation of available-for-sale investments - net of income taxes (76,844,825) (4,577,770)
Revaluation deficit on available-for-sale investments, net of income taxes

- end of the years (94,285,611) (17,440,786)

Investments subject to restriction

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company placed some investments as a security
with the Registrar and had some investments placed to guarantee for electricity

consumption as described in Note 29 to financial statements.
Reclassification of investment in current year

During the year, the Company transferred investment in marketable securities, previously
classified as trading investments measured at fair value through profit or loss to available-
for-sale investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income under the
resolution of the Company’s Investment Committee Meeting, held on 20 February 2020.

The fair value on the transfer date was Baht 79.9 million.
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11. Loans and interest receivables
The ending balances of loans are loans provided to employees in accordance with the
Company’s employee welfare plan at the interest rate of not lower than 1.00% and not
higher than MLR-3% per annum. The MLR is reference to that announced by commercial
banks, depending on types of loans granted. The whole amounts of the outstanding
balances were classified as not yet due and no interest was receivable as of the end of the
reporting period.
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2020, the balances of loans and interest
receivables, classified by stage of credit risk, were as follows:
(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the
equity method is applied
and Separate financial statements
31 December 2020 1 January 2020
Staging Mortgaged loans Mortgaged loans
Stage 1 - Loans without a significant increase of credit risk 633,103 1,029,648
Loans and interest receivables 633,103 1,029,648
12. Investment in an associate
12.1 Details of an associate
Nature of Country of Shareholding percentage held by
Company’s name business incorporation Issued and paid-up share capital the Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
(Thousand Baht) (Thousand Baht) (%) (%)
TKI Life Insurance Company Limited  Life insurance Laos 66,118 66,118 32.50 32.50

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Financial statements

in which the equity method

Company’s name is applied Separate financial statements
Investment value under Investment value under
equity method Cost Allowance for impairment cost method

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

TKI Life Insurance 12,814 13,625 21,684 21,684 (2,773) - 18,911 21,684

Company Limited
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12.2 Financial information of an associate

Summarised information about financial position

Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets

Shareholding percentage (%)

Carrying amount of an associate under equity method

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

TKI Life Insurance Company Limited

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

43,725 44,067
(4,297) (2,145)
39,428 41,922
32.50 32.50
12,814 13,625

Summarised information of statements of comprehensive income

Total revenues

Losses for the years

Total comprehensive losses for the year

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

TKI Life Insurance Company Limited

For the years ended 31 December

2020 2019
9,238 7,345
(497) (2,227)
(497) (2,227)

12.3 Share of profit (loss) and other comprehensive income and dividend income

During the years, the Company recognised shares of profit (loss) and other comprehensive

income from investment in an associate in the financial statements, in which the equity

method is applied, and recognised dividends received from an associate in the separate

financial statements as below.

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Share of loss from investment

in an associate for the years

Associate ended 31 December

Share of other comprehensive
income from investment in an
associate for the years ended

31 December

Dividends received for the

years ended 31 December

2020

2019

2020 2019

2020 2019

TKI Life Insurance

Company Limited (177)

(825)

(77)

(825)
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As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company presented investment in an associate
under the equity method in the financial statements, in which the equity method is applied,
based on the financial information, as prepared by the associate’s management. However,
the Company obtained the 2019 financial statements of TKI Life Insurance Company
Limited, which were audited by the associate’s auditor and the auditor expressed an
unquailed opinion under their report dated 5 May 2020. Such audited financial statements
presented financial information that were not significantly different from the financial
information prepared by the associate’s management used for equity-accounting in that
year.

13. Premises and equipment
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

Furniture,
fixture and Right-of-use  Construction
Land Buildings equipment Computers assets in progress Total

Cost
As at 1 January 2019 17,640,000 36,549,785 5,941,534 3,142,553 - 8,362,681 71,636,553
Additions - 986,842 1,036,829 588,350 - - 2,612,021
Transfer in (out) - 6,668,687 1,693,994 - - (8,362,681) -
Write-off - - (337,237) (125,083) - - (462,320)
Adjustment - - - (50,574) - - (50,574)
As at 31 December 2019 17,640,000 44,205,314 8,335,120 3,555,246 - - 73,735,680
Adjustments of right-of-use

assets due to the

first-time adoption of

TFRS 16 - - - - 2,163,554 - 2,163,554
Additions - - 184,656 892,070 - - 1,076,726
Write-off - - (7,679) (309,291) - - (316,970)
As at 31 December 2020 17,640,000 44,205,314 8,512,097 4,138,025 2,163,554 - 76,658,990
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2019 - 12,694,932 2,163,139 1,566,409 - - 16,424,480
Depreciation for the year - 2,096,980 1,381,103 1,004,154 - - 4,482,237
Accumulated depreciation -

on write-off - - (324,467) (120,766) - (445,233)
Adjustment - - - (34,177) - - (34,177)
As at 31 December 2019 - 14,791,912 3,219,775 2,415,620 - - 20,427,307
Depreciation for the year - 2,210,266 1,518,098 1,029,650 721,184 - 5,479,198
Accumulated depreciation

on write-off - - (7,679) (309,291) - - (316,970)
As at 31 December 2020 - 17,002,178 4,730,194 3,135,979 721,184 - 25,589,535
Net book value
31 December 2019 17,640,000 29,413,402 5,115,345 1,139,626 - - 53,308,373
31 December 2020 17,640,000 27,203,136 3,781,903 1,002,046 1,442,370 - 51,069,455
Depreciation for the years
2019 4,482,237

2020 5,479,198
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14.

The Company has lease contracts for equipment used in its operations. Leases have the

lease term of 5 years.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, certain equipment items have been fully depreciated but

are still in use. The original cost before deducting accumulated depreciation of those assets

amounted to approximately Baht 2.9 million and Baht 1.3 million, respectively.

Intangible assets

Cost

1 January 2019

Additions

Adjustment

31 December 2019
Additions

Transfer in (out)

Adjustment

31 December 2020
Accumulated amortisation
1 January 2019
Amortisation during the year
Adjustment

31 December 2019
Amortisation during the year
Adjustment

31 December 2020

Net book value

31 December 2019

31 December 2020

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is

applied and Separate financial statements

Computer
Computer software under
software development Total
44,411,240 - 44,411,240
281,838 - 281,838
(19,757) - (19,757)
44,673,321 - 44,673,321
467,889 8,351,300 8,819,189
738,300 (738,300) -
(28,761) - (28,761)
45,850,749 7,613,000 53,463,749
6,576,280 - 6,576,280
4,451,228 - 4,451,228
(4,006) - (4,008)
11,023,502 - 11,023,502
4,520,819 - 4,520,819
(597) - (597)
15,543,724 - 15,543,724
33,649,819 - 33,649,819
30,307,025 7,613,000 37,920,025




JUNISRUNAzAUIgInAUS:NOUIUNISIIU
Financial Statements and Notes to financial statements

15. Deferred tax assets and income tax expenses
15.1 Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the components of deferred tax assets were as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements

in which the equity Separate financial
Financial statements in method is applied statements
which the equity Separate financial Changes in deferred tax Changes in deferred tax
method is applied statements assets for the years assets for the years
31 December 31 December ended 31 December ended 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Deferred tax assets
(liabilities) arose from:
Loss reserves 5,796 1,558 5,796 1,558 4,238 (2,783) 4,238 (2,783)
Commission payable on
reinsurance 61,076 30,872 61,076 30,872 30,204 (3,251) 30,204 (3,251)
Employee benefit
obligations 3,436 2,816 3,436 2,816 620 642 620 642
Unrealised losses on
available-for-sale
investments 23,571 4,360 23,571 4,360 19,211 1,144 19,211 1,144
Deferred commission - net (16,142) (15,657) (16,142) (15,657) (485) (1,502) (485) (1,502)
Allowance for impairment
on investment 4,805 - 5,360 - 4,805 - 5,360 -
Others 3,343 4,643 1,568 3,031 (1,300) 3,545 (1,463) 1,933
Deferred tax assets 85,885 28,592 84,665 26,980
Total changes 57,293 (2,205) 57,685 (3,817)
Recognition of changes in:
- Statements of income 37,780 (4,252) 38,299 (5,208)
- Statements of comprehensive income 19,513 2,047 19,386 1,391

Total changes 57,293 (2,205) 57,685 (3,817)
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15.2 Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 were made up as

follows:

Financial statements in which

the equity method is applied

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

For the years ended

31 December

For the years ended

31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019

Current income taxes:
Interim corporate income tax charge (58,983) (33,537) (58,983) (33,537)
Adjustment of prior year's income tax expenses 50 40 50 40
Deferred income taxes:
Relating to origination and reversal of

temporary differences 37,780 (4,252) 38,299 (5,208)
Income tax expenses reported in the

statements of income (21,153) (37,749) (20,634) (38,705)

Reconciliations between income tax expenses and the product of accounting profits for the

year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 and the applicable tax rate were as follows:

Financial statements in which

the equity method is applied

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

For the years ended

31 December

For the years ended

31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019

Accounting profits before income tax expenses 142,588 232,005 139,992 232,830
Applicable tax rate 20% 20% 20% 20%
Income taxes at the applicable tax rate (28,517) (46,401) (27,998) (46,566)
Adjustment of prior year's income tax expenses 50 40 50 40
Tax effects of:

Non-taxable revenues 7,156 8,275 7,156 8,275

Non-tax deductible expenses (28) (848) (28) (848)

Additional tax-deductible expenses allowed 267 466 267 466

Others (81) 719 (81) (72)
Total 7,314 8,612 7,314 7,821
Income tax expenses reported in the

statements of income (21,153) (37,749) (20,634) (38,705)
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16. Insurance contract liabilities

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is

applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2020

Insurance Liabilities on
contract liabilities reinsurance Net

Long-term insurance policy reserves 508,604,795 (2,821,732) 505,783,063
Loss reserves

Claims incurred and reported 355,513 - 355,513

Claims incurred but not yet reported 28,623,439 - 28,623,439
Premium reserves

Unearned premium reserves 326,777,910 (551,266) 326,226,644
Total 864,361,657 (3,372,998) 860,988,659

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is

applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2019

Insurance Liabilities on
contract liabilities reinsurance Net

Long-term insurance policy reserves 471,181,653 (2,656,014) 468,525,639
Loss reserves

Claims incurred and reported 347,636 - 347,636

Claims incurred but not yet reported 7,442,576 - 7,442,576
Premium reserves

Unearned premium reserves 298,051,789 (6,323) 298,045,466

Unexpired risk reserves 9,507,891 - 9,507,891
Total 786,531,545 (2,662,337) 783,869,208
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16.1 Long-term insurance policy reserves

16.2

Beginning balances

Reserves increased from new policies
and enforced policies

Insurance policy reserves decreased from
benefit paid for lapse, surrender and others

Assumptions changes

Ending balances

Loss reserves

Beginning balances

Claims incurred for the year

Changes in loss reserve

Changes in assumptions for calculating loss
reserves

Claims paid during the year

Ending balances

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2020 2019
471,181,653 406,751,589
88,105,473 120,753,086

(53,544,670)

(61,865,391)

2,862,339 5,542,369
508,604,795 471,181,653
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements

in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2020 2019
7,790,212 21,702,409
1,000,126,809 1,003,236,892
47,381,672 1,784,243

(26,200,782)
(1,000,118,959)

(15,700,440)
(1,003,232,892)

28,978,952

7,790,212
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16.4 Key assumptions

The key assumptions used in the calculation of long-term insurance policy reserves under

gross premium valuation method for liabilities adequacy test are determined as follows:

a. Mortality rate

The Company uses the Thai mortality table as a base and adjusts it based on the

Company’s experience.

b. Lapse rates

The Company determines the assumptions based on historical actual lapse rates of the

Company.

c. Discount rate

The Company uses zero coupon government bond yield curve as a baseline, which will

be adjusted for the credit spread between these and A-rated corporate debt securities

with 10 years to maturity in order to expiate the illiquidity risk premium.

Key actuarial assumptions in IBNR calculation is the ultimate loss ratio, The ultimate loss

ratio is calculated by dividing estimated ultimate losses by estimated ultimate premiums.

16.5 Unearned premium reserves

Beginning balances
Premium written for the years

Premium earned during the years

Ending balances

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2020 2019
298,051,789 255,423,506
1,401,278,229 1,312,036,745
(1,372,552,108) (1,269,408,462)
326,777,910 298,051,789
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16.6 Unexpired risk reserves
(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2020 2019
Beginning balances 9,507,891 -
Increase during the years - 9,507,891
Dissolved during the years (9,507,891) -
Ending balances - 9,507,891
17. Due to reinsurers
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied
and Separate financial statements

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Amounts due to reinsurers 346,731,212 137,009,478
Total due to reinsurers 346,731,212 137,009,478

18. Lease liabilities
Reconciliation of lease liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2020 was as follow:

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements

in which the equity method is
applied and Separate

financial statements

Motor vehicles

Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2020 2,163,554
Add: Finance cost for the year 115,177
Less: Lease payments during the year (792,228)

Lease liabilities as at 31 December 2020 1,486,503
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(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

31 December 2020

Lease liabilities Deferred finance cost Lease liabilities - net
Due within 1 year 792,228 71,963 720,265
Due over 1 year 792,228 25,990 766,238
Total 1,584,456 97,953 1,486,503

Expenses relating to leases that were recognised in statement of income for the year ended
31 December 2020 was as follow.

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in
which the equity method
is applied and Separate

financial statements

for the year ended

31 December 2020

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 721,184
Finance cost on lease liabilities 115,177
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets 150,228

Total expenses 986,589
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19. Employee benefit obligations

The movements of employee benefit obligations during the years ended 31 December 2020

and 2019 were as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2020 2019
Employee benefit obligations at beginning
of the years 14,080,989 10,871,877
Recognised in statements of income:
Current service costs 1,988,441 1,249,432
Interest costs 230,883 233,209
Past service costs - 2,069,239
Total items included in statements of income 2,219,324 3,551,880
Recognised in statements of comprehensive
income:
Actuarial (gains) losses due to
- Demographic assumptions changes (37,611) -
- Financial assumptions changes 58,350 1,148,878
- Experience adjustments 859,345 87,554
Total items included in statements of
comprehensive income 880,084 1,236,432
Benefits paid during the years - (1,579,200)
Employee benefit obligations at end of the years 17,180,397 14,080,989

As at 31 December 2020, the Company expected no payments of employee benefits over
the next 1-year period (31 December 2019: The Company expected to pay employee

benefits of Baht 0.8 million over the next 1-year period).

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the weighted average duration of payments of

employee benefits was approximately years and 12 years.
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The significant assumptions used in calculation of the defined benefit plan were
summarised below.

(Unit: % per annum)
For the years ended 31 December

2020 2019
Discount rate 1.5 1.7
Salary incremental rate 6.5 6.5
Staff turnover rates 0.0-20.7 0.0-225

The impact from sensitivity analysis from significant assumptions that affect employee
benefit obligations as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were summarised below.

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and

Separate financial statements

31 December 2020

Increase (decrease) in Increase (decrease) in
Assumption employee benefit Assumption employee benefit
increase obligations decrease obligations
% per annum Baht % per annum Baht
Discount rate 1.0 (1,438,911) 1.0 1,667,605
Salary increasing rate 1.0 1,804,910 1.0 (1,585,523)
Staff turnover rate 10.0(M (1,151,015) 10.0(M 1,322,776

M10% of assumed staff turnover rates.

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and

Separate financial statements

31 December 2019

Increase (decrease) in Increase (decrease) in
Assumption employee benefit Assumption employee benefit
increase obligations decrease obligations
% per annum Baht % per annum Baht
Discount rate 1.0 (1,178,774) 1.0 1,381,855
Salary increasing rate 1.0 1,492,685 1.0 (1,298,706)
Staff turnover rate 10.0M (967,443) 10.0M 1,112,183

M 10% of assumed staff turnover rates.
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20.

21.

22,

221

On 5 April 2019, the Labor Protection Act (No. 7) B.E. 2562 was announced in the Royal
Gazette, which stipulates additional legal severance pay rates for employees who have
worked for an uninterrupted period of twenty years or more, with such employees entitled to
receive not less than 400 days’ compensation at the latest wage rate. The law is effective
from 5 May 2019. This change is considered a post-employment benefits plan amendment,
resulting in the Company having addition employee benefit obligations of Baht 2.1 million.
The Company already reflected the effect of such change by recognising past service costs

as expenses in the statement of income.
Share capital

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company’s has registered, issued and paid-up

share capital consists of about 600 million shares with par value of Baht 1 per share.
Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is
required to set aside a statutory reserve at least 5% of its net income after deducting
accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10% of the registered

capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
Segment information
Operating segment information reporting

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports
that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker in order to make
decisions about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its performance. The

Chief Operating Decision Maker has been identified as President.

For management purposes, the Company is organised into business units based on its
products and services and have two reportable segments are “conventional products” and
“non-conventional products”. Segments are differentiated based on the design of the
product, and specifically whether they are a traditional product line available in the current
market or a new type of product in expectation of market demand and the Company can

continuously service.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating

segments.
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The Chief Operating Decision Maker has reviewed the operating results of the operating

segments separately for the purpose of making decisions and assessing performance.

Segment performance is measured based on operating profit or loss and on a basis

consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss in the financial statements.

However, in the part of assets and liabilities, segment performance is measured based on

the same basis applied to the financial statements whereby operating segments were not

separately measured.

The basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments is consistent with

that for third party transactions.

Operating segment information for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 can be

classified by type of products as follows:

Underwriting revenues

Reinsurance premium written

Less: Reinsurance premium ceded

Net reinsurance premium written

Add (Less): Unearned premium reserves
(increased) decreased from prior year

Net earned premium

Underwriting expenses

Long-term insurance policy reserves increased

(decreased)

Unexpired risk reserves decreased

Net benefits and claims

Commissions and brokerages expenses - net

Other underwriting expenses

Total underwriting expenses

Profit from underwriting

Operating expenses

Expected credit losses

Profit from operations

Share of loss from investment in an associate
Net investment revenue

Other income

Profit before income tax expenses

Income tax expenses

Net profit

(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Conventional

products

Non-conventional

products

Total

1,206,412,059
(18,277,733)

1,132,292,693
(1,037,018)

2,338,704,752
(19,314,751)

1,188,134,326

14,657,714

1,131,255,675

(42,838,892)

2,319,390,001

(28,181,178)

1,202,792,040

1,088,416,783

2,291,208,823

(18,873,919)
(5,097,739)

756,386,126

343,661,207
18,813,698

56,131,343

(4,410,152)
703,781,051
224,391,908

17,657,825

37,257,424

(9,507,891)
1,460,167,177
568,053,115
36,471,523

1,094,889,373

997,551,975

2,092,441,348

107,902,667

90,864,808

198,767,475
(93,112,928)
(467,150)

105,187,397
(177,128)

32,041,537

5,536,238

142,588,044
(21,153,386)

121,434,658
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(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Conventional Non-conventional

22.2

Underwriting revenues

Reinsurance premium written

Less: Reinsurance premium ceded

Net reinsurance premium written

Add (Less): Unearned premium reserves
(increased) decreased from prior year

Net earned premium

Underwriting expenses

Long-term insurance policy reserves increased
(decreased)

Unexpired risk reserves increased

Net benefits and claims

Commissions and brokerages expenses - net

Other underwriting expenses

Total underwriting expenses

Profit from underwriting

Operating expenses

Profit from operations

Share of loss from investment in an associate

Net investment revenue

Other income

Profit before income tax expenses

Income tax expenses

Net profit

Geographic information

products

products

Total

1,261,692,996
(14,580,307)

1,078,009,862
(1,012,939)

2,339,702,858
(15,593,246)

1,247,112,689

14,384,664

1,076,996,923

(57,014,039)

2,324,109,612

(42,629,375)

1,261,497,353

1,019,982,884

2,281,480,237

(7,662,622) 72,319,780 64,657,158
5,097,739 4,410,152 9,507,891
768,945,532 651,688,963 1,420,634,495
335,400,529 198,990,955 534,391,484
18,268,719 15,609,075 33,877,794
1,120,049,897 943,018,925 2,063,068,822
141,447,456 76,963,959 218,411,415

(92,155,677)

126,255,738

(825,217)
100,899,873
5,674,198

232,004,592
(37,748,950)

194,255,642

The Company operates in Thailand only. As a result, all the revenues and assets as

reflected in these financial statements pertain exclusively to this geographical reportable

segment.
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22.3 Major customers
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had total reinsurance

premium written from each life insurance company for the amount equal to or higher than

10% of total reinsurance premium written as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

For the years end periods ended 31 December

2020 2019
Reinsurance premium written 1,479 1,238
23. Operating expenses
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2020 2019
Personnel expenses 48,410,581 49,526,630
Premises and equipment expenses 20,310,075 19,487,692
Taxes and duties 34,319 162,668
Other operating expenses 24,242,776 22,978,687

Total operating expenses 92,997,751 92,155,677
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24,

25.

26.

Expenses by nature

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements
in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2020 2019
Long-term insurance policy reserves increased 37,257,424 64,657,158
Unexpired risk reserves increased (decreased) (9,507,891) 9,507,891
Net benefits and claims 1,458,798,788 1,418,620,263
Commission expenses 570,478,498 536,058,822
Other underwriting expenses 5,569,622 5,261,943
Personnel expenses 79,065,913 78,581,025
Premises and equipment expenses 21,925,033 21,063,381
Other expenses 24,859,422 23,141,354
Total expenses by nature 2,188,446,809 2,156,891,837

Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance
with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The fund is contributed to by both the employees
and the Company on a monthly basis, at rates ranging from 5% to 10% of the employees’
basic salaries, based on the length of employment. The fund is managed by Krungsri Asset
Management Company Limited and will be paid to employees upon termination in
accordance with the fund rules. During the years 2020 and 2019, the Company contributed
Baht 4.3 million and Bath 3.9 million, respectively, to the fund.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profits by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the years.
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27.

28.

28.1

Dividends paid

Dividends declared during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 consisted of the

following:
Total Dividend
Approved by dividend per share
(Million Baht) (Baht)
Interim dividend payment from 2019 Board of Director meeting
income on 22 April 2020 78.0 0.13
Total dividend paid during the period of 2020 78.0 0.13
Final dividend from 2018 net income Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders on 23 April 2019 90.0 0.15
Interim dividend payment from 2019 Board of Director meeting
on 20 August 2019 78.0 0.13
Total dividend paid during the period of 2019 168.0 0.28

Related party transactions
Nature of relationship

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance

of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

The relationship between the Company and its related parties are summarised below:

Name of related parties Relationship with the Company
TKI Life Insurance Company Limited An associate whereby the Company holds 32.50% of its shares
Thai Reinsurance Plc. Related by way of having common directors and being the

Company’s shareholder

Bangkok Life Assurance Plc. Related by way of having a common director and being the
Company’s shareholder

The Navakij Insurance Plc. Related by way of having a common director and being the

Company’s shareholder

Thaire Services Co., Ltd. Related by way of having common directors and a shareholder
Thai Life Insurance Plc. Related by way of having a common director(")

Thaire Actuarial Consulting Co., Ltd. Related by way of having a common director and a shareholder
EMCS Thai Co., Ltd. Related by way of having a common director and a shareholder
Thaire Innovation Co., Ltd. Related by way of having a common director and a shareholder

() This entity had been considered a related party until 5 October 2020, the date of which a common director resigned from the Company’s Board

of Directors.
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28.2 Significant related party transactions

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had significant
business transactions with its related parties. Such transactions, which have been
concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon in the ordinary course of business

between the Company and those related parties are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
For the years ended

31 December

2020 2019 Pricing policy

Transaction with associates

Revenues

Service revenues(! 5,303 5,301  Mutually agreed rates

Transactions with related parties

Revenues

Reinsurance premium written 557,656 512,959  According to terms of reinsurance
contracts

Commission income 541 752  According to terms of reinsurance
contracts

Claims refundable 926 932  According to the ratios as specified in the
reinsurance contracts

Expenses

Reinsurance premium ceded 2,240 2,689  According to terms of reinsurance
contracts

Claim expenses 324,495 319,516  According to the ratios as specified in the
reinsurance contracts

Commission expenses 155,854 139,375  According to terms of reinsurance
contracts

Service fee expenses® 7,888 7,749  Mutually agreed rates

Owner’s equity

Dividend paid 9,568 20,782  As declared

™M Included in “Other income” in statements of income

@ Included in “Operating expenses” in statements of income
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28.3 Outstanding balances

28.4

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had the outstanding balances with its

related parties as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

Associate

Other receivables(" 7,122 5,025
Related parties

Insurance reserves refundable from reinsurers® - 814
Amounts due from reinsurers® 744 70,592
Amounts deposited on reinsurance® 32,728 28,219
Deferred commissions expenses 30,740 28,001
Loss reserves® 12,513 3,952
Amounts due to reinsurers® 6,069 44,326
Deferred commissions income - 12

(M) Included in “Other assets” in statements of financial position

@ Included in “Reinsurance assets” in statements of financial position

@) Included in “Reinsurance receivables” in statements of financial position

@) Included in “Insurance contract liabilities” in statements of financial position

®) Included in “Due to reinsurers” in statements of financial position
Directors’ and key management’s remuneration

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had salaries, bonuses,
meeting allowances and post-employment benefits incurred in respect of its directors and

key management personnel as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
For the years ended 31 December

2020 2019
Short-term benefits 36,175 35,502
Post employment benefits 3,018 4,876

Total 39,193 40,378
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29.

30.

30.1

Assets subject to restrictions

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had the following assets placed reserved
with the Registrar of the Office of Insurance Commission in accordance with the Life

Insurance Act. and placed as collateral to guarantee for electricity consumption.

(Unit: Million Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied

and Separate financial statements

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Assets placed
Government bonds 21.0 21.9 21.0 21.6
Assets reserved as insurance reserves
Government and state enterprise bonds 217.0 228.7 250.0 255.2
Private enterprise debt securities 54.0 56.2 36.0 37.2
Guarantee for electricity consumption
Government bonds - - 0.1 0.1

Commitments
Operating lease commitments

The Company entered into a lease agreement in respect of the lease of vehicle. The term of
the agreement is 5 years. As at 31 December 2019, the Company had future minimum

lease payments required under such non-cancellable operating lease contract was as

follows.
(Unit: Million Baht)
Payable 31 December 2019
Within 1 year 0.8
Longer than 1 year but within 5 years 1.6

However, as at 1 January 2020, a lease commitment of Baht 2.4 million was already
recognised as lease liabilities from adoption of TFRS 16 as described in Notes 3.1 b. and
4.2 to financial statements. Therefore, it was not required to disclose such outstanding lease

commitments as at 31 December 2020 in this note to financial statements.
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30.2

30.3

31.

31.1

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had capital commitments in relation to installation of
computer software amounting to Baht 3.0 million. (As at 31 December 2019: the Company

had no outstanding capital commitments).
Service commitments

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had outstanding service commitments
and future minimum service fees amounting to Baht 6.0 million and Baht 0.6 million,

respectively.
Risks and risk management policy
Life insurance risk

Life Insurance risks arising from the conduct of reinsurance activities are managed as

follows:
a. Product design and development and pricing

The Company has established a Product Development Committee to consider
significant issues that would affect the Company’s financial position. Furthermore, after
new products are launched the Company monitors underwriting results, such as
deviations between premium pricing assumptions and actual experience, so that they

can be used to improve the products.
b. Underwriting of reinsurance

The Company modifies its underwriting guidelines to keep them up to date, based on
technical knowledge and statistical information. Moreover, training is conducted to
engender staff's application of knowledge and discipline when making underwriting
decisions and reviews of whether underwriting practices correspond to the guidelines
are performed to ensure that the risk retention is consistent with the Company’s

identified risk limits.
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c. Claim management

The Company has established a standardised claims management process and claims
management guidelines are consistently updated, with due consideration given to risk
management. Moreover, the Company arranges training to impart knowledge to staff,
and working practices are reviewed to ensure they are in accordance with the

guidelines.
d. Retrocession

An excess of loss retrocession program has been implemented as a risk management
tool. The Company buys retrocession coverage for excess of loss in order to limit the
maximum loss per event and regularly performs adequacy tests of reinsurance
protection in the event of major loss events. In addition, the Company has a policy to

retrocede its business only to retrocessionaires that have credit ratings of at least “A-.”
e. Reserve estimates

The Company’s loss reserves are examined and certified by independent actuarial
fellows. Moreover, the Company periodically analyses and montiors deviations between
the reserve calculation assumptions and actual experience to ensure reserves

adequately cover the Company’s obligations.
f. Reinsurance concentration risk

Reinsurance concentration risk is the risk arising from a concentration of business
written within a particular type of contracts. Reinsurance contracts can be divided into
short-term and long-term, which have different obligations. Long-term reinsurance
contract obliges the Company to provide ongoing coverage without changing premiums
or benefits or canceling the contract and the present value of the obligation will be
fluctuated due to change in interest rate whereas short-term contract obliges the
Company on a yearly basis and enables the Company to adjust reinsurance conditions

when renewal is made and there are no discounted over time required.



JUNISIUNAzMUIgIKAUS:NOUIUNISINU

Financial Statements and Notes to financial statements
Hence, in order to prevent any volatility to the Company’s financial position, the
Company has the policy to balance the portfolio mix of long-term and short-term
contracts. The proportion of long-term and short-term reinsurance premium written for

the year ended 31 December 2020 were as follows;

(Unit: Percent)
31 December 2020

Long-term contracts 40
Short-term contracts 60
Total 100

The proportion of long-term and short-term insurance contract liabilities as at

31 December 2019 were as follows;

(Unit: Percent)
31 December 2019

Long-term contracts 60
Short-term contracts 40
Total 100

g. Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis is performed to analyse the risk that insurance contract liabilities will
increase or decrease as a result of changes in the assumptions used in calculating,
gross and net reserves, profits before taxes, and owner’s equity. The risk may occur
because the frequency of claims, value of claims, or loss adjustment expenses may not

be as expected.
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(1) Sensitivity analysis on long-term insurance policy reserves

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, impacts from changes in assumptions on

long-term insurance policy reserves were shown below:

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2020

Increase
(decrease) in

long-term policy

Increase
(decrease) in

long-term policy

Increase

(decrease) in

Increase

Change in reserves before reserves after profits before (decrease) in
assumption(”) retrocession retrocession income taxes owner’s equity
% Baht Baht Baht Baht

Mortality rate +5.0 29,120,714 29,120,714 (29,120,714) (23,296,571)
Mortality rate -5.0 (29,537,589) (29,537,589) 29,537,589 23,630,071
Lapse rate +5.0 3,190,530 3,190,530 (3,190,530) (2,552,424)
Lapse rate -5.0 (3,255,349) (3,255,349) 3,255,349 2,604,279
Discount rate +5.0 (5,202,006) (5,202,006) 5,202,006 4,161,605
Discount rate -5.0 5,281,029 5,281,029 (5,281,029) (4,224,823)

() % of each assumption rate.

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2019

Increase
(decrease) in

long-term policy

Increase
(decrease) in

long-term policy

Increase

(decrease) in

Increase

Change in reserves before reserves after profits before (decrease) in
assumption(® retrocession retrocession income taxes owner’s equity
% Baht Baht Baht Baht
Mortality rate +5.0 32,207,986 32,207,986 (32,207,986) (25,766,389)
Mortality rate -5.0 (32,681,415) (32,681,415) 32,681,415 26,145,132
Lapse rate +5.0 3,158,067 3,158,067 (3,158,067) (2,526,454)
Lapse rate -5.0 (3,217,120) (3,217,120) 3,217,120 2,573,696
Discount rate +5.0 (5,805,492) (5,805,492) 5,805,492 4,644,394
Discount rate -5.0 5,900,265 5,900,265 (5,900,265) (4,720,212)

() % of each assumption rate.
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(2) Sensitivity analysis on short-term insurance policy reserves

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, impacts from changes in assumptions on loss

reserves were shown below:

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2020

Increase
(decrease) in
loss reserves

before

retrocession

Increase
(decrease) in
loss reserves

after

retrocession

Increase
(decrease) in
profits before

income taxes

Increase
(decrease) in

owner’s equity

Change in
assumption
%
Ultimate loss ratio +5.0
Ultimate loss ratio -5.0

Baht

83,318,239
(15,363,417)

Baht

83,318,239
(15,363,417)

Baht

(83,318,239)
15,363,417

Baht

(66,654,591)
12,290,734

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2019

Increase
(decrease) in
loss reserves

before

retrocession

Increase
(decrease) in
loss reserves

after

retrocession

Increase
(decrease) in
profits before

income taxes

Increase
(decrease) in

owner’s equity

Change in
assumption
%
Ultimate loss ratio +5.0
Ultimate loss ratio -5.0

Baht

79,861,440
(7,432,178)

Baht

79,861,440
(7,432,178)

Baht

(79,861,440)
7,432,178

Baht

(63,889,152)
5,945,742
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31.2 Financial risks
a. Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to reinsurance receivables
and investments in debt securities. The Company manages the risk by regularly
evaluating credit quality of its retrocessionaires and issuers of securities and assessing
their ability to pay, considering their credit rating and monitoring of their financial
positions. The Company has a policy to retrocede its business to foreign
retrocessionaires and buy securities from issuers that have credit ratings of at least A-
and therefore it is not expected to incur material financial losses from credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of reinsurance
receivables and investments in debt securities as presented in the statement of financial

position.

The Company has policy to manage expected credit losses (ECL) related to debt
instruments by determining If there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
securities since the first day of investment and considering credit quality of financial

assets under the following criteria.

(1) Financial asset without a significant increase in credit risk or low credit risk
considering that the issuer’s credit rating is rated as “Investment Grade” and there
are no changes in related factor that significantly impact to issuer’s cashflow. This
stage of financial assets is subject to the 12-month ECL and interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost before

allowance for expected credit losses.

(2) Financial asset with a significant increase in credit risk or higher credit risk
considering that the issuer’s credit rating is rated as “Non-investment Grade” and
there are changes in related factors that significantly impact the issuer’s
cashflows. This stage of financial assets is subject to the life-time ECL and interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost

before allowance for expected credit losses.

(3) Financial asset with credit-impaired or there is objective and apparently evidences
of impairment considering that there is 1 day past due on its contractual payment,
including default on other loan or debt of the same issuers. As a result, the issuer
credit rating is rated as “Default Grade”. This stage of financial assets is subject to
the life-time ECL and interest income is calculated by applying the effective

interest rate to the amortised cost after allowance for expected credit losses.
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In respect of loans and interest receivable, This type of loans is provided to employees

in accordance with the Company’s employee welfare plan. The Company has

considered the risk of employee loan default to be very low since the loaning are

considered subject to a period of employment and the approval of the supervisor.

Moreover, the loans payments can be made through automatic payroll deductions, the

possibility of default is therefore estimated to zero.

The following table showed the credit quality of financial assets exposed to credit risk.

The amounts presented for financial assets were net carrying value after deducting

allowance for expected credit losses, which were also considered to be the maximum

exposure of financial assets before both the effect of mitigation through the use of

master netting and collateral arrangements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment grade

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Net carrying value

Held-to-maturity investments measured at
amortised cost

Investment grade

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Net carrying value

Loans and interest receivable

Not yet due

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Net carrying value

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and

Separate financial statements

31 December 2020

Financial assets

Financial assets with significant

without increase in Financial assets
significant credit risk with credit-
increase in (Lifetime ECL - impaired
credit risk not credit (Lifetime ECL -
(12-mth ECL) impaired) credit impaired) Total
41,176,718 - - 41,176,718
(41,852) - - (41,852)
41,134,866 - - 41,134,866
963,202,677 - - -
(425,299) - - (425,299)
962,777,378 - - 962,777,378
633,103 - - 633,103
633,103 - - 633,103




\1umsﬁu||a:huwqus:nauaumsﬁu
Financial Statements and Notes to financial statements

The following table showed the movement of the allowance for expected credit losses for
the year ended 31 December 2020.
(Unit: Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and

Separate financial statements

31 December 2020

Financial assets

Financial assets with significant

without increase in Financial assets
significant credit risk with credit-
increase in (Lifetime ECL - impaired
credit risk not credit (Lifetime ECL -
(12-mth ECL) impaired) credit impaired) Total
Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning balance - - - -
Newly purchased or acquired financial assets 28,930 - - 28,930
Change due to remeasurement of allowance for
expected credit losses 12,922 - - 12,922
Ending balance 41,852 - - 41,852
Held-to-maturity investments measured at
amortised cost
Beginning balance - - - -
Newly purchased or acquired financial assets 327,558 - - 327,558
Change due to remeasurement of allowance for
expected credit losses 97,741 - - 97,741
Ending balance 425,299 - - 425,299

b. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that change in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
securities prices may have an effect on the Company’s financial position. The Company
had no significant financial assets denominated in foreign currencies; market risk is

therefore confined only to interest rate risk and equity position risk.
(1) Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks

and investments in debt securities.

The Company has managed interest rate risk by closely monitoring interest rate

movement and incorporating it into investment allocation decision making.
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Significant assets and liabilities classified by type of interest rate were summarised
in the table below, with those assets and liabilities that carried fixed interest rates
further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurred

before the maturity date.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2020

Fixed interest rates Non-
Within 1-5 Over Floating interest Effective
1 year years 5 years interest rate bearing Total interest rate
(% per annum)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 21,971 - - 19,160 4 41,135 0.05-0.50
Accrued investment income - - - - 14,386 14,386 -
Investments in securities
Government and state enterprise
securities 228,024 119,919 127,699 - - 475,642 0.64
Private enterprise debt securities 65,355 144,289 77,743 - - 287,387 1.86
Equity securities - - - - 962,044 962,044 -
Deposits at financial institutions 199,747 - - - - 199,747 0.55
Loans and interest receivables - - - 633 - 633 2.25
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 720 766 - - - 1,486 6.20
Assets under insurance contracts
Reinsurance assets
- long-term insurance policy
reserves - - - - 2,822 2,822 -
Reinsurance receivables - - - - 433,896 433,896 -
Liabilities under insurance
contracts
Insurance contract liabilities
- long-term insurance policy
reserves - - - - 508,605 508,605 -
- loss reserves - - - - 28,979 28,979 -

Due to reinsurers - - - - 346,731 346,731 -
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Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued investment income
Investments in securities
Government and state enterprise
securities
Private enterprise debt securities
Equity securities
Deposits at financial institutions
Loans and interest receivables
Assets under insurance contracts
Reinsurance assets
- long-term insurance policy
reserves
Reinsurance receivables
Liabilities under insurance
contracts
Insurance contract liabilities
- long-term insurance policy
reserves
- loss reserves

Due to reinsurers

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2019

Fixed interest rates Non-
Within 1-5 Over Floating interest Effective
1 year years 5 years interest rate bearing Total interest rate
(% per annum)

- - - 33,794 4 33,798 0.10 - 1.00

- - - - 13,187 13,187 -
445,675 132,718 65,383 65,306 - 709,082 1.24

30,000 133,000 51,648 - - 214,648 2.03

- - - - 878,405 878,405 -
145,000 - - - - 145,000 1.52

- - - 1,030 - 1,030 3.25

- - - - 2,656 2,656 -

- - - - 214,596 214,596 -

- - - - 471,182 471,182 -

- - - - 7,790 7,790 -

- - - - 137,009 137,009 -

(2) Securities price risk

Securities price risk is the risk that change in the market prices of securities will

result in fluctuations in revenues and in the value of assets.

The Company manages the price risk by continually analysing and monitoring

changes in any factors that might lead to adverse movement in the market price of

the invested securities. The Company has adopted a prudent investment policy and

avoids speculative investments that would jeopardise its capital. The Company

invests in high quality securities that are expected to generate reasonable and

consistent returns.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had risk from holding securities,

the price of which would change following market conditions.
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c.  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to liquidate its financial assets
and/or procure sufficient funds to discharge its obligations in a timely manner, resulting

in the occurrence of a financial loss.

The Company manages its liquidity position through prudent investment decisions, cash
flow matching of assets and liabilities, and diversification of assets and liabilities to
ensure that adequate cash is available when needed. Moreover, the Company sets its

liquidity position at a higher than that required by the Office of Insurance Commission.

Counting from the financial position date, the periods to maturity of assets and liabilities

held as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2020

At call Within 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Unspecified Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 19,160 21,971 - - 4 41,135
Accrued investment
income - 4,770 9,616 - - 14,386
Investments in securities 959,694 493,127 264,208 205,443 2,350 1,924,822
Loans and interest

receivable - 471 162 - - 633
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities - 792 792 - - 1,584
Assets under insurance

contracts
Reinsurance receivables - 433,896 - - - 433,896

Liabilities under
insurance contracts

Due to reinsurers - 346,731 - - - 346,731
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and Separate financial statements

31 December 2019

At call Within 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Unspecified Total

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 33,794 - - - 4 33,798
Accrued investment income - 4,891 8,296 - - 13,187
Investments in securities 876,299 620,675 265,717 182,338 2,106 1,947,135
Loans and interest

receivable - 394 635 - - 1,029
Assets under insurance

contracts
Reinsurance receivables - 214,517 79 - - 214,596
Liabilities under

insurance contracts
Due to reinsurers - 136,786 223 - - 137,009

The Company’s reinsurance contracts generated an annual reinsurance premium, net of
underwriting expenses throughout term of contracts whereby remaining periods to
maturity of insurance contract liabilities, counted from the statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, were presented as a percentage to total insurance

contract liabilities as below:

(Unit: Percent)

Remaining periods to maturity 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
1 year 18.7 17.6
1 year to 5 years 37.6 37.2
Over 5 years 43.7 45.2

Total 100.0 100.0
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32. Fair value of financial instruments

As of 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company had the following financial assets that

were measured at fair value, and had financial assets that were measured at cost but had

to disclose fair value, using different levels of inputs as follows:

Financial assets measured at
fair value

Trading investments measured at fair
value through profit or loss

Available-for-sale investments
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Financial assets for which fair
values were disclosed

Cash and cash equivalents

Held-to-maturity investments
measured at amortised cost
Government and state enterprise

securities

Private enterprise debt securities
Deposits at financial institutions

Loans and interest receivables

Liabilities for which fair values
were disclosed

Lease liabilities

(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and
separate financial statements
31 December 2020
Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Carrying value
- 79,068,935 - 79,068,935 79,068,935
600,510,519 280,114,859 2,349,983 882,975,361 882,975,361
41,176,718 - - 41,176,718 41,134,866
- 486,337,634 - 486,337,634 475,642,423
- 291,939,521 - 291,939,521 287,387,647
- 200,000,000 - 200,000,000 199,747,308
- - 633,103 633,103 633,103
- - 1,486,503 1,486,503 1,486,503
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(Unit: Baht)
Financial statements in which the equity method is applied and

separate financial statements

31 December 2019

Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Carrying value

Financial assets measured at

fair value
Trading investments 72,336,094 - - 72,336,094 72,336,094
Available-for-sale investments 452,475,752 351,486,936 - 803,962,688 803,962,688
Financial assets for which fair

values were disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents 33,798,067 - - 33,798,067 33,798,067
Held-to-maturity investments

Government and state enterprise 709,081,922

securities - 715,993,870 - 715,993,870

Private enterprise debt securities - 218,791,589 - 218,791,589 214,648,412

Deposits at financial institution - 145,000,000 - 145,000,000 145,000,000
General investments - - 2,272,072 2,272,072 2,105,720
Loans and interest receivables - - 1,029,648 1,029,648 1,029,648

The fair value hierarchy of financial assets was presented according to Note 5.19 to
financial statements. The methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating the

fair value of financial instruments were as follows:

(a) Financial assets and liabilities having short-term maturity periods as cash and cash
equivalents, and deposits at banks with an original maturity period of within 1 year
were presented at fair values, which approximate their carrying amounts in the

statement of financial position.

(b) Investments in listed equity securities and investment units were presented at fair

values using market price.

(c) Investments in debts securities were presented at fair values, determined using the

yield curves as announced by the Thai Bond Market Association.
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33.

34.

35.

(d) Investments in non-listed equity securities were presented at fair values, determined
using the discounted cash flow method. Investments in non-listed investment units
were presented at fair values, using the net asset value per unit as announced by the

fund managers.

(e) Loans and interest receivables are presented at fair value, which is estimated by

discounting expected future cash flow by the current market interest rate.
During the current year, there were no transfers within the fair value hierarchy.
Capital management for life insurance companies

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management are to ensure that it has
ability to continue its business as a going concern and to maintain risk-based capital in

accordance with the requirements of the Office of the insurance Commission.
Event after the reporting period

On 19 February 2021, the Meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution
approving the proposal to the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders to be
held in April 2021 for an approval of dividend payment from the operating results of the year
2020 at Baht 0.14 per share or a total of Baht 84 million.

Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors
on 19 February 2021.
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voyanoluveawusen General Information
#oustn usEn IngsUs:Nuddn 911A (UH1BU) Company Name Thaire Life Assurance PCL
Asvduneulney  1avi 48/15 soassaAnniun 20 Head office 48/15 Rajchadapisek Soi 20,
NUUSBEATNILN IlVovaIlIdUUDN Location Rajchadapisek Road, Samsennok,
IVAKO8VI nsvinwuriuAs 10310 Huaykwang, Bangkok 10310
TnsAwri 0-2666-9000 Phone: 0-2666-9000
Insans 0-2277-6227 Fax: 0-2277-6227
Js:innssne AndussnaUs=Nunero AuNIsUs:Nu  Nature of Business Provision of reinsurance

lavn:1Jguusen

BomnNnus=inn
0107554000241

(life insurance business)

Registered Number 0107554000241

13uls6 www.thairelife.co.th Website www.thairelife.co.th
nuaAN:Ideu Auaniny91udu 600 &URU Share Capital 600 million ordinary shares of THB 1
oonIruUYIa: yaAnnsld Aua: 1 un Registered, each, Total THB 600 million
¥1s:1180 SOU 600 &1uun Issued and Paid-up
voyanslUvouliAupnanusen fieiunvifsasa:  Legal Entities in which the Company holds shares
10 Yuly more than 10 percent
%’auét‘-in TKI Life Insurance Company Limited Company Name TKI Life Insurance Company Limited
Anvddniulnny  Level 4, Zone A office Unit, Head office Level 4, Zone A office Unit,
The Iconic, Unit 11, Phonxay Road, Location The Iconic, Unit 11, Phonxay Road,
Phonxay Village, Saysettha District, Phonxay Village, Saysettha District,
Vientiane Capital 01000 Lao PDR. Vientiane Capital 01000 Lao PDR.
InsAwri 856-21417707 Phone: 856-21417707
Insans 856-21417705 Fax: 856-21417705
Jszinnssne AnbussnaniIsUs=NUBIANNUS:INN Nature of Business Provision of insurance

lavn:z10guusEn
13uls6

nuanN:1IbgU
oondnuneNa:
g1s:180
dndounnsiioru
Inousien

305013561-9-00
www.tki-insurance.com

Rualryd1uou 8 AUAU yaAnnsl3
Aua: 2,000 fiu SO 16,000 a1unu
nous:unru 66 aruuin

Soya:32.5

(life insurance business)

Registered Number 305013561-9-00

Website www.tki-insurance.com
Share Capital 8 million ordinary shares of LAK 2,000
Registered, each, Total LAK 16,000 million or

Issued and Paid-up approximately THB 66 million

Percentage Owned 32.5 percent
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ugn:idgu usun Audsudnnannswe Share Registrar/
nannswe (Us:inAlng) 911im Transfer Agent

parnnannsSwalrkids:inAlng
1avin 93 NUUSBATNILN IIVOJAUIIAY
IVARUIIAY NSYINWY 10400

InsAiwr 0-2009-9388
Insans 0-2009-9476

Gdoulry® UNE195BA" BIEFFN0UBE Auditor

gaouliny@suauryn 1avh 4951
usBNn dUnunu 9918 91R

1avi 193/136-137 91ASIANSEAN
U 33 NUUSBANAILN IIVOVAABVINGY
IVAAAoJINY NSINW 10110

InsAwn 0-2264-9090
Insans 0-2264-0789-90
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Thailand Securities Depository
Co., Ltd.

The Stock Exchange of Thailand
Building, 93 Ratchadaphisek Road,
Dindaeng, Dindaeng, Bangkok 10400

Phone: 0-2009-9388
Fax: 0-2009-9476

Ms. Rachada Yongsawadvanich

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand)
No. 4951 EY Office Limited
193/136-137 Lake Ratchada Office
Complex FlI 33, Rachadapisek Road,
Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110

Phone: 0-2264-9090
Fax: 0-2264-0789-90
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